




#1 
MINUTE 



May 14, 2019 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

85th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
May 14, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward. 
Members Absent: Miller. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-175 Excuse Councilperson Gloria Miller for pers~~1i reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. · · 

Ayes: Pietila,Taylor-Burks, Waterman, \,\l"illi~~~,Woodward and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilwoman Gloria Miller arrived at 6:02 p.m. 

19-176 Amendments to the Agenda: remove item #11, (resolution for Alma Marie Bradley-
Pettress) remove items #15-#17, we will postpone items 15-17 until May 28, 2019 and move 
presentations 4-6 after agenda Item #18. Moved by Councilperson Woodward and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. · 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-177 Approval of the Agenda with amendments. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

1 



May 14, 2019 

19-178 Approval of meeting minutes for May 7, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Woodward. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Subcommittee Reports 

Public Safety-May 10, 2019 received. 

Special Presentation 

Waterford Regional Fire Presentation (Presentation requested by Councilwoman Mary Pietila) 
Presentation Presenter: Chief John Lyman, Fire Chief, Waterford Regional Fire Department 

Agenda Address - Chuck Johnson 

19-179 First reading of an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance #2288 to change how City 
Council adopts the budget from functional basis to line item basis for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

**See Ordinance attachment after minutes** 

19-180 Resolution to schedule a special meeting for Friday, May 17, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. to 
consider an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance #2288 to change how City Council adopts the budget 
from functional basis to line item basis for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. Moved by Councilperson Pietila 
and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Whereas, the Pontiac City Council will hold a Special Meeting on Friday, May 17, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers of City Hall 4 7 450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, Michigan 48342 to adopt an 
Ordinance to Amend Ordinance #2288 to change how City Council adopts the budget from functional 
basis to line item basis for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council schedules a Special Meeting on 
Friday, May 17, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 47450 Woodard Ave. Pontiac, 
Michigan. 

Ayes: Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 

2 



May 14, 2019 

Resolution Passed. 

19-181 Resolution for the City Attorney to review the Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 
#2288 to change how City Council adopts the budget from functional basis to line item basis for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 by May 16, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Pietila second by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, pursuant to the Pontiac City Charter section 4.202 more specifically, section 4.202 (b), the City 
Attorney is hereby requested to review the ordinance to Amend Ordinance #2288 and make changes that 
are only necessary for the ordinance to be in compliance with the Charter and in proper form for 
implementation by May 16, 2019. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council request that the City Attorney 
have this review and if needed any modifications made to the ordinance completed by May 16, 2019 to 
ensure it is in proper form. 

Ayes: Caiier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodard 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-182 Resolution for Kevon Davenport. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, It is the sense of this legislative body to honor an outstanding, young adult of remarkable 
character, who is inspirational and who serves as a role-model to others; and, 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenport has the unique distinction and privilege of becoming the first four-time 
African-American State Wrestling Champion, after winning the 2019 MHSAA State Championship 
145lbs; and, 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenpo1i is a Pontiac resident and attends Novi Detroit Catholic Central; and, 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenport started his career in wresting at the early age of eight, as he played for the 
Pontiac Jr. Huskies under coaches Adam Polk, Cisco McKinney, Time Gomez, Marvin McClellan and 
Jim Hayward; and, 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenp01i's talent did not go unrecognized, as both his parents were eagerly 
committed and devoted to his development and as a consequence, his father studied the sport and became 
indoctrinated in wrestling, ultimately becoming his primary coach; and 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenport is an exceptional and accomplished wrestler who was taught to always 
place God first and to maintain great sportsmanship like conduct at all times; and, 
WHEREAS, Kevon Davenport has won several tournaments and championships, some include: the 
MYW A State Tournament, Tournament of Champions in Ohio, Liberty Nationals in Missouri, the 
Grappler Fall Classic, the 2013 and 2014 Monster Medal Championship, the 2014 and 2015 Great Lakes 
Championship, was the 2016 MHSAA State Champion 119lbs, the 2017 MHSAA State Champion 
130lbs, the 2018 MHSAA State Champion l 45lbs and on March 2, 2019, recently became the 2019 
MHSAA State Champion 145lbs. 

3 



May 14, 2019 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council, and members of this great 
community, honor and salute the personal accomplishments and achievements of Kevon Davenport for a 
job well done and for truly, representing the City of Pontiac. Congratulations. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-183 Resolution to approve the 2019 High Intensity Drug Trafficking (HIDT A) 
Subrecipient Agreement between the City of Pontiac and Oakland County and that the Mayor be 
authorized to sign this agreement. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks. · 

WHEREAS, Oakland County as the legal entity that administers N.E.T., submitted an Initiative 
Description and Budget Proposal to the Executive Board for Michigan HIDTA requesting the United 
States Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) to grant N.E.T. an award for program year (PY) 
2019 to reimburse N.E.T. participating agencies for eligible law enforcement officer overtime costs; and, 
WHEREAS, if ONDCP grants N.E.T. an award for PY 2019, the ONDCP disburses the HIDTA funds to 
the Michigan State Police (MSP); and, 
WHEREAS, the County has the authority to allocate a portion of the Grant funds to reimburse a 
participating municipality for qualifying overtime costs subject to the terms and conditions of the 
agreement; and, 
WHEREAS, the County requires any participating unit of government to approve the proposed 
Subrecipient Agreement by Resolution of the governing board of the local unit of government; and, 
WHEREAS, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners has agreed to the attached Subrecipient 
Agreement; and, 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac desires to enter into the attached Subrecipient Agreement between the 
City and Oakland County; and 
WHEREAS, Oakland County Corporate Council and the City of Pontiac have approved the attached 
Subrecipient Agreement. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pontiac Council approves the attached 
Subrecipient Agreement with the County of Oakland and authorizes the Mayor to sign on behalf of the 
City. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-184 Resolution to formally affirm the City of Pontiac commitment to proceed with our 
endeavor to obtain Redevelopment Ready Community Certification status from Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation (MEDC); and furthermore, that this resolution be sent to 
MEDC as required. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Woodward. 

4 



May 14, 2019 

Discussion on the floor. Motion to refer this resolution to the Community Development Subcommittee; 
Councilperson Pietila withdrew her motion, Councilperson Woodward withdrew his second. 

19-184 (b) Refer resolution to formally affirm the City of Pontiac commitment to proceed with 
our endeavor to obtain Redevelopment Ready Community Certification status from Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation (MEDC); and furthermore, that this resolution be sent to 
MEDC as required to the Community Development Subcommittee Meeting. Moved by 
Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-185 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract agreement with North 
American Construction Enterprises for the 50th District Court Renovations at a cost not to exceed 
$1,318,453.00. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Woodward. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a request for proposal for 50th 

District Courthouse Renovations on April 8, 2019 and publically opened bids, and; 
Whereas, the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division has reviewed the subject proposals and; 
Now, therefore, Be It resolved, that the Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to 
enter into a contract with North American Construction Enterprises for the 50th District Court 
Renovations for $1,318,453.00. 

Ayes: Williams, Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-186 Resolution to appeal the Planning Commission's decision and grant a Special 
Designated Distributor License for parcel 64-14-07-483-011, also known as 355 W. Walton Blvd 
from Applicant, Jamal Safidine. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Whereas, the City has received an application for a Special Exception Permit for parcel 64-14-07-483-
011, also known as 355 W. Walton Blvd. from the Applicant, Jamal Safidine, and; 
Whereas, the Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's Special Exception Permit request to sell 
packaged alcoholic beverages with a Special Designated Distributer [SDD] license, in addition to the 
existing Special Designated Merchant [SDM] license for the sale of beer and wine sales, and; 
Whereas, the Planning Division has reviewed the requirements set forth in Section 2.515 of the Zoning 
Ordinance and Section 10.188 of the Pontiac Municipal Code and the Planning Division determined that 
aforementioned request and proposed sale of package liquor does comply with the City of Pontiac Zoning 
Ordinance, and; 
Whereas, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Section 6.302 as it related 
to Special Exception Permit Review Procedures and Requirements, the request has undergone the 
required; technical review, Public Hearing and Planning Commission decision, and; 

5 



May 14, 2019 

Whereas, on November 28, 2018 a Public Hearing was held, the Planning Commission voted to deny the 
request the sale of packaged liquor at 355 W. Walton Blvd., and; 
Whereas, following Section 6.303, [H. Appeals] of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant submitted a letter 
to the Planning Manager Gustafsson within ten days of the Planning Commission decision requesting an 
appeal from the City Council and provided a property line survey from a licensed professional surveyor 
that showed the nearest distance of 515 .16 feet between Marimont Church property line and BP 
gas/convenience building, and; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council for the City of Pontiac appeal the Planning 
Commission decision and grant a Special Designated Distributor license at parcel 64-14-07-483-011, also 
known as 355 W. Walton Blvd. from the Applicant, Jamal Safidine. 

Ayes: None 
No: Woodward, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
Resolution Denied. 

19-187 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to enter into a two-year contract with AUCH for 
Owner Representative Services for the Phoenix Center Restoration at a cost not to exceed 
$357,987~00 will be brought back next week due to awaiting items from the Administration. Moved 
by Councilperson Woodward and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

19-188 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried to bring back item next week. 

Suspend the Rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, waterman, Williams and Woodward 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-189 Motion to remove item #20 Communication from the Mayor regarding Oakland 
County Sherifrs request for more patrol deputies in 2019-2020 from the Agenda. Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Woodward, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Monthly Mayoral Rep01is 

City Credit Card Statement 
(The City Council adopted a resolution that the Mayor will provide the monthly credit card statements for 
the prior month to the City Clerk, to be included in the Pontiac City Council Agenda, the first meeting of 

6 



May 14, 2019 

each month. The City Clerk did not receive the March 2019 or April 2019 statements. This item was 
brought back from the April 9, April 23, April 30, and May 7, 2019 Council Meetings.) 

Check Register for April 2019 was received. 

Eight (8) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Interim City Clerk Garland Doyle, Councilwoman Patrice Waterman, 
Councilwoman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman Gloria Miller, Council 
Pro-Tern Randy Carter and Council President Kermit Williams made closing comments. 

President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 8:51 p.m. 

7 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERTh1 CITY CLERK 



Attachment 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2288 TO PROVIDE FOR THE MAYOR 
TO SUBMIT A PROPOSED TWO-YEAR BALANCED BUDGET TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL FOR CONSIDERATION, TO ESTABLISH MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR 
THE PROPOSED BUDGET DOCUMENT, AND TO REQUIRE THE CITY COUNCIL TO 
ADOPT A BUDGET BY JUNE 9 OF EACH YEAR. 

The City of Pontiac ordains: 

Section 1. Title. 
The title of this ordinance shall be the "Executive Balanced Budget Ordinance." 

Section 2. Definitions. 
a. Balanced Budget - The phrase "balanced budget" shall mean that the total proposed 

expenditures, including an accrued deficit, shall not exceed proposed revenue, including an 
available surplus. 

b. Budget Request Packet The phrase "budget request packet" shall mean the formal 
documents prepared by the Finance Director in which all budget requests shall be justified 
and made by depatiment heads. 

Section 3. Budget Preparation. 
a. On or before March 15 in each year, the Finance Director shall distribute the budget request 

packet to each department head, whom shall return the completed budget request packet to 
the Finance Director on or before April 1 in each year. 

b. On or before April 15 in each year, the Finance Director shall transmit the departmental 
requests to the Mayor, who may revise or alter the estimates, and then shall return a copy of a 
balanced budget as revised to the Finance Director for tabulation on or before May 1 each 
year along with a list clearly indicating the changes the Mayor made in order to arrive at a 
balanced budget. 

c. The Finance Director shall recalculate the balanced budget proposed by the Mayor and shall 
inform the Mayor of any inconsistencies. 

d. On or before May 15 in each year, the Mayor shall submit to the City Council the proposed 
budget and appropriations ordinance for the ensuing two fiscal years and the proposed tax 
rate for the ensuing fiscal year. The proposed budgets shall be balanced. The Mayor shall 
provide a budget message with the proposed budgets that identifies revenues, expenditures, 
and significant revenues and significant expenditures. 

Section 4. The budget document. 
The budget for each fund of the city shall be presented in a format that is readable and 
understandable to the general public and classified by character, object, function, and activity 
consistent with the uniform chart of accounts prescribed by the state treasurer, provided that 
long-term and short-term goals and measurable objectives of the program are clearly identified 
(MCL 141.421 ). The Finance Director shall prepare the budget document and make it available 
to the public during the time the budget is available for public inspection, and shall revise the 

Balanced Budget Ordinance, Page 1 of 5 



document upon adoption of the resolution adopting the budget. The budget document shall 
consist of the following components, not necessarily in the order presented: 

a Part I. Revenues. 
Part I shall contain estimates of all anticipated revenues for the two ensuing fiscal years 
applicable to proposed expenditures. It shall include a summary statement of anticipated 
revenues classified by fund and source; a comparison between revenues actually received 
during the last completed fiscal year, those received and anticipated for the current fiscal 
year, and those anticipated for the next two ensuing fiscal years; the estimated surplus or 
unobligated balance of the current fiscal year, and any additional information required by the 
Mayor. 

b. Part II. Expenditures. 
Part II shall contain estimates of all operating and capital outlay expenditures for the two 
ensuing fiscal years. It shall include a statement of proposed expenditures for all funds 
classified by function. It shall show, in the same classification of expenditure, the 
expenditures of the last completed fiscal year, those anticipated for the cutTent fiscal year, 
estimated expenditures for the budgetary center for the next hvo ensuing fiscal years; it shall 
include as separate items any deficit from the preceding fiscal year that was not included in 
the budget for the current year and any anticipated deficit resulting from operations of the 
CutTent year; and any other additional infmmation required by the Mayor. 

c. Part III. Capital Outlay. 
Pait III shall consist of the capital improvement plan. These recommendations shall be 
accompanied by a statement indicating recommended priorities for projects and shall set 
forth for each project: 

1. the intended use of the land, building, or equipment requested; 

2. the total estimated cost at completion; 

3. appropriations and expenditures made to date; 

4. actual expenditures and encumbrances at the close of the last completed fiscal year; 

5. estimated expenditures and encumbrances for the current fiscal year; 

6. estimates of the amount of money necessary for the next five fiscal years; and, 

7. estimates of annual operating costs, if any, and the method of financing those costs, 
for the next five fiscal years. 

d. Part IV. Supplementary Information. 
Part IV shall consist of the following information, at a minimum, that shall be included at 
some point in the budget document: 

I. a table of contents to assist the reader in locating information; 

2. an explanation of the budget process and accounting procedures followed by the city 
in the preparation of the budget; 

3. a glossary of terminology that may not be readily understood by the average reader; 

4. a community profile; 

Balanced Budget Ordinance, Page 2 ofS 



5. at1-curreut organizational chart that denotes all d9Jllit1J1@ls mid offices and the 
QOsitions in those dcQartments and/or offices within the executive branch and the 
legislative branch; 

6. a list of all contracts, identification of service provided, value of the contract, and 
expiration date of the contract; 

7. a list of all full-time employees, their salaries, the total value of fringe benefits, and 
an indication if the employee could potentially receive a defined benefit pension or 
other post employment benefits upon retirement; 

8. a comparable summary of personnel in each office from the previous fiscal year to the 
ensuing fiscal year and an explanation of proposed changes; 

9. a description of funds subject to appropriation; 

10. a description of activities, services, and functions subject to appropriation; 

11. a ten-year history of property tax levies and taxable value; 

12. a list of outstanding debt obligations of the city; 

13. a description of proposed capital outlays included in the budget as identified in the 
City's capital improvement plan; 

14. a budget message from the Mayor that summarizes its proposed budget and any 
significant changes from previous years; 

15. charts, graphs, graphics, organizational charts, and other data used effectively to 
describe allocations and operations and measure results; 

16. the proposed tax rate to support the budget; 

17. a budget summary of revenues and expenditures; 

18. a proposed general appropriations ordinance; and 

19. additional information that the Mayor deems appropriate. 

Section 5. Budget Adoption. 
!l,_Gfl-ef--~before June 2, the City Council shall authorize and publish a notice of public hearing 

on the proposed budget and tax rate and shall introduce the proposed appropriation ordinance 
at a city council meeting. 

L On or Before June 4, the City Council shall have separate budget hearings with each 
department and/or office of the Executive Branch and each deQartment or office of the 
Legislative Branch. 

& -
b,h The City Council shall not amend the proposed appropriation ordinance or tax rate until after 

the public hearing. The City Council shall be permitted to make unlimited amendments to 
the budget subsequent to the public hearing on the budget and before its adoption. 

g,_B)' J1:1ne 9 anEI-NHo less than six days after the notice of public hearing on the proposed 
budget and tax rate is published and the proposed appropriation ordinance had been 
introduced at a city council meeting, the City Council shall hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget and proposed tax rate. 

Balanced Budget Ordinance, Page 3 of5 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", No bullets or 
numbering 



&.~ By June 9, the City Council ood-shall adopt an appropriations ordinance and tax rate. The 
budget shall be adopted on a line item basis AmetfoHa~-l~asis for expenditures, rather than on 
a depatimental or f\Jnctional -Htle-+tem-basis. 

thf_At the meeting wherein the City Council adopts the appropriations ordinance, the Council 
shall adopt a resolution setting user fees for the ensuing fiscal year. Such fees shall be 
amended or waived by the City Council from time to time during the fiscal year only upon 
recommendation from the Finance Director and Mayor. 

&.g,_ The Mayor shall be allowed to exercise the Mayor's Ms-veto authority as granted by the city 
chatter. 

f!L_During the fiscal year, whenever it appears to the Finance Director that the actual and 
probable revenues in any fond will be less than the estimated revenues upon which 
appropriations from such fund were based, and when it appears that expenditures will exceed 
an appropriation upon which appropriations from such fund were based, the Finance Director 
shall present to the Mayor recommendations to prevent expenditures from exceeding 
available revenues or appropriations for the fiscal year. Such recommendations shall include 
proposals for reducing appropriations, increasing revenues or both. The Finance Director is 
hereby authorized to amend accounts within a line item or dJmilr!mcnt that does not exceed 
Ten Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars. Any budget amendments to a line item or department 
that exceeds Ten Thousand ($10,000.00) must be armroved by the City Council prior to the 
amendment.Ametioos-in-a-Amd.1He--amoflg-4ttnetiofl:HfHrfuHd-durtng--the-fiseal-year--pmvide<l 
that such amendments do not change the total revenues, expenditures, transfers, and other 
uses for the ftmd as approved by the City Couneil. If the total revenues or-the-total 
expenditures, including transfu.rs+n-!lfl&-0Utt1Hcl-other-sour-oos-aHd-uoos-withttHt-stngle-fu11d 
must-be changed, then Ithe Mayor shall present such amendments for depaitments within the 
Executive Bra11ch to the City Council for approval by resolution. The amendments to the 
budget for the Legislative Branch do not have to be presented by the Mayor but still must be 
approved by -to-the-City Council resolution ~val-&y~eA-; Budget amendments 
shall be made by June 30 of each year. 

Section 6. Penalty . 
.1L_Any violation of Sections 3, 4, or 5 by the Mayor shall result in the deduction of one month 

pay for eve1y month or p01tion thereof that the Mayorhe is late in fulfilling the Ms-budget 
preparation duties. 

&b.Any violation of Section 5 (t) by the Mayor shall result in the deduction ofone month pay for 
every month that the Mayor is found to have violated this section of the Ordinance. 

b,.£c Any violation of Sections 3, 4, or 5 by the city council shall result in the deduction of one 
month pay for every month or portion thereof that the council is late in adopting the budget. 

&..\h The retroactive payment of compensation deducted in accordance with this section upon 
fulfillment of duties is expressly prohibited. 

d,~ The city attorney, or any resident of the city, may file a complaint with the district comi to 
enforce this section in the event that a deduction of pay is not made. 

Section 7. Severability. 
This ordinance and the various patis, sections, and clauses are hereby declared severable. If any 
clause, sentence, or paragraph or part of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be adjudged or 
decreed to be invalid by any Comi of competent jurisdiction, such judgment or decree shall not 

Balanced Budget Ordinance, Page 4 of5 



effect, impair, or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance, but such judgment or decree shall be 
confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, or pati thereof, directly involved in 
the controversy in which such judgment or decrees shall have been entered. 

Section 8. Repealer. 
That all ordinances or parts of ordinances, of the City of Pontiac in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

Section 9. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall take immediate effect upon publication thereof after its adoption by the 
City Council. 

Section 10. Publication. 
The Clerk shall publish this Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. 

Section 11. Effective Date. 
This Ordinance shall be effective ten days after date of adoption. The-<ffil.it1anc-e-!lfld/str-flfdtnat1ee 
ame,ulments were adopted-by-the-en1ergeney-ma11ager-with~11-13ffootive-dat~.lu11t-½!'l,20-l*Sherikia+,c 
Hawkins, Clerk of Pot1tine, Michigan,does-hereby-eerttfy-that-the4efgeirlg..eftli1ttlllee-w&.r~ed4f! 
the Oakland County Jsfows on this 19th day of.June 2013. 
&herikia L. Hawkins, City Clerk. 

Balanced Budget Ordinance, Page 5 of 5 





Resolution to Set Public Hearing on the Application from JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC for 

the approval of an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Application Certificate 

Whereas, 

Whereas, 

Whereas, 

Indian Hill Ventures, LLC has submitted an application for an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Certificate to rehabilitate 50 Wayne Street, Pontiac, Ml 48342 into 
a mixed-use development; and 

Application has been sent to the Office of the City Clerk for certification; and 

a public hearing on the establishment of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District was held at a meeting of the Pontiac City Council on Monday, December 
30, 2002 at 7:00 p.m. in the evening; 

Land situated in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, to-wit: 

Commonly known as: 50 Wayne Street, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Tax Parcel Number: 14-29-433-003 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council, direct the City Clerk to 
schedule a public hearing on May 21, 2019 in accordance with the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Act {Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended) for the approval of the Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Application Certificate. 



City of Pontiac 
City Council Memo 

Economic Development 

To: Honorable Mayor Waterman, Council President and City Council 

From: Rachel Loughrin, Director of Economic Development 

Through: Office of the Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

Date: 5-16-19 

RE: Public Hearing for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Certificate Approval 

50 Wayne Street 

Dear Mayor, Council President and City Council Members, 

The request for a public hearing is in accordance with the Obsolete Property 

Rehabilitation Act (PA146 of 2000, as amended) to consider the approval of an 

Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Application {OPRA) Certificate for JBD Indian Hil I 

Ventures, LLC. Tax Parcel Number 14-29-433-003, commonly known as 50 Wayne 

Street, Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC has formally requested the approval of a Brownfield 

and Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Certificate for their Four Million, Three 

Hundred Thousand Dollar renovation of 50 Wayne Street into a mixed use 

development. The Brownfield will run for 26 years and the Certificate approval will 

be granted for a total of 12 years with the option for a claw back of the final six 

years following the first six, should the developer not meet the conditions for job 

creation as stated in Section 6.8 of the development agreement (attached and 

further explained below). 

1. 



The request is that the City Council set a public hearing for May 21, 2019 to vote 

upon .. the OPRA Certificate request as well as vote to concur with the two Oakland 

County resolutions for the Brownfield request. 

The parcel is currently zoned C-2 Downtown, the property is commercially 
developed with a 26,880 square foot vacant office building in an area 

characterized by commercial and warehouse uses. The zoning will remain the same 
and permits the proposed future use. Standard and other historical sources were 
able to document that the property was developed prior to 1888 with a portion of 
the current building in the southwestern portion and a stable in the northeastern 
portion. Several additions were constructed to the original portion of the building 
between the late 1800s and 1940. Additionally, the former eastern portion of the 
building was demolished between 1924 and 1940 and the eastern portion was 
converted to a parking lot. However, a basement under the northeastern portion 

of the property/parking lot remains. The property was occupied by Pontiac Electric 
Light and Power Co. and/or Pontiac Lighting Co. from prior to 1888 until between 
1915 and 1919, and operations included power generation utilizing four dynamos 
and two engines. Fuel sources included coal and fuel oil (stored in a former shed 
located in the northern portion between at least 1909 and 1919), and the 
dynamos and engines were historically located in the western and central portions 
of the building. By 1919, power generation operations had ceased on the property 
and the building was converted to office use. The building was occupied by 

Consumers Power Company and utilized as an office and sales building from at 
least 1919 until 1970. The building was utilized as a multi-tenar:it office space for 
various non-profit, County, and medical organizations as well as by Michigan Bell 
Telephone from at least 1975 until 2014. The building has been vacant since 2014. 

The project will entail a rehabilitation of the current building. Office/retail space 

will be provided on the first floor and on the three floors above, 25 loft-style, 

market rate apartments will be constructed. 

The building will be brought up to code and will receive new utilities including 

electrical and plumbing. A new access stairwell will be installed and the elevator 

will be upgraded. A new heating and cooling system will also be installed, along 

with energy efficient windows and doors. All apartment units will receive new 

kitchen and bathroom cabinetry along with appliances and fixtures. 

Exterior improvements will include balconies or patios for some of the units, 

parking lot improvements to the west adjoining surface lot, and as part of the 

i 



community benefits section of the development agreement the developer will also 

fix all broken, uneven or sinking sidewalk that surrounds the building. 

Section 6.B of the development agreement requires that the developer create 10 

or more full time jobs and report the job creation back to the City at the six year 

anniversary of the OPRA. 

Approximately 30 - 40 temporary construction jobs and approximately 25 full-time 

equivalent jobs associated with the office space and property maintenance will be 

created in connection with this development. 

Upon completion, the redevelopment of this historic building will bring new 

activity and life to a vacant corner of our downtown. The addition of 25 new 

apartments means 25 City of Pontiac residents living in and frequenting the 

establishments in the downtown. 



Michigan Dopartment of Trea,ury 
3074 (Rev. 06-1::1) 

Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption at~ . 
This form ls Issued as provided by Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended. Tills app!lcaUon should be filed afler the talittiheJl lr\1ih/profoJtlw11t 
not receive tax benefits until approved by the Slate Tax Commission. Applications received afier October 31 may ~ol be acted upon In !he current year. 
This appllcatlon Is subjecllo audit by the State Tax Commission. • 'L· .. : • , • , • • · i , • • ;· C.Jt;' 
INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of ihis form and Ula required attachments with the dsrl< of lh~'local gover'rirl1Jnt tihlt. 
(The State Tax Commission requires two copies of the Application and attachments. The original Is r~tained by the clerk,) Please see 
State Tax Commission Bulletin 9 of 2000 for more lnfotmatlon about the Obsolete Property Rehabll[lalion Exemption, The following 
must be provided to the focal government unit as attachments to this application: (a) General de scrlpl!on of the obsolete facility (year 
bulll, original use, rnost recent use, number of stories, square footage); (b) General description of U1e ~ropoi,ed use of the rehabilitated 
facility, (c) Descripllon of the general nature and extent of the rehabllltatlon to be undertaken, (d) A d~scrlp!ive list of the fixed building 
equipment that will be a part of the r ehab!lltated facility, (e) A time schedule for undertaking and completing the rehabllllat Ion of the 
facll!ty, (t) A statement of the economic advantages expected from the exemption. A statement from 'the assessor of the local unit of 
government, describing the required obsolescence has been met for this building, is required with eac\1 application, RehabllilaUon rnay 
oommence after astab!lshment of district. 
Applicant (Company) Name (applicant must bs the OWNER ot tho facility) i 
JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC \ 

Company Mailing nddre$t (N<>, and street, P.O. !lox, City, S!il!~, ZIP Colle} 

300 E Long Lake Road, Suite 280, Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 
Location of obsolete facilily (No. and ot,eet, City, Stele, ZIP Code) 

\ 60 Wayne Street, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
City, Township, Village (!ndlCi1tO Whl<:11) rlUOty ' Pontiac Oakland County 

l 

Date of Commencement of Rehabililation (mmlddlyyyy} Plannod dale of CompleUM I)( Rehabilllatlon School Dl$tl1<:t whor<l facility ls located Qn<lWli sct.ool c<>d!) 

9/1/2019 (mmfddiyyyy) 12/1/2020 

Estimated Cost of Rchablll!aUou Number of years exemption 1equeste<i At!ach legal descflpUon ef Obsoleia Ptoperty on separate 

$3,500,000.00 12 
sheet : 

Expe<)!ed project likelihood (check all U1at apply): \ 

!E:j Jncrease Commercial actMly 0 Retain employment 0 Revitalize urb~n areas 

0 Create employment 0 Prevent a loss of employment ~ lncrease number of residents In lhe 
community In \vhlch the facility ls situated 

lndlcale the number of jobs to be retained or created as a result of rehabilitating !he facility, including expected cQhstructlon employment 55-65 
Each r,•ar, tho Stale 'Treasurer may approvo 25 addition•! reductions o/ half tho school operuting and sta!o educotioo taxes for a pe1k><l not to exceed $1)( yearn. Check u,e 
follow ng box if Y•U wish lo be coosiderod for U1is exdvslon. • \ 
APPLICANT'S CERTIFICATION 
The undersigned, authorized o!Ocer of the company making this app!!callon certifies \hat, to the best of his/Iler knowledge, no !nfonnalion contained 
herein or In the allachmonls horeto Is lalne in any way and that all of Iha Information Is truly descrlpllve of the proper~y lor which this applloallon is being 
submitted. Further, tho undersigned Is aware ilia!, if any statement or lnfom1aUon provided is untrue, (he exemption provided by Public Act 140 of 2000 
may ba In jeopardy, 1 

Tho appllcant certlflos that this application rolatos to a rohabllltatlon proor11rn that, when compl&!<ld, ton~tllutos a rahabllltatod faclllly, as 
dollnod by Public Act 146 of 2000, as amendod, an!I that tho rehabflttat1011 of the facll!ty would not be u11dortaken wfthout the applicant's 
recel1>t Of tho exemption certificate, : 
It Is further certified that !he underQ!gned Is famll!ar w llh the provisions of Public Act 146 of 2000, us amended, of !h'e Mich lg1m Compl!od laws; and lo 
!he best of his/her knowledge and belief, (s)he hns complied or wlll be abll't to comply l'lilh all of lhe requlo:m1enl~ thereof which are prerequlslle to the 
approval of the appllcatlon by lln) local unn of government and U1e issuance of an O bsolole Property Rehabilitation· ExempUon Certificate by the Slate 
Tax Commission. 1 

Name of Company Officer (no authorized agenls) 

JB Davies 
Moiling Address 

300 E Long 

Application Number 

Telephone Number 

(248) 646-4030 

FOR STATE TAX COMMISSION USE 
Date Receive<! 

FaxNumber : 

(248) 646-4598 
Email Address 

laft6Jb@gm~ll.com 
TiUo 

Managing rv,ember 

Date appl:<.:aUon re¢!ilvod 

3 \,(1 

LUp!Code 



3674, Pago 2 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION 
This seo!lon ls to be completed by the clerk of the local govem!119 unll before submi!llng the appllcallon to the State Tax Commission. Include a copy of 
the resolut1011 which approves the appllca!lon and lnstruc!lon Items (a) through (I} on page 1, al\d a separate statement or obsolescence from the 
assessor of record with the State Assessor's Board. All sections must be completed in order to process. 

PART 1: ACTION TAKEN 
i Action Date: _______________ _ 

D Exemption Approved tor ____ Years, ending December 30, ____ (not to:exceed 12 years) 

Ooenled 
Date District Established !LUCI Code 1rhoo! Coda 

PART 2: RESOLUTIONS (tile following statements must be Included In resolutions approving)! 

A statement that the local unit Is a Qual!fied local Govemmontal Unit. 

A statement Iha! !he O bsolete Property Rehabllilal!rm Dls!lict was 
legally established Including the dato established and \he date or 
hearing as provided by section 3 or Publlc Act 140 ol 2000, 

A s!alement lndlcallng w he!her the taxable value of !he property 
proposed lo be exempt plus the aggregate taxable value of property 
already exempt under Public Ac! 146 of 2000 and under Public Act 190 
of 1974 (IFT's) exceeds 5% of the total taxable value of the unit 
A statement of the factors, criteria and obJecllves, If any, necessary !or 
extending the exempUon, when the certificate Is for less than 12 years. 
A statement that a public hearing was held on the application as 
provfded by secUon 4(2) of Public Act 146 of 2000 lncludlng the dale of 
thG hearing, 

A stntemenl that !he appllcanl Is not delinquent in any laxes related to 
!he faclllty. 

If it exceeds 6% (see above), a statement !hat exceeding 5% wlil not 
have the effect of substantially Impeding the operollon of the Qua!Wed 
Local Governmental Unlt or Of Impairing !he financial soundnes1, of an 
affected taxing unit. 

A statement that all of the items desulbed under "Inst.ructions" (a) 
through (I) of !he Application for Obsolete Property Rehabllilation 
Exemption Certilica!e have been provided to the Qualified local 
Governmental Unit by the applicant. 

PART 3: ASSESSOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

A statement thal !he application Is for obsolote property as defined In 
section 2(11) of Public Act 146 of 20oq. 
A statement that lhe commen<;ement or the rehabmtallon ol the facility 
did no! occur before lhe eslablls~ment of the Obsolete Property 
Rehabllltal!on Dlstrlct. , 
A statement lhat Iha application relal~s lo a rehabilita!lon program that 
when completed constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning 
of Public Act 146 of 2000 anti Iha! Is situated w llh!n an Obaolole 
Propeily Rehabltllatlon District esjabllshed In a Q ualifiod Local 
Governmental Unit ellglb!e under Public Act 146 of 2000 lo establish 
such a district. 
A statement that completion of !he rellablllla!ed facllity Is ca!culnted to, 
and will al the time of Issuance of the certllicale, have the reasonable 
llkelihood to, increase commerclal aptlvily, create employmenl, retain 
employment, prevent a loss of employ men!, revitalize u1ban areas, or 
Increase the number of residents In the communlly In which the fac!llty 
Is situated, The statement shoul cl indicate whfch of these the 
rehabilitation is likely to result fn. 
A statement that the rehabllltatlon Includes Improvements aggregallng 
10% or more of tho true cash value or the property at commencement 
of the rehabllllatlon as provided by secllon 2(1) ol Public Act 146 of 
2000. 
A slatemenl of the period of time authorized by the Quolifled Local 
Governmental Unit lo, complellon of the rehab!lllalion. 

Provide the Taxable Value and State Equalized Value of the Obsolete Property, as provided In Publlo Act 146 of :woo, M amende(l, for the tax year 
lmmedlatoly preceding tho effective date al the certificate (December 31st of the year approvo(l by the STC), 

Taxable Value State EqualizediValue (SEV) 

Build!ng(s) I 
Namll of Governmental Unit Data of Aqtkm on application I Dli,to of Sia lenient of Obso!escenco 

PART 4: CLERK CERTIFICATION 
'file undersigned clerk certifies !hat, to tile best of his/ho, kno1\fodge, no information conlalned herein or In the attach11ients hereto ls false In any way, 
Further, U1e underslgnod Is aware Iha! if any lnforrnallon provided Is untrue, the exemption provided by Public Act 146 of 2000 may be in jeopardy. 
Namo or Cler'~ Clerk Signature Date 

Cletk's Malling Address City Slate IZlPCooe 

' 
ielephona Numoor I Fax Number T"mail Addr~s• 

Mail complotad appllcat!on nnd altaohmonte to; Michigan Department of Treasury 
State Tax Commission 
P.O. Box 30471 
Lansing, Michigan 48909-7971 

ff you haw any queslkin$, call (517) 373•2408. 

For guaranteed receipt by the Stato Tax Commission, It Is rocommom.led that applications and altnchments arci sent by c:ertlflod mall. 



April 1, 2019 

Pontiac City Council 
City Hall 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

JBD Indian HIii Ventures, LLC 

RE: Request for the Establishment of an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) 
Certificate at 50 Wayne Street, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
for JSD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC 

Honorable City Council: 

Please accept this letter as a request to establish an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act 
(OPRA) Certificate for the property located at 50 Wayne Street, Michigan 48342, which is 
referred to herein as the "Property" and described on Attachment A. The Property will be 
rehabilitated by the petitioner and current owner, JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC. The property is 
located in an existing OPRA District. 

Company and Project Synopsis 

JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC (the "Developer'') is a partnership between JB ,Davies and Fred 
Blechman. JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC was founded in 2018 and is managed by both JB 
Davies and Fred Blechman. JB Davies has spent his entire career In real estate, beginning as a 
Tax Specialist in 1983. From humble beginnings, in 1993 JB Davies was named in the "40 
Under 40" issue of Grain's Detroit Business and recognized by Detroit Monthly Magazine among 
75 individuals who have or will have an influence on the future of the City of Detroit. His work 
since 1996 has consisted of acquiring and developing commercial properties. Fred Blechman 
had a vision in 197 4 while working in his father's hardware store. He followed that vision which 
led to the creation of Management Supply Company (MSC), an apartment supply company he 
founded in Michigan. After years of success, MSC was sold to a company seeking to create a 
national distribution network. Entering real estate for himself following the sale of MSC, Fred 
Blechman began purchasing and redeveloping real estate throughout metro-Detroit. In 2003, 
Creative Urbane was formed for the purpose of purchasing, renovating, and marketing tile 
properties under the Urbane Apartments brand. They have completed 15 properties to-date and 
are currently redeveloping a building in midtown-Detroit. 

The project, which Is in an approved Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District (OPRD) contains 
a single approximately 0.29 acre parcel at 50 Wayne Street and is bounded by West Lawrence 
Street to the south, Wayne Street to the west, the property line to the north, and the alley 
between North Saginaw Street and Wayne Street to the east. The project Is located In the heart 
of downtown Pontiac with access to the Amtrak ral!way and Greyhound bus station just over 
one-quarter mile southwest at Pontiac Station, as well as many fixed SMART Bus routes within 
walking distance. The property is occupied by a vacant 4-story office building totaling 
approximately 26,880 square feet Including the basement level. The building has been vacant 
since 2014 and currently remains uninhabitable. 

The 50 Wayne project will entail the rehabilitation of the current building into first floor 
office/retail space with 25 edgy loft.style apartments on floors two through four. Historical 



Request for Establishment of ati Obsolete Property Rehahllitat/011 Certificate at 
50 Wayne Street, Pontiac Ml 48342 

for JBD l11dla11 HIii Ventures, LLC 

features such as the granite f!oors and motd-work ceilings will be preserved where possible, and 
abstract expressionism artwork wm be portrayed throughout the hallways. 

As part of the rehabilitation, the building will receive new utilities including electrical and 
plumbing, new energy efficient heating, cooling and ventilation systems, new energy efficient 
windows and doors, construction of balconies or patios for certain units, kitchen and bathroom 
cabinetry, appliances and fixtures, elevator upgrades, a new access stairwell for the upper and 
lower units, and repairs to the building structure as needed. The structure will also be brought 
up to code per ADA and Fire requirements, which may include and ADA lift and fire 
suppression/alarm system if deemed required. 

Additionally, the Developer intends to make improvements to tile west adjoining suIiace parking 
lot for resident and tenant parking, however, those parcels are not it1eluded within this request. 

The Necessity for Tax Relief 

Substantial Investment is necessary to rehabilitate the area into a viable, long-term 
development Additionally, the property currently contains a dilapidated and damaged building 
that wHI require repair and selective demolition with the propetiy rehabilitation. The overall 
internal rate of return for the proposed development will be extremely low without the receipt of 
the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation CeIiificate, and therefore, the development would not be 
possible without It 

The costs associated with the rehabilitation require multiple capital sources including equity 
contributed by JBD lndian Hill Ventures, LLC Members as we!! as an interim construction loan, 
and upon completion, a long-term loan product. In order to secure this financing and future 
tenants, the operating costs of the proposed renovations and redevelopment of the project need 
to be kept as low as possible (including property taxes). 

The proposed Development included within the request will result in approximately 30-40 
construction jobs and approximately 25 full-time equivalent (FTE) job associated with the office 
space and property maintenance. 

PA 146 Request 

A 12-year abatement is being requested. 

Economic Advantages of the Rehabilitation 

Upon completion, the Development will return an obsolete property to productive use and will 
increase residential density in an area characterized by vacant buildings and disinvestment. 
Activation of this property will spur further growth and act as a catalyst for further redevelopment 
of numerous vacant and blighted properties along the West Lawrence, Wayne, and North 
Saginaw corridors and the surrounding neigl1borhoods, providing spinoff consumer spending in 
an area of downtown that is currently trying to reestablish itself. 

The granting of the OPRA tax abatement will not result in any fewer taxes to the City of Pontiac 
111 the shorHenn or long-term. On a short-term basis, approximately 30-40 construction jobs will 
be created. The general contractor (GC), Urbane Management and Creative Urbane 
Development, will perform the contracting work for tills project Metro-Detroit based, the GC 

2 



l~equest for EstAbllshment of an Obsolete Property Rehabllltatlon Cerllflcate at 
50 Wayne Street, Pontiac Ml 48342 

for JBD lndlan HIii Ventures, LLC 

insures locally sourced contractors and workers benefit from the redevelopment. The GC has 
also reached out to local contractors to inquire about providing references for other Pontiac 
based trades that could provide services for this development. 

Upon successful redevelopment, the Development will create approximately 25 FTE jobs 
related to the management and maintenance and from the first floor office/retail space 
expected. These new jobs, along with any new residents living at the development, will generate 
increased income taxes for the City of Pontiac. 

Following expiration of the 12-year abatement, the build!ng will deliver a significant increase In 
tax revenue. Over time, the successful redevelopment and cultural growth will serve as a 
catalyst for additional investment within this downtown neighborhood. 

Closing 

JBD Indian HIil Ventures, LLC is a paIinership between seasoned real estate professionals with 
extensive experience in multi-family investments and redevelopments throughout metro-Detroit. 

Members of the Development team have reached out to City Council members, local 
businesses and focal contractors in Pontiac regarding the project and have received extremely 
positive feedback. 

The team is looking forward to pursuing this redevelopment and creating a community space in 
the heart of Pontiac's downtown neighborhood. 

Attachment A: Detailed Project Description 

3 

Respectfully Submitted, 

JB Davies 
Managing Partner 
JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC 



Attachment A 

Detailed Project Description 



General Description 

The proposed Development is located at the Intersection of Wayne Street and West Lawrence 
Street in downtown Pontiac. The property is loosely bounded by West Lawrence Street to the 
south, Wayne Street to the west, the property line to the north, and the alley between North 
Saginaw Street and Wayne Street to the east. The property consists of one parcel, which is 
outlined in the map below. 

be found at the end of this attachment. 

The property is occupied by a 4-story office 
building totaling approximately 26,880 square 
feet including the basement level. The building 
has been vacant since 2014 and currently 
remains uninhabitable. The proposed project 
currently consists of a complete building 
rehabilitation to create 25 residential apartment 
units. The Developer intends to make 
improvements on the west adjoining surface 
parking lot for resident and tenant parking, 
however, those parcels are not included within 
this request. 

The associated address and parcel 
identification number can be found below and a 
copy of the corresponding legal description can 

Attachment A 
Page 1 of 4 



Description of Proposed Use 

The proposed redevelopment will create additional housing and increased residential density in 
the heart of downtown Pontiac that has been behind the curve for investment and redevelopment, 
and will entail the rehabilitation of the current building into first floor office/retail space with 25 
edgy loft-style apartment units on the second through fourtt, floor. Each unit will include modern, 
open floor plans with custom cabinetry for cozy living and restored historical features where 
applicable. The proposed redevelopment will include approximately 5,000 square feet of office 
space on the first floor. 

The developers will seek to install landscape per city requirements for surface lots. The developer 
will also seek to provide some common gym and laundry amenities within the building. 

Nature and Extent of the Rehabilitation 

As part of the rehabilitation, the building will receive new utilities including electrical and plumbing, 
new energy efficient heating, cooling and ventilation systems, new energy efficient windows and 
doors, construction of balconies or patios for certain units, new kitchen and bathroom cabinetry, 
appliances, and fixtures, elevator upgrades, a new access stairwell for the upper and lower units, 
and repairs to the building structure as needed, and may include stabilization efforts, brick repair, 
and other activities to honor the building's historic appearance. The structure wlll also be brought 
up to code per ADA and Fire requirements, which may include and ADA lift and fire 
suppression/alarm system If deemed required. 

Existing building located at 50 Wayne Street 

Attachment A 
Page 2 of 4 



The Development will create residential tenant spaces which are both historic and modern, with 
abstract expressionism artwork throughout. These developments are necessary components 
crucial to attrac1ing resident and visitor interest along with investment in this blighted area of 
Pontiac. 

JBD Indian Hill Ventures, LLC intends to apply for a 12-year real property tax abatement under 
the provisions of an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act tax abatement. 

Descriptive List of the Fixed Building Equipment/Renovations 

Renovations and new fixed building equipment and materials for the project include; 

• Masonry; restoration activities associated with the existing building 
• Carpentry; including framing, kitchen cabinetry, vanities, trim work 
• Thermal and Moisture Protection; roofing system, caulking and sealing, waterproofing 
• Doors and Windows; exterior doors, interior doors/frames/hardware 
• Fire alarm/suppression system if required per City code. Developers are working with 

City/Fire Marshal to identify requirements currently. 
• Mechanical; plumbing and HVAC 
• Electrical; electrical work, security system, and communications 
• Finishes; drywall and steel studs/insulation, hard lite, hardwood/LVT flooring, painting 
• Specialties; ADA Lift (If required), fire extinguishers, toilet accessories, and stainless 

steel appliances. 

Total construction hard cost investment is estimated at $3.5 million. 

Time Schedule 

Construction activities are anticipated to commence In the fall of 2019. Construction completion 
is anticipated for late in the fourth quar1er of 2020. 

Attachment A 
Page 3 of 4 



Statement of Economic Advantages 

The proposed Development will bring needed investment into an area of downtown Pontiac 
characterized by vacant buildings and disinvestment. The Development will increase residentlal 
density in the blocks of downtown that are characterized by vacancy and have the perception of 
being unsafe. Activation of this property will spur further growth and act as a catalyst for future 
redevelopment of numerous vacant and blighted properties along the West Lawrence, Wayne, 
and North Saginaw corridors and the surrounding neighborhoods, providing spinoff consumer 
spending in an area of downtown that is currently trying to reestablish itself, 

Upon successful redevelopment, the Development will generate increased income taxes, through 
the new jobs and residents that the project will create. 

On a short-term basis approximately 30-40 construction jobs will be created. The general 
contractor (GC) has several metro-Detroit based contractors that they have used in the past and 
that they have requested bids from to ensure Pontiac-based contractors and workers benefit from 
the redevelopment. The GC has also reached out to Pontiac contractors with to inquire about 
providing references for other Detroit based trades that could provide services for this 
development. 

On a long-term basis the proposed redevelopment associated with the Development will create 
approximately 25 FTE jobs one full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs associated with property 
maintenance and within the office space. The apartments are anticipated to house an estimated 
39 residents. Based on the targeted end uses ii Is anticipated that two-thirds will be new residents 
to Pontiac. It is anticipated the City of Pontiac will collect income taxes from these residents at a 
value greater than the value of this tax abatement request. 

Additionally, there will be other indirect benefits such as spin off spending in the City that will 
contribute to the economic benefits produced by this investment. It will further help meet the 
demand for housing in Pontiac, witl1 a reported 2.6% vacancy rate across metro-Detroit (Grain's, 
5/13/17) and a desperate need for investment into the City. Indeed, investments in the community 
such as this that will have long-term effects and provide sustainable principals will retain and 
foster local talent that is vita! to securing the City's economic future. 

Following expiration of the 12 year abatement the building will deliver a significant increase in tax 
revenue. Over time, the successful redevelopment and cultural growth will have a catalyst effect 
within this downtown neighborhood. 

Legal Description 

Parcel Number: 64-14-29-433-003 
Address: 50 Wayne Street 
Acres: 0.29 

Legal Description: 
T3N, R10E, SEC 29 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. ·t13 LOT 3 

Attachment A 
Page 4 of 4 



ST,£\ TE OF MICHIGAN) 
CITY OF PONTIAC) 
COUMTY OF GAl<LAND} 

AFFIDAVIT 

NOW COME David M. Hieber and Jane Walsh, of Oakland County Equalization, bo!h being first duly sworn, depose and 
state as follows: 

I, David M. Hieber, MMAO (4), am the Assessor for lhe City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan and make this affidavit 
in conjunction with an application under the Obsolete Property Rehabili!al!on Act (OPRA), PA 146 of :woo, as amended, for 
a commercial building and land improvemen1s localed at 50 Wayne Street, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan. The 
related parcel identified as follows: Parcel No. 64-14-29-433-003. 

I, Jane Walsh MAAO (3), did on M11rch 20, 2019 Inspect the above referenced parcel In the City of Pontiac and issue the 
following opinion: 

It Is my expert opinion that the commercial office building found on the above referenced property is functionally obsolete as 
defined in MCL 125.2$52 of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act. Based on the functional inu(ility, which is defined as 
an Impairment of the functional utility of a property or building according lo market tastes and standards; equivalent to funcHonal 
obsolescence because ongoing change makes the plan, form, style, design, layouts, or features obsolete. (Appraisal lnstitule's 
Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal Fifth £dftlon). 

The current building is a four-story, 26,880 square foot office building with basement foundation. The entire building has 
suffered from extensive differed maintenance over the last ten years. All Interior floors are in extremely poor condition. Prior 
owner left many areas unfinished and in post-demolition condition. Plies of construc!ion debris including lnsulatlon, ceiling 
!lies, and plaster are left exposed throughout the building. The entire structure will require repair or replacement of interior 
walls, noorlng, ceiling tiles, lighting and windows. All mechanicals, Including heating and cooling, fire suppression, elevator 
and electrical system, require upgrading and/or replacement. Some of the building contains asbestos which will require 
assessment and removal. The basement foundation has sustained water damage and as a result currently has areas of 
mold which will require remediation. All parking areas require resurfacing arid remarking. 

In the opinion of the Assessor, because of the many building deficiencies Including overall condition, mechanical systems 
and parking repair, combined with possible asbestos and mold remediation, Iha property suffers more than 50% functional 
obsolescence. 

I, David M. Hieber, after inquiry and review of the findings of Jane Walsh. as well as, review of records of the Clty of 

Pontlao related to this property find lhe above property functionally obsolete. /;. /(_.·.t) ll , •.. 

Further deponents sayelh not / t/~ ( """ 
David M. Hieber 

Jane Walsh 

t;\ 

,-l--'\.!""":.<..L~-+-LL.-1-\L'-,W","-"'l \ 

Oakland County, Michigan . 
My Commission Expires: (+, \l\ ,),'_} 
Acting in the County of Oakland 



LIC 
RI 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

CDBG DESCRIPTION CHANGE 
ADVERTISEMENT 

Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
requirements a Public Hearing will be held by the City of Pontiac on Tuesday, May 21, 2019, 6:00 
p.m. at 47450 Woodward Ave., to receive written and verbal comment regarding the 
reprogramming of federal CDBG funds as follows: 

Existing - 2016 Program Year 
Activity Number 731696 
Name Senior Center 
Description Replace air conditioning systems at Ruth Peterson Senior Center and 

Robert Bowens Senior Center 

Proposed - 2016 Program Year 
Activity Number 731696 
Name Senior Center 
Activity Description Replace deck at Robert Bowens Senior Center 

Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs, including handicap accessibility or 
interpreter, will be made upon receiving 72-hour advance notice. Contact Garland Doyle, Interim 
City Clerk, at (248) 758-3200 for special services. 





Be it further resolved that the Pontiac City Council schedules a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac's Proposed Annual 

Budget for FY 2019-2020 and City Tax Rate for Tuesday, June 4, 2019 in the Pontiac City Council Chambers at 6 p.m. 





C 
Auch Construction 
Innovative Planners & Construction Managers 
Since 1908 

May 16, 2019 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
CITY CLERK 
Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

65 University Drive 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
P (248} 334-2000 
F (248} 334-3404 
www.auchconstruction.com 

RE: Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater Renovation Project 
RFQ for Owner's Representative Services 
Modified for City's Request for Additional Services 

Dear Mr. Doyle, 

In response to the May 7 request of both City Council and Mayor Waterman, we are pleased to present our 
modified proposal which provides a not to exceed amount for preconstruction services (in accordance with our 
original proposal dated April 1, 2019) and the development of renderings and visualization illustrating the 
character of the renovation of the Phoenix Center and the potential impact on surrounding properties. 

We have attached the detailed cost information which supports the not to exceed amount of $283,482. The not 
to exceed amount is based on a 2X multiplier referenced in note #4 of our original proposal. The multiplier 
would be activated in the event AUCH does not participate in the Construction Phase of the project. 

Consistent with our original proposal and as presented at the May 7, 2019 City Council Meeting, AUCH will 
invoice on a monthly basis for services incurred. The City has the right to end services at any time in 
accordance with the AIA A 134 - 2009 Contract at which time AUCH will prepare a final invoice based on actual 
hours expended and costs. 

Attached to this letter are; 

• Revised summary of planning and preconstruction and rendering costs dated May 15, 2019 
• Scope of Services for planning and preconstruction and rendering development dated May 16, 2019 
• HED's proposal dated May 13, 2019 
• Copy of AUCH's original summary of costs dated April 1, 2019 
• Timelines for Program/Construction Management Services and Development of Renderings dated May 

16,2019 
• City of Pontiac and AUCH Construction Contract Dated May 16, 2019 

Upon City Council approval, we request that we be issued a letter of intent so we can start work immediately, we 
expect to meet with the City's representative to work together to finalize contracts by May 24, 2019. 

We look forward to the opportunity to review our proposal with you and discuss how we can work together with 
the City of Pontiac .imd others to make this project as successful as possible. 

/,} 

Sin,1erely, 1,.:>·· 
II ~ II 

LC .. H···/,7'° truction 
,l,,v '1 

i~ Deleonardis 
President 

CC: Jim Munchiando -AUCH Construction 
Gerry McClelland -AUCH Construction 

A Second Century of Building Trust 



Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater Renovation Project 
May 16, 2019 

EXHIBIT A 

Confirmation of the availability of funds for Preconstruction and Rendering Services 

Demonstrate the availability of funds in the amount that covers the Phoenix Center Renovation Project design 
services estimated at $1,500,000 prior to the issuance of the RFP for design professional services anticipated 
on our about July 15, 2019 

Inclusion of the Phoenix Center Renovation Timeline in the Contract 

Establishment of a budget in-line with the recommendations of the consultants reports and surveys included in 
the City's RFP to order to achieve a complete restoration of the Phoenix Center facility 

Hold Harmless from any claims from Ottawa Tower II, LLC 

Use of AIA A 134-2009 and General Conditions A207 - 2007 



City of Pontiac, Phoenix Center 

I Construction 

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
Estimates Management Reimbursable (26 weeks; 5/15/19 -11/15/19; 6 Months} - Per Oriainal Pro• osal Dated April 1, 2019 
Proiect Executive 
Preconstruction Estimate Providinq 
M & E Estimate 
Corporate Safety Director 
Project V.P./Director (Jim Munchiando) 
Project Senior Manaoer 
Project Engineer/ Scheduler 
Vehicle Cost & Mileaqe/PD, PM, PE 
Mobile Phones/PD, PM, PE 

Additional Request By City for Vision Plan 

Vision Plan B HED See attached Proposal for HED 
Pro·ect Director 

Included in Fee 
432 

Included above 
Included in Fee 

104 
416 
235 

6 
6 

LS. 
64 

Administrative Services 

Insurance Program 

Program Management Fee 

$135.00 
$100.00 
$100.00 
$115.00 
$112.00 
$100.00 

$65.00 
$175.00 
$125.00 

$112.00 

Payment & Performance Bond if requin 

UNIT TOTAL 

Hour Included in Fee 
Hour $43,200 
Hour Included above 
Hour Included in Fee 
Hour $11,648 
Hour $41,600 
Hour $15,275 

Mo $1,050 
Mo $750 

Subtotal $113,523 

$15,000 
Hour $7,168 

Subtotal $135,691 
0.40% $543 --------$136,234 
0.50¾ _______ $6_8_1_ 

$136,915 
2.50% $3,423 ------------,-~ $140,338 

1 ¾ $1,403.38 
-----$-14-1-,7-4_1_ 

If Owner selects not to pursue construction activities with AUCH Construction, then a not to exceed 2x multiplier will apply to Planning & Precon. (2 times Mult.) $283,482.371 

5/15/2019 



City of Pontiac 

Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater Renovation Project 

1. SCOPE of SERVICES 

A. General Requirements 
1) Provide a monthly report to the City containing (a) the status of the Project; (b) 

Project control budget status through the date of the report; (c) a comparison of 
the Project schedule to the work actually completed through the date of the report; 
(d) any revision to the Project schedule or Project budget made during the time 
period covered by the report; (e) a summary of change orders made during the time 
period covered by the report; (f) a list of all pending change orders and all 
outstanding issues requiring action or approval by Owner; (g) the status of any 
governmental requirements (Permits only) and activities required to facilitate 
approval of the Project; and (h) any other reports concerning the Project as the City 
may reasonably request. 

2) Program /Construction Manager (AUCH Construction) shall be available for 
questions and follow up either by telephone or via in-person site meetings with City 
Staff as the circumstances require. 

3) Program /Construction Manager (AUCH Construction), shall help to develop positive 
working relationships with and among the City, A & E firm(s), trade contractors, and 
consultants. 

4) Provide Phoenix Center Vision Plan per HED Proposal. 

B. Architect/Engineer Selection 

1) Develop interest, prepare list of qualified firms for City's review, and develop RFP 
for design professional services utilizing recent consultant's reports, studies and 
survey, and specific project requirements. 

2) Participate in interviews of A & E firms and give input on qualification of firm(s). 
3) Assist the City with final determination of award of A & E firm(s). 
4) Assist the City in processing AIA contract documents between the City and A & E 

firm(s). 
5) Trade contractor selection process, bidding, and project execution will be 

included in Phase II of Program/Construction Management Services; this part of 
the service will need to be approved by the City Council November 12, 2019. 

Scope of Services Page 1 of 3 May 16, 2019 



City of Pontiac 
Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater Renovation Project 

C. Design & Pre-Construction Services Oversight 
Provide professional expertise and leadership by reviewing, analyzing, and presenting 
options for the design of the repair and renovation of the Phoenix Center Parking 
Garage and Amphitheater through the schematic and design development process. 
Program /Construction Manager (AUCH Construction) will continue working with A & E 
firm(s) to provide professional expertise to the City during the design development and 
construction documentation process. Activities shall include the following as reasonably 
required to complete the project: 

1) Work with the A & E firm(s), AUCH Construction, City staff, administration and 
community stakeholders to aid in the creation of a building needs analysis. For 
comparison purposes respondents should plan on 10 meetings which may 
include (2) meetings in the evening. These meetings will allow all involved to 
gain an understanding of the business processes and operations and help 
identify the strengths and limitations of the existing building to allow for an 
informed design. 

Z) Participate in a design community showcase (which will be in the evening). 
3) Review and advise the City regarding Project schedule, arranging the time 

required for the design development, bidding, construction, and move-in and 
start-up phases 

4) Monitor architect's progress through the design process 
5) Attend progress meetings and produce meeting minutes. 
6) Assist in the selection of finishes (carpeting, wall coverings, and lighting) 
7) Compare and establish control budget of preliminary design to Project budget 
8) Review design for consistency with original Project scope 
9) Assist the A & E firm(s), and any information from subcontractors or other 

vendors in the ongoing value-engineering process to identify alternative 
construction methods or materials, reducing cost and/or construction time 

10) Assist in providing multiple constructability reviews and assist the A & E firm(s), 
and any subcontractors in the process of preparing cost analyses. 

11) Perform budget and schedule updates as necessary. 
12) Monitor and advise the City regarding the A &E firm services to provide City 

staff with determination of probable construction costs (cash flow) and phasing. 
13) Assist in identifying major long lead equipment such as air handling units, 

network infrastructure, electrical transformers, etc. 
14) Monitor trade, labor and construction market trends that could impact the cost 

or schedule for the project. 
15) Assess material and labor availability in the local marketplace and evaluate 

alternative systems and building products. 
16) Identify material in order to preorder items requiring long lead times for 

delivery 
17) Review A & E firm(s), invoices on behalf of the City and make recommendations 

for payment. 

Scope Services Page 2 of 3 2019 



City of Pontiac 
Phoenix Center Parking Garage and Amphitheater Renovation Project 

18) Advise and recommend the City staff and A & E regarding the preparation and 
dividing of proposal packages for all trades & services related to demolition & 
construction, determining trades that are sole source and determining trades 
that are covered under existing City agreements 

19) All proposals will be received by the City of Pontiac Clerk's Office and opened in 
the Lion's Den Conference Room 

20} Review proposals with the City on A & E firms(s) as necessary, prepare 
evaluation sheet and assist in any post proposal interviews, determine the 
responsiveness and responsibility of proposers and recommend award. 

21} Provide Construction Phase Program/Construction Management Services in 
accordance with the Contract and Proposal Dated April 1, 2019 

Vince Deleonardis 
President and CEO 

Scope of Services Page 3 of 3 

May 16, 2019 
Date 

18,2019 



Pontiac Phoenix Center 
Proposal for Vision Plan 

May 13, 2019 





1--iED 
r N 

May 13, 20 l '.J 

Mt. Vince D,,)LeonMdis 

Pros1dent 

AUCH Construction 

65 University Drive 

Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Dear Mr. Deleonardis, 

'r 

Cities are periodically presented with a need to act in tile development ot physical places to improve 

the quality of life of the community and inspire other~, to consider developing or moving there. 

While city leadership may understand the need tor that invcstrnont, ;i vision ol the, ftJlUre 1mpi:lct of 

that investrnent 1s usually key to achieving support and activating participation. This rnay CE'rlainly 

be the case as you, with the City of Pontiac, now beg111 to shape a project for the renovation and 

reactrvatron of the Phoenix Center. 

In support of your goals, HED is pleased to present our Jpproach and proposal fo r the developrnent 

of images to portray a possible future for the Phoenix Center and 1t:; surroundings, 

All the best, 

am s F. Meredith LEED AP 

oc1ate Pn11cipa/, Stvd10 Leadership 

8eate11 Chicago D• II•• D1ttrolt 

Loa Angel•• lacr• manto Ian 01• 110 Ian Francisco 





PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
In preparation of its proposal, AUCH has asked HED for a proposal to develop renderings 

illustrating the future potential of the Phoenix Center and its surroundings as a result of 
the City's investment to create the infrastructure required to support private investments 

in the City. 

PROJECT APPROACH 

HED, in coordination with AUCH and the City of Pontiac, will prepare up to three renderings 
illustrating the character of the renovation of the Phoenix Center and the potential impact 
on surrounding properties. These will illustrate both the architectural character of the area 

as well as depict the nature of the public's experience there. 

HED recognizes that there is a history of thinking about the Phoen ix Center and its place in 

serving the community. HED will approach its work with an understanding and apprec1at1on 
of that past work and the City's more recently framed goals and objectives. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
HED will develop these renderings and visualizations for the future of Phoenix Center over 
a three week period after your acceptance of this proposal and authorization to proceed. 

This three week period w il l be composed of the following key act ivities -

SUMMARY OF SERVICES below, Please see attached for more information see attached 

Week One --.- Review background documents and recent studies to understand the 
potentials of the site and the City's goals and objectives. 

Week Two - Generate alternative visions for the redevelopment of the property including 
site plans, diagram and rough sketches. 

Week Three - Development of up to three renderings based on the general and specif ic 
directions provided in AUCH's review of the products of Week Two. 

PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION 
HED proposes to provide the described services for a professional compensation of 
$15,000.00 [Fifteen Thousand Dollars). 





PHOENIX CENTER VISION PRELIMINARY PROPOSED WORK PLAN 

Week 1 (3 days) Week 2 (5 days) Week 3 (5 days) Week N (2 days) 

Key dates Week ot 5/14/2019 Week of 5/21/2019 Week ot 5/28/2019 Week ot 6/5/2019 
!Tuesdays) 

Purpose Develop analysis and Obtain concurrence and Obtain final comments Present ''final" vision 
obtain concurrence on specific direction on and directions on concepts 
key "background" concept development concepts and form of 
conditions presentation 

Key deliverables Preliminary findings/ Emerging concept Final concept Presentation of vision 
guiding planning alternatives vtsuallzations/ draft 
principles presenta11on 

Activities Proposal presented and Prepare materials for Prepare and present initial Present final vision 
approved by city design workshop concept documents 

Project ignition meeting Convene a half-day design Finalize modes of 
(Auch, HED) workshop (Auch, HED, visualization and 

invited others) presentation 

Gather and analyze Workshop agenda Finalize renderings and 
relevant documents Present and discuss supporting materials 

background maps, findings 
drawings Agree on scope of 
prior reports and planning visualization 
studies Generate and test 

alternative sketch 
concepts 

Identify, coordinate key Develop preliminary Support development of 
constituents sketches final related information 

informal conversations Context analysis and data (function, form, 
re concerns and Site plans economy, time) 
aspirations, other Buildings and event 
subjects scales and 

descriptions 

Identify planning Review preliminary sketch 
parameters concepts with key 

Commitments made stakeholders 
Values alignments 
Policies 
Goals, aspirations 

Collect examples from Support development of 
experience and research relevant and related 
illustrating approaches and information and data 
potentials from other (function, form, economy, 
projects and places time) 

Prepare a preliminary Prepare an initial concept 
findings "report" (what we presentation 
know that will guide the 
visualization of potentials) 

Meetings Project Ignition meeting lntetviews, reviews with Informal review meetings Fin.ii presentation to City 
(Auch, HED) key stakeholders (?) Presentation to key 

Design workshop stakeholders (Mayor, 
others?) 





GENERAL CONDITIONS 
Payments 
Invoices for our services are submitted every month for the portion of services completed. Payments 

are due and payable once a month by AUCH Construction (151 days from the date of Owner's receipt 

of a correct and accurate monthly invoice. AUCH Construction shall notify HED within a reasonable 

time from receipt of invoice of any such errors that would delay payment. Amounts unpaid (45) days 

after the receipt of the invoice date shall bear interest at the following rate: The Wall Street Journal 

composite prime rate, as published in its Money Rates section from time to time, plus five percent 

{5%) per annum. 

Insurance 

HED carries both general business and architect's and engineer's professional liability insurance 

coverage for the protection of both our firm and our clients. We would be pleased to share the details 

of said coverage if you so request. 

Termination, Suspension or Abandonment 
In the event that this project 1s either terminated, suspended or abandoned by the client, we requ ire 

seven (7) days notice from the cltent and payment for services performed and costs incurred up to 

the termination effective date. 

Hazardous Materials 

HED does not have specialized expertise in the specifying of treatment and / or handling of new 

and/ or existing asbestos-containing, asbestos-contaminated, or other hazardous materials, above 

or below surface, and our professional liability insurance policy does not include coverage of these 

services. Therefore, HED cannot provide these services. It is our understanding that the Michigan 

Regional Council of Carpenters will retain, if necessary, a qualified industrial hygienist and I or 

contractor to provide these services. 

Dispute Resolution 

HED believes that the use of Alternate Dispute Resolution (ADR) methods work to the best interest 

of both parties, in the event that a dispute should arise pertaining to the contract performance of 

either or both parties. Our firm actively advocates the use of AD R methods including mandatory 

informal negotiations, mediation and binding arbitration. We will suggest various ADR methods and 

contract clauses in the final form of contract to be used, upon acceptance of this proposal. 

Claims, disputes or other matters in question between the parties to this Agreement arising out 

of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof shall be subject to and decided by informal 

negotiations between authorized representatives of the parties, followed by mediation if the informal 

negotiations are not successful. Mediation shall be conducted in accordance with the Construction 

Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect at the time the request for 

mediation is made by either party. In the event that the parties are not successful in resolving the 

dispute by mediation, then such disputes shall be subject to and decided by arbitration conducted in 

accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association 

in effect at the time the demand for arbitration is made by either party. The place of the arbitration 

hearings shall be at the offices of the American Arbitration Association in Southfield, Michigan unless 

otherwise mutually agreed by the parties. The award rendered by the arbitrator(sl shall be final and 

binding and enforceable in any court of competent Jurisdiction. 





1-iED 
WWW.HED.DESIGN Advancing Your World 

Acceptance 
We suggest that if this proposal-agreement meets w ith your approval and you choose to award 

this project to HED, this proposal-agreement letter will serve as the contract between HED and 

AUCH Construction. To consummate this agreement and to grant us authorization to begin our 

services, please have an authorized individual sign the Acceptance, retain one signed copy of the 

proposal for your records and forward the other signed copy to us, This proposal-agreement will be 

considered valid for sixty (60) days from date of issue. 

If you have any questions regarding this proposal-agreement for services, or if you wish to discuss 

any aspect of the project, please contact me directly. We look forward to this opportunity to serve 

AUCH Construction. 

Very truly yours; 

am s F. Meredith LEED AP 

Nati al Workplace Strategy Leader 

Proje t Director 

Accepted for AUCH Construction by: 

Signature 

Printed Name and Title 

Date 

By signing this document, the signatory attests that they are authorized to execute this Agreement 

on behalf of AUCH Construction. 





Mixed-Use Developments + Parking Structures 

We understand how to create the "wow" experience that attracts customers to the storefront 

and keeps them coming back. We design retail layouts to be intuitive and authent ic. Our holistic 

approach strengthens the brand, impacts the image and drives sales. 

HED has also built and pl;:inned more than 10,000 spaces of elevated parking decks, ranging 

from 300-car to 2,500-car parking structures. Parking design and analysis Is a complex specialty 

requiring a thorough understanding of site constraints; vehicular entry/ exit design, parking 

geometrics and traffic flow. functional design, selection of the appropriate ramping system and 

type of parking layout for the parkers using the facility. 

Americana at Brand 

Li festyle Center 

330,000 SF Retail 

276,000 SF Residential 

B Levels of Parking 

Glendale. California 

Detroit Medical Center 

Heart Hospital Parking Structure+ 

Connector Bridge 

1,780 Parking Spaces 

Detroit, M ichigan 

California State University, Northridge 

B-5 Parking Structure 

5 Levels of Parking 

Northridge, California 

Circa 

Mixed-Use Development 

50,000 SF Retail 

648 Residential Units 

1,700 Parking Spaces 

Los Angeles, California 

GM RenCen 

Highlands Restaurant 

23,000 SF 

Detroit, Michigan 

Metropolis 

Mixed-Use Development 

60,000 SF Retail 

1,199 Residential Unites 

8 Levels of Parking 

Los Angeles, California 

Miramar College 

Public Safety Building + Parking Structure 

499 Parking Spaces 

San Diego, California 

Olympia Development of Michigan 

DMC Mixed-Use Office Building 

130,000 SF 

Detroit, Michigan 

Pops for Champagne 

Champagne Bar, Jazz Club + Retail Shop 

6,500 SF 

Chicago, Illinois 







*work performed by Paul Wang prior to HED 





City of Pontiac Phoenix Center 

CM / Owner Rep. Planning & Preconstruction Services 
for 2019 for Restoration of the Phoenix Center, (6 Months) 

I QUANTITY I UNIT PRICE I UNIT I 
Estimates Mana1:1ement Reimbursable 26 weeks; 5/15/19 -11/15/19; 6 Months) 
Project Executive Included in Fee $135.00 Hour 
Preconstruction Estimate ProvidinQ 432 $100.00 Hour 

M & E Estimate Included above $100.00 Hour 
Corporate Safety Director Included In Fee $115.00 Hour 
Project V.P. / Director (Jim Munchiando) 104 $112.00 Hour 
Project Senior Manaqer (Rod Elqie) 416 $100.00 Hour 
Project Enqineer / Scheduler 235 $65.00 Hour 
Vehicle Cost & Mileaqe/PD, PM, PE 6 $175.00 Mo 

Mobile Phones/PD, PM, PE 6 $125.00 Mo 

CM / Owner Rep. Bidding, Award & Construction 

April 1, 2019 

TOTAL 

Included in Fee 
$43,200 

Included above 
Included in Fee 

$11 ,648 
$41,600 
$15,275 

$1,050 
$750 . 

$113,523 

for 2019 to 2021 for Restoration of the Phoenix Center, (18 Months) 
I QUANTITY I UNIT PRICE I UNIT I TOT AL 

Estimates Manai:1ement Reimbursable 78 weeks; 11/02/19 -4/30/21; 18 Months) 
Project Executive Included in Fee $135.00 Hour Included in Fee 
Corporate Safety Director Included in Fee $115.00 Hour Included in Fee 
Prolect V.P. / Director (Jim Munchiando) 312 $112.00 Hour 
Project Senior Manaoer (Rod Eloie) 1248 $100.00 Hour 
Project Enoineer I Scheduler 1248 $65.00 Hour 
Vehicle Cost & Mileaoe/PD, PM, PE 12 $175.00 Mo 
Mobile Phones/PD, PM, PE 12 $125.00 Mo 

CM FEE 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 

!Construction Management Fee I 2.so% I 
NOTES 
1. The range presented for staff rates represents the various rates for AUCH Team members. Invoicing will be 

based on the actual cost of the staff required for a particular project. 

2. Preconstruction rates are based on the staffing rates presented above. 

$34,944 
$124,800 

$81,120 
$2,100 
$1,500 

$244,464 

3. If Owner selects not to pursue construction with AUCH Construction, then 2x multiplier will apply to Planning & 
Preconstruction Services. 

4. Upon the start of each project, an estimate will be prepared. When the project information is better known, 
we will adjust the hours and durations accordingly. Expenditure would be made on an as needed basis only. 

5. General Liability Insurance is ( 0.5% x total cost of construction ). 

6. Administrative Services is (0.4% x total cost of construction). 

7. CM Payment & Performance Bond is ( 1.0% x total cost of the construction) 

8. Our Project Executive and Corporate Safety Director is included in the CM Fee and not job charged. 

9. When project information is better known we will adjust the hours and schedule to the revised project plan and update 
all costs for owner approval. 



l I * 

l * 

ii J * 

I * 

f * 

I * 

I Up .. 
* ij 

i I * lfd ., i ., w Ill z f. ! ! :::i 

I w * :8 
• 1 

:E ; d! 
i= " S l z ! 0 J * g 6 f 
~ <.> ! • 
0 s i 
..... 

t t J 1/) * w 
D:: i ! ~ ij 
c( I * ,. t z ' -i ! 5 :::i 

l i • • w 
* D:: 

a. 
C 
w 
II) I * I 0 
a. 
0 ~ 

a:: I IL I * ~ a: 
w i ... -..... z 

I! : * w 

t1 I,) 

>< i I i I z I J ~ w 
0 I ~ • h r h!! :i: 
a. hp u 

~ JI. I"' fU!. t 
~ • If i 11 ;J I! j it u.. ·, 0 

~ 111 • , 911- 1!ft 1! ~! iii If fi 
u 1.1111 if1!1111,1i11li )) l' 

I ) ifll 11~ 11111· 11·1 l r1 ~11 t iji . h i u!Jr 1s1 
~ iJJ11Jll1tll1fffl1.l~i11 



CITY OF PONTIAC PHOENIX CENTER VISION/PRELIMINARY WORK PLAN 

..,.,,.,. 

l 
0eYdop .,atysG and ol>Unconcurrmca a, DJ 
"tlad:groond"' conditions 

Pl'~-~:end~by~ 

,,,_........, -(Cilr,AOC><.>EOl 

~ rw:1....-,i:e ~~documenb 
· ~fNIPS,.S-., ·Priar~----------... -•inl!Jrfta~,--_,..~.,._.~ 
l:lnltf p:a,r9llg paamean 
-~made 
·Wun..__ ·-·Go-~ 
C<:Md.a:llftt;lleshmaps.ance.-ldn,u#'ch~ 
~r.,dpolllf" ... ~ohf~N,~ 

Preplft•prwTlnllf}'~ ... .port'~---hll ... gi.aie 
e.WiUm.-...UpaWUIII} 

F'Tojocl;g,-.-(ALJCH HED.C.,,) 

.,.,,.,. 
l/11/2019 

l ----
Obtain conc:unence aoo specilc direction «1 

«>aoeptd«-

Pnpa-e........._b ~ ~ 

"--•---CAIJCl<>ED ---•Pl~.-.:tdsa.'D~ 
•AwM o,, 1CC1P1 of~~ 
•GiiPr:«a¥d~..,.,. ~~ ""'---•Cordfl=!lrt~ ·-•~a'ld~EIIIIIIBatdde!!la1Plicfts 

R~p,di~stiNch~'Mfl uy -~~d~rd~ 
~mddaa.~ fool\~~) 
PrefJl'e an nMI aJOCqJt ,-..rtlmDn 

1rr11r........._,eokws,........ tey sbkch~$ (?) o..;.,._ 

l ,"i:'M • 
_ ,,_ 
Obtain lnai a>mments .nd diredir::ffl on 
~ and bm ~ p,He11Ulion 

~• .at!d p-C'Mnl ~ cc,xepl 

Fra::n ffl0CIN d~ r..d~caton 

Firlllir.1 tendlnnQI, a,d1141P2tnQ ff'IMB'I• 
~~c,r.-.,~""°""alonrt1 
daQ ~ bffl. e<:a'tlOn,y !lH'nel 

Informal review me.e1alp 

"'••-., ur.,...,_<"""°'· c.r, 
""""'"I 



® 

AIA Document A134™ 2009 

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction 
Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost 
of the Work Plus a Fee without a Guaranteed Ma~imum Price 

AGREEMENT made as of the <<f6th>), day of «M~y>~ in the year <<2019>~ l 1 : 
(In ,vords, indicate day, month and year.) DITIONs AND DELETIONS: The 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

<<CITY OF PCJNTIA.()><~(tlie Owner) » 
«47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, MI _48342» 

and the Construction Manager: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

«GEORGE W. AUCH COMP ANYd/b/a AUCH CONSTRUCTION »«(the Construction' 
Manager and Program Manager)» · 
«65 University Drive 
Pontiac, Ml 48342» 

for the following Project: 
(Name and address or location) 

«PHOENIX CENTER PARKING GARAGE & AMPHITHEATER RENOVATION» 
«Pontiac, MI» 

The Architect: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

«To Be Determined»« » 
(( )) 

The Owner's Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 

«John V. Balint, P.E.» 
«Director of Department of Public Works» 
«City of Pontiac» 
«47450 Woodward Avenue» 
«Pontiac, MI 48342» 
(( )} 

The Construction Manager's Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 

«Gerry McClelland, CPE, LEED AP BD+C, Project Director» 
«AUCH Construction» 
«65 University Drive» 
«Pontiac, MI 48342» 
«Ph: 248-334:2000» 
(( )} 

futhor of this document has 
?ddJd information needed for 
~tslcompletion. The author 
may'also have revised the 
t'e::fij: of the original AIA 
harl.dard form. - An Additions 
knd 1 Deletioris R'eport that 
hotJs added iinfbrmation as 
,/,ell as revi1sions to the 
~ta~dard for~ t~xt is 
bvailable frbrn t!he author and 
I • 
fhould be reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion or 
modification. 

AIA Document A20lm-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Constr~ction, 
is adopted in this document 
by reference. Do not use with 
other general conditions 
unless this document is 
modified. 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA" Document to 
another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyright laws as 
set forth in the footer of this 
document. 

AIADocument A134m - 2009 (formerly A131UC:Mc - 2003). Copyright ~' 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA°' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution o.f this 
~;..IA.!: Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and •.,;,ill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 1 
under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft'Hare at 12:23:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 which e:.:.pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



The Architect's Designated Representative: 
(Name, address and other information) 

«To Be Determined» 

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows. 

AIA Document A134l:!i - 2009 (formerly A13l~Mc - 2003}. Copyright :. 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, 
WARNING: This AIA'' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internat.ional Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
A.IA' Document, or any portion a£ it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 2 
under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 '.'1hich e:{pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



TABLE OF ARTICLES 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

3 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

6 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

8 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 The Contract Documents 
The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued ptior to the execution of this Agreement, other documents 
listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of.which form the Contract 
and are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. Upon the Owner's approval 
of the Control Estimate, the Contract Documents will also include the documents described in Section 2.2.4 and 
revisions prepared by the Architect and furnished by the Owner as described in Section 2.2.5. The Contract represents 
the entire and integrated agreement between the pa1iies hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or 
agreements, either written or oral. If anything in the other Contract Documents, other than a Modification, is 
inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern. (It is understood and agreed that Drawings and 
Specifications have yet to be prepared for the Project.) 

§ 1.2 Relationship of the Parties 
The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this ~greement ~nd 
covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager's skill anajudgment 
in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient construction administration, mahagement services'and 
supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform' the Work in an 
expeditious and economical manner consistent with the Owner's interests. The Owner agre~s to furnish or approve, in 
a timely manner, information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the Constrnction 
Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 1.3 General Conditions 
For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A20Fl.-1-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, 
shall apply only as specifically provided in this Agreement. For the Construction Phase, the general conditions of the 
contract shall be as set forth in A201-2007, which document is incorporated herein by reference. The term 
"Contractor" as used in A201-2007 shall mean the Construction Manager. 

§ 1.4 Contract Sum, Contract Time and Changes in the Work . 
The Contract Sum is the actual Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1. l plus the Constiuction Manager's Fee as 
defined in Section 5.1. The Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustinents, allotted in the 
Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work as certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 

AIADocumentA134nt - 2009 (£ormerly Al3ln£cMc - 2003). Copyright 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA'' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
}1..IAi. Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and '.>Jill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 3 
under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on OS/16/2019 under Order No,9463538253 '.>Jhich e:·:pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resdle. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



9.8 of AIA Document A201-2007. The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the 
Construction Phase as established pursuant to Section 2.3.1.2 of this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be 
governed by Section 5.2 of this Agreement and not by Article 7 of A201-2007. If, however, the Contract Time has 
been established in accordance with Section 2.2.4.5, Aiiicle 7 of A201-2007 shall control adjustments to the Contract 
Time. 

ARTICLE 2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES I 1 

For the purposes of this Project, the Construction Manager is also the "Program Manager". It is Jnderstood and agreed 
that the Project will be undertaken by the Owner in phases which are generally described aJ thd "Planning and 
Preconstruction Phase" (with sub-phases for "A/E Procurement", "Design Phase", "Biddin~ ant6\\:ar~s"), a11dthe 
"Construction Phase" (see "Preliminary Timeline" at Exhibit D). Note, however, that Own~r's execution of this 
Agreement is authorization for Construction Manager to proceed only with the "Planning alid Preconstruction Phase" 
(sub-phases for "A/E Procurement" and "Design Phase"). It is the intent of the Owner to er!gagb Construction 
Manager for "Bidding and Awards" and the "Construction Phase". Construction Manager'p PI1nning and 
Preconstruction Phase scope of services (including Program Management services) are statt~.,i~ Section 2.1 (below) 
and fmiher outlined in Exhibit A. Exhibit B states Construction Manager's not-to-exceed amount for Planning and 
Preconstruction Phase services (in accordance with Construction Manager's original proposal dated April 1, 2019, 
Exhibit E) and the development ofrenderings; specifically, Exhibit B contains a cost breakdowp of the n~t:to}exceed 
amount of$283,482. At the time Owner authorizes Construction Manager to proceed with

1
the Bidding a*d Awards 

and Construction Phase of the Project, Owner and Construction Manager shall execute a wrlitte~ Change 9rder in 
accordance with Construction Manager's original proposal April 1, 2019 (which would inc\ude; Construction; 
Manager's Construction Phase charges), all of which would be in addition to Construction tyfan

1

ager's chal·ges for the 
Planning and Preconstruction Phase services. 

1 

The Constrnction Manager's Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2. The 
Construction Manager's Construction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Section 2.3. The Owner and Construction 
Manager may agree, in consultation with the Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior to completion of 
the Preconstruction Phase, in which case, both phases will proceed concmTently. The Construction Manager shall 
identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect to the Project. 

§ 2.1 Preconstruction Phase 
§ 2.1.1 The Construction Manager shall provlde a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule and 
construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other. 

§ 2.1.2 Consultation 
The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Architect and Owner to discuss such matters 
as procedmes, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. The Construction Manager shat 1 advise the Owner 
and the Ai·chitect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and building systems and equipment. 
The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations consistent with the Project requirements to the Owner 
and Architect on constructability; availability of materials and labor; time requirements for pro~urement, instaf lation 
and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or 
materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions. ' 

§ 2.1.3 When Project requirements in Section 3.1.1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall 
prepare and periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect's review and the Ownei·'s acceptance. The 
Construction Manager shall obtain the Architect's approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the 
performance of the Ai·chitect's services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction 
Manager's services, the Architect's services, other Owner consultants' services, and the Owner's responsibilities and 
identify items that could affect the Project's timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the 
following: submission of the Control Estimate; the components of the Work; times of commencement and completion 
required of each Subcontractor; ordering and delivery of products, including those that must be ordered well in 
advance of construction; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner. 

§ 2.1.4 Phased Construction 
The Constrnction Manager shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated or fadt-tr~ck scheduling, 

l ,., """"'•' 

procurement, or phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into consideration cost reductions, cost 
information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities and procurement and constl-uction scheduling issues. 

AIA DocumentA134°' - 2009 {formerly Al310£cMc - 2003). Copyright ~. 1994 1 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIXci Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internat1onal Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecute.cl to the maximum extent possible 4 
under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 which e:{pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



§ 2.1.5 Preliminary Cost Estimates 
§ 2.1.5.1 Based on the preliminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Construction 
Manager shall prepare preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area, 
volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques for the Architect's review and Owner's approval. If the Architect 
or Construction Manager suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction Manager shall provide cost 
evaluations of those alternative materials and systems. 

' I 

§ 2.1.5.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design !Deielopment and 
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate! intt;rvals agreed to by the 
Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, estimates of the Cost of the Work ofincreasitlg dibt~il andrdinement 
and allowing for the further development of the design until such time as the Construction Manager;ubmits ~ C~~trol 
Estimate for the Work, pursuant to Section 2.2. Such estimates shall be provided for the Arbhitect's review and the 
Owner's approval. The Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect when ektim1ates of the Cost of the 
Work exceed the latest approved Project budget and make recommendations for corrective hctibn. 

I ! 
§ 2.1.6 Subcontractors and Suppliers ' 
The Construction Manager shall develop bidders' interest in the Project. 1 

I I . I : I : : 
§ 2.1.7 The Construction ~anager shall prepare, for the A_rchitect's review and t~e Owner't ac9ept~nce, ~ j 
procurement schedule for items that must be ordered well m advance of construct10n. The Consttuct10n Manager shall 
expedite and coordinate the ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered well in ddvahce of con~h116tion. If 
the Owner agrees to procure any items prior to the Owner's approval of the Control Estimatt, th~ Owner shall procure 
the items on terms and conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. Upon the Owne/'s approval ofthe Control 
Estimate, the Owner shall assign all contracts for these items to the Construction Manager ~nd the Construction 
Manager shall thereafter accept responsibility for them. 

§ 2.1.8 Extent of Responsibility 
The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in preparing schedules and estimates. The Construction 
Manager, however, does not warrant or guarantee estimates and schedules, including the Control Estimate and the 
estimated date of Substantial Completion, except as provided in Section 2.2.4.5. The Construction Manager is not , 
required to asce1iain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance with applicable faws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Construction Manager shall promptly rep01i 
to the Architect and Owner any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Construction Manager as a 
request for information in such form as the Architect may require. 

§ 2.1.9 Notices and Compliance with Laws 
The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and 
lawful orders of public authorities applicable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment 
opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi governmental authorities for 
inclusion in the Contract Documents. , 

§ 2.2 Control Estimate 
§ 2.2.1 At a time to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the Construction Manager arid iri consultation with the 
Architect, the Construction Manager shall prepare a Control Estimate for the Owner's review and acceptance. The 
Control Estimate shall be the sum of the Construction Manager's estimate of the Cost ofth~ Work and the 
Construction Manager's Fee and shall include those items set forth in Section 2.2.4 below. When the Control Estimate 
is acceptable to the Owner, the Owner shall acknowledge it in writing. 

§ 2.2.2 The Construction Manager shall develop and implement a detailed system of cost control that will provide the 
Owner and Architect with timely information as to the anticipated total Cost of the Work. The cost control system 
shall compare the Control Estimate with the actual cost for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks 
and proposed changes. This information shall be repo1ied to the Owner, in writing, no later than the Construction 
Manager's first Application for Payment and shall be revised and submitted with each Apppcation for Payment. 

§ 2.2.3 To the extent that the Drawings and Specifications are anticipated to require further ;development by the 
Architect, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Control Estimate for such further development consistent 
with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further developmeni does not include changes 

AIA Document A134!C!l - 2009 (formerly Al3lnrCHc - 2003}. Copyright _'.'. 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WA.RHING: This All, .. n Docwnent is protected by 0.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Onauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
AIA' Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and ,,nll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 5 
under the law. This draft was produced by AIA sofb.1are at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.946J5J8253 w·hich e:•:pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: ('.::003972180) 



in scope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment, all of which, ifrequired, shall be incorporated 
in a revised Control Estimate by mutual agreement of the parties. 

§ 2.2.4 The Control Estimate shall include 
.1 

.2 

.3 

.4 

.5 

a list of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto, and the Conditions of the 
Contract; 
a list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Construction Manager in;the preparation of the 
Control Estimate, including assumptions under Section 2.2.3, to supplement~he information provided 
by the Owner and contained in the Drawings and Specifications; i I 
a statement of the estimated Cost of the Work organized by trade categories br sf stems, allow,a11ces, 
and the Construction Manager's Fee; j · · · · · 
the anticipated date of Substantial Completion upon which the Control Estinpte is based; and a 
schedule for the issuance dates of the Construction Documents upon which the ahticipated Substantial 
Completion date relies; and I i 
a statement as to whether or not the duration from the stated date of commenc~mdnt of the Construction 
Phase to the estimated date of Substantial Completion shall become the Contr~ct Time and be subject to 
the provisions of Article 8 of A201-2007. 

! 

i I I 
§ 2.2.5 The Owner shall authorize the Architect to incorporate the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications 
contained in the Control Estimate. The Owner shall promptly furnish those revised Drawing~ and Specifications to the 
Construction Manager as they are revised. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner arid Architect of any 
inconsistencies between the Control Estimate and the revised Drawings and Specifications. i · 

§ 2.3 Construction Phase 
§ 2.3.1 General 
§ 2.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201-2007, the date of commencement of the Work shall mean the date of 
commencement of the Construction Phase. 

§ 2.3.1.2 The Construction Phase shall commence upon the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate or the Owner's 
issuance of a Notice to Proceed, whichever occurs earlier. 

§ 2.3.1.3 Prior to commencement of the Construction Phase, and except for planning and preconstruction services, the 
Construction Manager shall not incur any other cost to be reimbursed as part of the Cost of the Work. 

§ 2.3.2 Administration 
§ 2.3.2.1 Those portions of the Work that the Construction Manager does not customarily perf01m with the 
Construction Manager's own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts or by other appropriate agreements 
with the Construction Manager. The Owner may designate specific persons from whom, or entities from which, the 
Construction Manager shall obtain bids. The Construction Manager shall obtain bids from Subcontractors and from 
suppliers of materials or equipment fabricated especially for the Work and shall deliver such. bids to the Architect. The 
Owner shall then determine, with the advice of the Construction Manager and the Architect, which bids will be 
accepted. The Construction Manager shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Construction Manager 
has reasonable objection. 

§ 2.3.2.2 Subcontracts or other agreements shall conform to the applicable payment provisions of this Agreement, and 
shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the prior consent of the Owner. If the Subcontract is 
awarded on a cost-plus a fee basis, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Subcontract for the Owner to receive 
the same audit rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Construction Manager 
in Section 6.11 below. 

§ 2.3.2.3 If the Construction Manager recommends a specific bidder that may be considered a "related party" 
according to Section 6.10, then the Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Owner in writing of such 
relationship and notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, according to Section 6.10.2. 

§ 2.3.2.4 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such m~tte~s as procedures, 
progress, coordination, scheduling, and status of the Work. The Construction Manager shaiJ prepare and promptly 
distribute minutes to the Owner and Architect. i 

AIADocurnent A134'D,[ - 2009 (formerly Al3luCMc - 2003}. Copyright 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The .American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARtUNG: This AIA" Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution a:f this 
.~IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result 1.n severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum ex.tent possible 

under the law. This draft \>las produced by AIA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 '.<lhich expires on 04./29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 

6 



§ 2.3.2.5 Upon the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate, the Construction Manager shall prepare and submit to 
the Owner and Architect a construction schedule for the Work and submittal schedule in accordance with Section 3.10 
of A201-2007. 

§ 2.3.2.6 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as 
agreed to by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the Owner and Architect, 
showing percentages of completion and other information required by the Owner. The ConsH·uction Manager shall 
also keep, and make available to the Owner and Architect, a daily log containing a record f6r eJch day of weather, 
portions of the Work in progress, number of workers on site, identification of equipment o~ sitd, problems that might 
affect progress of the Work, accidents, injuries, and other information required by the Owner. I 

j 

§ 2.4 Professional Seivices j 
Section 3 .12.10 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases 

I 
§ 2.5 Hazardous Materials l 
Section 10.3 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 

ARTICLE 3 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES i I I j 
It is understood and agreed that Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the complefeness and acc\lracy ofthe 
rep01is and other information provided by Owner and by others on behalf of Owner. i f j I 

• I 

§ 3.1 Information and Seivices Required of the Owner i : i I 
§ 3.1.1 The Owner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requir~ments for and'limitations 
on the Project, including a ,.vritten program which shall set forth the Owner's objectives, constraints, and criteria, 
including schedule, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment, systems, 
sustainability and site requirements. 

§ 3.1.2 Prior to the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate, or within seven days of receiving the Owner's written 
acknowledgment required by Section 2.2.1, the Construction Manager may request in writing that the Owner provide 
reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the o,.vner's ,obligations under the 
Contract. Thereafter, the Construction Manager may only request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make 
payments to the Construction Manager as the Contract Documents require, (2) a change in the Work materially 
changes the Contract Sum, or (3) the Construction Manager identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the 
Owner's ability to make payment when due. The Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to 
commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner 
furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial airnngements without prior notice to the 
Construction Manager and Architect. 

§ 3.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (1) the budget 
for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1, (2) the Owner's other costs, and (3) reasonable contingericies 
related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's budget for the Cost of the 
Work, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, in c6nsultation 
with the Construction Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the budget fo1· the Cost ~fthe Work 
or in the Project's scope and quality. 

§ 3.1.4 Structural and Environmental Tests, Suiveys and Reports. During the Preconstruction Phase, the Owner shall 
furnish the following information or services with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other 
information or services under the Owner's control and relevant to the Construction Manager's performance of the 
Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager's written request for such information or 
services. The Constr·uction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished by 
the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work. 

§ 3.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and rep01is required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the 
parties, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous 
materials. ' ' 

§ 3.1.4.2 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal desctiption of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable, 

AIADocumentA134nt - 2009 (formerly Al31nlCMc - 2003}. Copyright", 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA:' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
AIAl Document, or any portion of it, may result 1..n severe civil and criminal penalties 1 and will be prosecuted ta the maximum extent possible 7 
under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order Ho.9463538253 which e:{pires on 04/29/2020 1 and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining prope1iy and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent 
drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of 
the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; 
and inf01mation concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade, 
including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 

§ 3.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may 
include but are not limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, pe11col~tion tests, evaluations 
of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground con-osion tests and resistivity tests, incluUing necessary operations 
for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. I ! 

: 
§ 3.1.4.4 During the Construction Phase, the Owner shall furnish information or services re~un·9d of the Owner bythe 
Contract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other h+formation or services 
under the Owner's control and relevant to the Construction Manager's performance of the Wor} with reasonable 
promptness after receiving the Construction Manager's written request for such informatiod or services. 

' J 

§ 3.2 Owner's Designated Representative 
1 

The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalfof the Owner with respect: to the Project The 
Owner's representative shall render decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, $Oas to avbid : 
unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Section 
4.2.1 of A201-2007, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means ~he Owner or t~e Owner's 
authorized representative. ' ' 

l 
§ 3.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing 
services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests. 

§ 3.3 Architect 
The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA Document 
B 133n.1-2014, Standard F01m of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Constrnction Manager as Constructor 
Edition. The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and 
the Architect, and any fmiher modifications to the agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Compensation 
§ 4.1.1 For the Construction Manager's Preconstruction Phase services, the Owner shall compensate the Construction 
Manager as follows: 

§ 4.1.2 For the Construction Manager's Program Management and Preconstrnction Phase services described in 
Section 2.1 and Exhibit A: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation and include a list of reimbursable cost items, as applicable.) 

«Not to exceed $283,482.00 as further described in Exhibit B. The total not-to-exceed amount is based on a 2X (two 
times) multiplier referenced in note #4 of Construction Manager's April 1, 2019 proposal. The 2X multiplier would be 
activated in the event Owner does not authorize Constrnction Manger to proceed with the Constrnction Phase of the 
Project.» 

§ 4.1.3 If the Preconstrnction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within« » ( « ») 
months of the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager's 
compensation for Preconstruction Phase services shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 4.1.4 Compensation based on Direct Personnel Expense includes the direct salaries of the Construction Manager's 
personnel providing Preconstruction Phase services and the Construction Manager's costs for the mandatory and 
customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, 
insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, employee retirement plans and similar contributions. 

§ 4.2 Payments 
§ 4.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 

AIA DocumentA134'l'll - 2009 (formerly Al3lnrCMc - 2003}. Copyright ~'., 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA" Document is pro t.ected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Tre.at.1.es. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 'Nill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 8 
under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 '.'1hich expires an 04/29/2020, and 
is not far resale. 
User Notes: (~003972180) 



§ 4.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager's invoice. Amounts unpaid 
«f~rty-:live>i, ( «45>~) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at 
the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 

«4.5>~ % «annual rate>~ 

ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES I 
§ 5.1 For the Construction Manager's performance of the Work as described in Section 2.3 the1 Owner shall pay the 
Construction Manager the Contract Sum in current funds for the Construction Manager's pe1,fon~~nse !)f the Contract. 
The Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1 plus the ConstructiojManager's Fee. 

§ 5.1.1 The Constmction Manager's Fee: I 
(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the onsiruction Manager's 
haj I 1 

J • 

«2.5% the cost of the work including planning; rendering and preconstruction phase services. See proposaldatedApril; 
1, 2019 for a statement of fees and costs (attached at Exhibit E).» · 

§ 5.1.2 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager's Fee for changes in the wJrk: 

I 
«Construction Manager's Fee shall apply to the cost of the work.» 

i 
§ 5.1.3 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor's overhead and profit for increases in the cost bf its portion of the Work: 

«15% for direct work and materials furnished by trade contractor, 7.5% for work subcontracted by trade contractor.»• 

§ 5.1.4 Rental rates for Construction Manager-owned equipment shall not exceed« » percent ( « »%)of the standard 
rate paid at the place of the Project. 

§ 5.1.5 Unit prices, if any: 
(Identify and state the unit price; state the quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.) 

Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00) 

§ 5.2 Changes in the Work 
§ 5.2.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the 
Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such ch~nges in writing.'The 
Architect may make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AIA Documeht A201-2007, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to dn equitable adjustment in 
the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work. The Construction Manager shall incoi·porate all changes in the 
Work and Contract Time as separate entries in the Control Estimate. · ' · 

§ 5.2.2 Increased costs for the items set forth in Sections 6.1 through 6.7 that result from changes in the Work shall 
become part of the Cost of the Work, and the Construction Manager's Fee shall be adjusted as provided in Section 
5.1.2. 

§ 5.2.3 If the Construction Manager receives any Drawings, Specifications, interpretations or instructions from the 
Owner or Architect which are inconsistent with the Contract Documents, or encounters unanticipated conditions, any 
of which will result in a significant change in the Cost of the Work or estimated date of Substantial Completion in 
comparison with the Control Estimate, the Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Owner and Architect in 
writing and shall not proceed with the affected Work until the Construction Manager receives fu1iher written 
instructions from the Owner and Architect. 

I 

§ 5.2.4 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 for adjustment of the Construction Manager's Fee in the case 
of changes in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such, in the aggregate, that appli~ation of the adjustment 

AIA Document A134Dil - 2009 (formerly Al3lni:cMc - 2003). Copyright ..'., 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, 
WARlUNG: This AIA'' Docwnent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 9 
under the law. This draft t>Jas produced by A.IA software at 12:23:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9463538253 which expires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



provisions of Section 5.1.2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the Construction 
Manager's Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the original Work. 

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
§ 6.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed 
§ 6.1.1 The term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager in the proper 
performance of the Work. Such costs shall be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project 

' I 

except with prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set f01ih in Sections 6.1 
1 i 

through 6.7. , 

! ------- -- " _,, , __ 
§ 6.1.2 Where any cost is subject to the Owner's prior approval, the Construction Manager shall obtain this approval 
prior to incurring the cost. j 

i 
§ 6.2 Labor Costs ! 
§ 6.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Construction Manager to pbrfofm the construction of 
the Work at the site or, with the Owner's prior approval, at off-site workshops. · 

§ 6.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Constmction Manager's supervisory and administrative peisonbel when stationed at 
the site with the Owner's prior approval. i j ! I 
(If it is intended that the wages or salaries of certain personnel stationed at the Construction 11,;fanager 's principal or 
other offices shall be included in the Cost of the Work, identify in Section 11.5, the personn~I to' be included, ~hether 
for all or only part of their time, and the rates at-which their time will be charged to the Wdrk)' ' 

§ 6.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager's supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at 
factories, workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or transpo1iation of materials or equipment required 
for the Work, but only for that portion of their time required for the Work. 

§ 6.2.4 Costs paid or incmTed by the Construction Manager for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and 
benefits required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not covered by such agreements, 
customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such 
costs are based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Sections 6.2.1 tlu·ough 6.2.3. 

§ 6.2.5 Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretionary payments paid to anyone hired by 
the Construction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor or vendor, with the Owner's prior approval. 

§ 6.3 Subcontract Costs 
Payments made by the Construction Manager to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of the 
subcontracts. 

§ 6.4 Costs of Materials and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction 
§ 6.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in 
the completed construction. 

§ 6.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 6.4.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow for 
reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner's property at the completion 
of the Work or, at the Owner's option, shall be sold by the Construction Manager. Any amounts realized from such 
sales shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 

§ 6.5 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items 
§ 6.5.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 
temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are 
provided by the Construction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of 
materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and tools that are not fully consumed shall be based on 
the cost or value of the item at the time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the itei:n when it is no longer 
used at the Project site. Costs for items not fully consumed by the Construction Manager shap rnean fair market value. 

§ 6.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by 
constrnction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site and costs of transportation, installation, 

AIA Document Al34D,{ - 2009 (formerly Al3l'n.lCMc - 2003). Copyright ~' 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The .American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA5 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
]\.IA'' Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibli:= 10 
under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019- under Orde1: No.9463538253 which e:-:pires on 1)4/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (~003972180) 



minor repairs, dismantling and removal. The total rental cost of any Constmction Manager-owned item may not 
exceed the purchase price of any comparable item. Rates of Construction Manager-owned equipment and quantities of 
equipment shall be subject to the Owner's prior approval. 

§ 6.5.3 Costs ofremoval of debris from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal. 

§ 6.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and 
parcel delivery charges, telephone service at the site and reasonable petty cash expenses ofthe !ite office. 

I I 
§ 6.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Construction Manager's supervisory br aliministrative 
personnel incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Wark. I 
§ 6.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptabll Iobation, subject to the 
Owner's prior approval. l j 

§ 6.6 Miscellaneous Costs · ' 
§ 6.6.1 Premiums for that po1iion of insurance and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly 
attributed to this Contract. Self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of the coverages 1reqtired by th~ C~mtract 
Documents, with the Owner's prior approval. I I i ! 

§ 6.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to tJe Work and fo~ w~ich the 
Construction Manager is liable. Construction Manger's personnel rates are as included in pr(lpo~al dated April !1, 2019 
(Exhibit E), and all Construction Manager staff except project superintendent and field Iabdr) ti> be based'out 'of 
AUCH's Pontiac headquarters. I 

§ 6.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the 
Construction Manager is required by the Contract Documents to pay. 

§ 6.6.4 Fees oflaboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents, except those related to defective or 
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of AlA Document A201-2007 or by 
other provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section 6.7.3. 

§ 6.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product required by the Contract 
Documents; the cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arising from such requirement of the 
Contract Documents; and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against the Constmction Manager 
resulting from such suits or claims and payments of settlements made with the Owner's consent. However, such costs 
of legal defenses, judgments and settlements shall not be included in the calculation of the Construction Manager's 
Fee. If such royalties, fees and costs are excluded by the last sentence of Section 3.17 of AJA Document A201~2007 or 
other provisions of the Contract Documents, then they shall not be included in the Cost of the Work. 

§ 6.6.6 Costs for electronic equipment and software, directly related to the Work with the ~wner's prior a~proval. 

§ 6.6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than the Construction Manager's negligence or failure to fulfill a spe'cific 
responsibility in the Contract Documents. ' 

§ 6.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys' fees, other than those arising from disputes 
between the Owner and Constmction Manager, reasonably incurred by the Construction Manager after the execution 
of this Agreement in the performance of the Work and with the Owner's prior approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

§ 6.6.9 Subject to the Owner's prior approval, expenses incurred in accordance with the Construction Manager's 
standard written personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of the Construction Manager's 
personnel required for the Work. 

§ 6.7 Other Costs and Emergencies , 
§ 6.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and to the extent, approved in advance in writing by the 
Owner. ' 

AIADocument Al34n,c - 2009 (formerly A13ll.l!CMc - 2003). Copyright~, 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Ardi.itects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIX') Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internat1onal Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution a£ this 
AIA' Document, or 3.0lf portion 0£ 1.t, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 11 
under the law. This draft was produced by .A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order N"o.9463538253 which e:{pires on 04/29/2020 1 and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



§ 6.7.2 Costs incmTed in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting 
the safety of persons and property, as provided in Section 10.4 of AIA Document A201-2007. 

§ 6.7.3 Costs of repairing or c01Tecting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager, 
Subcontractors or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or 
failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Construction Manager and only to the extent that the cost ofrepair or 
conection is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers, or others. 

: I 
§ 6.7.4 The costs described in Sections 6.1 through 6.7 shall be included in the Cost of the War* notwithstanding any 
provision of AIA Document A201-2007 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the Const111c!i.Oll .. 
Manager to pay such costs, unless such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8.i · · 

§ 6.8 Costs Not to Be Reimbursed 

i 

I 
§ 6.8.1 The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below: 

.1 Salaries and other compensation of the Construction Manager's personnel stationbd at the Construction 
Manager's principal office or offices other than the site office, except as spe~itic:'ally provided in 

.2 

.3 

.4 

.5 

.6 

. 7 

Section 6.2, or as may be provided in Article 11; , · 
Expenses of the Construction Manager's principal office and offices other tb'an the site office; 
Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Section~ 6.1 throu~h 6.7; 
The Construction Manager's capital expenses, including interest on the Construction Manager's capital 
employed for the Wark; ! ' i : 
Except as provided in Section 6.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligen6e or failu~e o~the 
Construction Manager, Subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or in:directly employed by any 
of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Contract; 
Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 6.1 through 6.7; and 
Costs for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase . 

§ 6.9 Discounts, Rebates and Refunds 
§ 6.9.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) 
before making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received 
payment from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which to make 
payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and 
amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction 
Manager shall make provisions so that they can be obtained. 

§ 6.9.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.9.1 shall be credited to the 
Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work. 

§ 6.10 Related Party Transactions 
§ 6.10.1 For purposes of Section 6.10, the term "related party" shall mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other entity 
having common ownership or management with the Construction Manager; any entity in which any stockholder in, or 
management employee of, the Construction Manager owns any interest in excess often percent in the aggi-egate; or 
any person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Construction Manager. The tenn 
"related party" includes any member of the immediate family of any person identified above. 

§ 6.10.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Construction Manager and a related 
party, the Construction Manager shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, 
including the identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incmTed, before any such transaction is 
consummated or cost incuned. If the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction, then the cost 
incmTed shall be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, 
equipment, goods or service from the related party, as a Subcontt·actor, according to the terms of Sections 2.3.2.1, 
2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. If the Owner fails to authorize the transaction, the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, 
equipment, goods or service from some person or entity other than a related party according to the terms of Sections 
2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. 

§ 6.11 Accounting Records , 
The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the c

1

ost of the W orkand 
exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate all 

is not for resale. 
User Notes: ('.::003972180) 



costs incmTed. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner's 
auditors shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted 
to audit and copy, the Construction Manager's records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting 
accounting entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor's proposals, 
purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Contract. The Construction Manager shall 
preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by 
law. 

! 
ARTICLE 7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES i 
§ 7.1 Progress Payments J .. •.• .. • .. 

§ 7.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction! Manager and Certificates 
for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account df the Contract Sum to the 
Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. I j 

I I 
§ 7.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month endinJ on the last day of the 
month, or as follows: · · 

(( )) 

: i I 
§ 7.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the «last>~ day ~f a:month, 
the Owner shall make payment of the certified amount to the Construction Manager not latJr thpn the «30th>~ '.day of 
the «following>~ month. If an Application for Payment is receiyed ~y the Architect after theJappfication ~~te f\xed 
above, payment shall be made by the Owner not later than «thirty>> ( «30>1) days after the Arclutect receives the 
Application for Payment. ' · · 
(Federal, state or local lmvs may require payment ,vithin a certain period of time.) 

§ 7.1.4 With each Application for Payment, the Construction Manager shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts, 
receipted invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or 
Architect to demonstrate that cash disbursements already made by the Construction Manager on account of the Cost of 
the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Construction Manager, less that portion of those 
payments attributable to the Construction Manager's Fee, plus payrolls for the period covered by the present 
Application for Payment. 

§ 7.1.5 Applications for Payment shall show the Cost of the Work actually incmTed by the Construction Manager 
tlu·ough the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment and for which the Construction Manager has 
made or intends to make actual payment prior to the next Application for Payment. 

§ 7.1.6 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be 
computed as follows: 

.1 Take the Cost of the Work as described in Section 6.1.1; 

.2 Add the Construction Manager's Fee, less retainage of «teID) percent ( «10>>, %). The Construction 
Manager's Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work described in the preceding Section 7.1.6.1 
at the rate stated in Section 5. I. I; or if the Construction Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that 
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a 
reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; 

.3 Subtract retainage of «ten» percent ( «10» %) from that p01iion of the Work that the Construction 
Manager self-performs; 

.4 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; 

.5 Subtract the sho1ifall, if any, indicated by the Construction Manager in the documentation required by 
Section 7.1.4 or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by the Owner's auditors in such 
documentation; and 

.6 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withheld or withdrawn a Certificate for Payment 
as provided in the Contract Documents. 

§ 7.1.7 The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure forreview and 
approval of payments to Subcontractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on S ubcont1:acts, and the ·construction 
Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements. 

AIA Document Al34Dl 2009 (formerly Al3lni:CMc - 2003}. Copyright,_:, 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA~ Docwnent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
.:;.IA1 Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties 1 and 'Jlill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 13 
unde:c the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at l~:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 undei.:- Order No.9463538253 which e:-:pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2003972180) 



§ 7.1.8 Except with the Owner's prior approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments to 
suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site. 

§ 7.1.9 In taking action on the Construction Manager's Applications for Payment, the Architect shall be entitled to rely 
on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Construction Manager and shall not be deemed 
to represent that the Architect has made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the documentation 
submitted in accordance with Section 7.1.4 or other supporting data; that the Architect has made exhaustive or 
continuous on-site inspections; or that the Architect has made examinations to ascertain ho\l.T orlfor what purposes the 
Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such fxariiinations, audits and 
verifications, ifrequired by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner's auditors acting ii thel ... ~9l~i~ter~t,2Lt!}~ 
Owner. 

§ 7 .2 Final Payment · I 
§ 7 .2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the 
Construction Manager when I j 

.1 the Construction Manager has fully performed the Contract except for the Construction Manager's 
responsibility to co1Tect Work as provided in Section 12.2.2 of AIA Docum~iifA201-2007, and to 
satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment; j I I ··· 1 

.2 the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting for the Cost oft~e \York and a final 
Application for Payment; and I 1 

' I 
.3 a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect. I 

I i l ; 
The Owner's final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days aiter the issuance of the 
Architect's final Certificate for Payment, or as follows: ' 

(( » 

§ 7.2.2 The Owner's auditors will review and report in writing on the Construction Manager's final accounting within 
30 days aiter delivery of the final accounting to the Architect by the Constrnction Manager. Based upon such Cost of 
the Work as the Owner's auditors report to be substantiated by the Construction Manager's.final accounting, arid 
provided the other conditions of Section 7 .2.1 have been met, the Architect will, within seven days after receipt 'of the 
,.vritten report of the Owner's auditors, either issue to the Owner a final Certificate for Payment with a copy to the 
Construction Manager, or notify the Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect's reasons for 
withholding a ce1iificate as provided in Section 9.5.1 of the AIA Document A201-2007. The time periods stated in 
this Section supersede those stated in Section 9.4.1 of the AIA Document A201-2007. The Architect is not responsible 
for verifying the accuracy of the Construction Manager's final accounting. 

§ 7.2.3 If the Owner's auditors report the Cost of the Work as substantiated by the Construction Manager's final 
accounting to be less than claimed by the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shaU be entitle.d to request 
mediation of the disputed amount without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Section 15.2 of A201-2007, A 
request for mediation shall be made by the Construction Manager ,.vithin 30 days after the Construction Manager's 
receipt of a copy of the Architect's final Certificate for Payment. Failure to request mediatibn fithin this 30-day 
period shall result in the substantiated amount repmied by the Owner's auditors becoming binding on the Consfruction 
Manager. Pending a final resolution of the disputed amount, the Owner shall pay the Const~uction Manag~r the 
amount certified in the Architect's final Certificate for Payment. · 

§ 7.2.4 If, subsequent to final payment and at the o,.vner's request, the Construction Manager incurs costs described in 
Section 6.1.1 and not excluded by Section 6.8 to correct defective or nonconforming Work, the Owner shall reimburse 
the Construction Manager such costs and the Construction Manager's Fee applicable thereto on the same basis as if 
such costs had been incmTed prior to final payment. 

ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
For all phases of the Project, the Construction Manager and the Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance. 
Construction Manager's insurance shall be as stated in the Certificate ofinsurance attached' at Exhibit F, and the 
Owner's insurance shall be as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document A201-2007, 

1 
• 

AIA Document A134!C!o'. - 2009 (formerly A131J:YCMc - 2003}. Copyright :, 1994 1 2003 and 2009 by The .American Institute of Architects. A.11 rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA.:;; Docw-nent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of th.is 
AIA', Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penal ties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No,9463538253 which e:{pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: (200397.2180) 

14 



ARTICLE 9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 9.1 Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions 
set forth in this Article 9 and Aliicle 15 of A201-2007. However, for Claims arising from or relating to the 
Construction Manager's Preconstruction Phase services, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall be required as 
a condition precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of this Agreement shall not apply. 

§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Section 15.3 of AIA Document A201-2007, 
the method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows: I I 
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a metho'd ofibinding dispute 
resolution below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution me

1 
hod od1er than litigation, 

Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 

[ «X>~] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2007 

[ « >~ ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

[ « >~] Other: (Specify) 

(( >>, 

! 
§ 9.3 Initial Decision Maker I 

I 
I 

The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section 15 .2 of AIA Document A201-2007 for 
Claims arising from or relating to the Construction Manager's Construction Phase services,!unless the pmiies appoint 

I 

below another individual, not a patiy to the Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker. 
(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision lvfake1~ if 
other than the Architect.) 

(( » 
(( » 
(( » 
(( » 

ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 10.1 Termination Prior to Owner's Approval of the Control Estimate 
§ 10.1.1 Prior to the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate, the Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less 
than seven days' written notice to the Construction Manager for the Owner's convenience and without cause and the 
Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Owner, for 
the reasons set fo1ih in Section 14.1.1 of A201-2007. 

§ 10.1.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, the Construction Manager shall be 
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no 
event shall the Construction Manager's compensation under this Section exceed the compe~sation set forth in Section 
4.1. 

§ 10.1.3 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, after the commencement of the 
Construction Phase but prior to the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate, the Owner shall pay to the Construction 
Manager under Section 10.1.2 an amount calculated as follows, which amount shall be in addition to any 
compensation paid to the Construction Manager under Section 10.1.2: 

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination; 

.2 Add the Construction Manager's Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at 
the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that 
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of 
termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; and 

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for ConstrU:ctio~ Phase services. 

The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase pr rental at the election of 
the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Constrnction Manager which the Owner elects to retain and which is not 
otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take legal 
AIA Document A134~ - 2009 (formerly A131ncCMc - 2003). Copyright ~' 1994, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA') Docw-nent is protected by O. S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Onauthorized reproduction or distribution of this 
AIA-' Document, or any portion of it., may result. in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9~63538253 '.<1hich expires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: (2003972180) 

15 



assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, as a 
condition ofreceiving the payments refetTed to in this Atiicle 10, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such 
steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction Manager, as 
the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Construction 
Manager under such subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental agreements entered 
into by the Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner as described above. 

If the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchase orders or rental agreements as dJscriled above, the Owner 
will reimburse or indemnify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcohtra¢t, purchase order or 
rental agreement if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work if the coµtrabth\l,4H<:>t b,een 
terminated. If the Owner chooses not to accept assignment of any subcontract, purchase ordyr or rental agreement that 
would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been terminated, the Construction'Manager will 
terminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the C~nsfuiction Manager the 
costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination. I ! 

! ' 

§ 10.2 Termination Subsequent to the Owner's Approval of the Control Estimate 
§ 10.2.1 Subsequent to the Owner's approval of the Control Estimate, the Contr·act may be t~rmtnated as pr<;>vided in 
Sections 14.1.1, 14.1.2 and 14.2.1 of A201-2007. The provisions of Article 14 of A201-2007 do not otherwise apply 
to this Section 10.2. ! i I ; 

I I ' , I I 
i I I 

' I ' § 10.2.2 In the event of such termination by the Owner, the amount payable to the Construction1Manager shall not 
exceed the amount the Construction Manager would have been entitled to receive pursuant ~o S~ctions 1 o: 1.iand 
10.1.3 of this Agreement, less any compensation that may be awarded to the Owner pursuant t~ Article 9.

1 

§ 10.2.3 In the event of such termination by the Constrnction Manager, the amount payable to the Construction 
Manager shall be in accordance with Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 of this Agreement, except that the Construction 
Manager's Fee shall be calculated as if the Work had been fully completed by the Constr·uction Manager, including a 
reasonable estimate of the Cost of the Work for Work not actually completed. 

§ 10.2.4 In addition to the Owner's right to terminate this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 14.2.1 of A201-
2007, the Owner may terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided in Section 14.4; however, the Owner 
shall then only pay the Construction Manager an amount calculated as follows: 

.1 Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date oftennination; 

.2 Add the Construction Manager's Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at 
the rate stated in Section 5.1.1 or, if the Construction Manager's Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that 
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of 
termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; and 

.3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner. 

§ 10.3 Suspension 
The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2007. In such case, the 
Control Estimate and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Section 14.3.2 of AIA Document A'.201-2007, 
except that the term "profit" shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager's Fee ai described in Sections 5.1 
and 5.2.4 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 11.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201-2007. 

§ 11.2 Ownership and Use of Documents 
Section 1.5 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 

§ 11.3 Governing Law 
Section 13.1 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases. 

§ 11.4 Assignment , 
The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, success6rs, assigns and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall aksign this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing 

AIA Document Al34J.lJ. - 2009 (formerly Al3lnrCMc - 2003). Copyright ~. 1994 1 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. 

:~:n~~~u::~: ,A::•· a~~c:;~:a!\:r:i~c::: ::s~{: -i~
0 :::~:::t,;:l a;:d r;rtt:;naa:i:ne:~t:i:ast,i::d ~Nntl~t:~r~::!e::~:~d::t:~: ::x~:~r!~~~~;n p::s~:~: 16 

under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 12:28:34 ET on 05/16/2019 under Order No.9-l63S38'.:'.S3 1:<1hich e:-:pires on 04/29/2020, and 
is not for resale. 
User Notes: ('.:'.003972180) 



financing for the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement. 
Except as provided in Section 13.2.2 of A201-2007, neither party to the Contraet shall assign the Contract as a whole 
without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that 
party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 11.5 Other provisions: 

» 

«.1 

. 2 

.3 

.4 

.5 

.6 

.7 

.8 

.8 

' l 

Construction Manager's revised summary of planning and preeonstruction a~d r!ndering costs dated 
May 15, ~019 (Exhibit B); . . . j ! . 
Construction Manager's Scope of Services for plannmg and preconstruct1on and :r_enclermg .. __ 
development dated May 15, 2019 (Exhibit A); j - - -· -
HED's proposal dated May 13, 2019 (Exhibit G, which proposal is for vision planning only, but it is not 
a "Contract Document"); l l 
AUCH's original summary of costs dated April I, 2019 (Exhibit C); j 
Timelines for Program/Construetion Management Services and Developmenr of,Renderings (Exhibit 
D); - -· 

Provisions for Construetion Phase services starting during design phase, anticipated on or about the 1st 

ofNovember 2019 (Exhibit H); I I 1 

AUCH Certificate ofinsurance (Exhibit F); I i 
AUCH original Proposal letter dated April 1, 2019 (Exhibit E); l ! 
Pi.UCI-_I Modified Proposal letter_dated May 16, 2019 (Exhibit I); 

ARTICLE 12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 12.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction 
Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement 
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager. 

§ 12.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement: 
.1 AIA Document Al 34-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager 

as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee without a Guaranteed 
Maximum Priee, as amended. -

.2 AIA Doeument A201-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construetion, as amended . 

. 3 Other documents: 
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 

«See Section 11.5.» 

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

OWNER (Signature) 

« »<< )) 
(Printed name and title) 

GEORGE W. AUCH COMPANY 
(aka AUCH Construction) 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

« }}<( » 
(Printed name and title) 

AIA Document A134::s 2009 (formerly Al3lntcMc 2003). Copy1-ight 1994 1 2003 and 2009 by Th" Merican Institute of A:r:chi tecta. All .1:ighta reserved. 
WARNING: This AIA~ Document 1.s protected by 1J.S. Col)yl::':ight Law and International Tr•ati••· Unauthorized reproductinn or d1.•tribu~ion of th.:..s 
AIA"' Document, o:t any portion of it, may result in ••v•r• civil and criminal p•n•lt.1aa 1 and will be prosecuted to th• maximum extent poss.1.hl.= 1 7 
under the La.._.. "."h:,:; d:t~ft was prcduced by AIA eott·.-1are at 12~23:34 E'f on U5/~6/2C19 under Ordert N"o,94635.38253 which e:qJi.re:::, on O-t.;'.29/202:,;, and 
i5 net ~or x~!!liL'.:,e. 
User Notes; (28'.)3972180; 



AIA Document A201™ 2007 

General Conditions 0£ the Contract £or Construction 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and location or address) 
«PfiOENfi(CENTEifPARKING GARAGE & AMPHITHEATEil'RENOVATIONk» ; 
<<l'q~tia,d;MI ~j: 

THE OWNER: 
(Name,le[Ial status cmd add,:ess) 
~qffy'ot f,O~TIAC/>>{<(tlleJ)\Vlle1·) » 
«~.yi:i5.QiWoqclwatd Avenue. ·.· . 
l'cinti~c;'.:Nrr .48342» · 

THE ARCHITECT: 
(Name, legcdstatus and address) 
«To Bfbetermin~d»« » . 
{(}) 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 OWNER 

3 CONTRACTOR 

4 ARCHITECT 

5 SUBCONTRACTORS 

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 

7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

8 TIME 

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

! --- -- , -''" ,w A 

ADD+TIONS AND DELETIONS: The 
autfior of this document has 

1'.·d,d.1,
1
d information needed for 

lts completion. The author 
ma'(/ also have revised the 
t:ext of the original AIA 
hartdard fom.: An Additions 
knd

1
Deletions Report that 

bates added 1nformation as 
&ell as revifsiohs to the 
~ta~dard form text is 
available from t'he author and 
should be reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion or 
modification. 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA' Document to 
another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyrighi:: laws as 
set forth in the footer of this 
documeni::. 

AIA Dooumant A201ni - 2007. Copyright~- 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1 l'.?37, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963 1 1966, 1970, 1976 1 1987, 1997 and ;'.?007 by The American 
lnlli:itu,:e o! Arc-hite:ct~. All rights reserved. IJ,LI..RND!G: This AIA" Document 1.s prota.::.icad by !.LS. Co'PYl:l.ght Law and Int• rnat.ion•l Treaties. 

'Unauthor::..zed repx::oduction or d.istr1..bution of th1a AIA" Dccumant, or ,.a.n•.{ porcion of it, ..,._y :rasult: 1.n severe eivl.l and criminal p•naltl.••, 3.nd 1 
·,1:r_ll be prosecuted to the r.ia::c.r:ium extent: poss::tbls: under the law. This d.t:llft Wl!U p;::oducad by A.IA s::ift·,.J::!re at lS: )8~15 ET on ~:'.:/10/201'.;I ander. 
IJr.::ier ~:o. 9463538~53 w"licn e:q:::.ire..$ or. U,l/2.?/'.:JJ20, a.r.d i.s not 10r resale. 
Uaa:r Notes: \ 3:_13ast1::'.] 1 



INDEX 
(Topics and numbers in bold are section headings.) 

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Acceptance of Work 
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3 
Access to Work 
3.16, 6.2.1, 12.1 
Accident Prevention 
10 
Acts and Omissions 
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 
10.2.8, 13.4.2, 13.7, 14.1, 15.2 
Addenda 
1.1.1, 3.11 
Additional Costs, Claims for 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 6.1.1, 7.3.7.5, 10.3, 15.1.4 
Additional Inspections and Testing 
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.5 
Additional Insured 
11.1.4 
Additional Time, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.5 
Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 4.2, 9.4, 9.5 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid 
1.1.1 
Aesthetic Effect 
4.2.13 
Allowances 
3.8, 7.3.8 
All-risk Insurance 
11.3.1, 11.3.1.1 
Applications for Payment 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10, 11.1.3 
Approvals 
2.1.1, 2.2.2, 2.4, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 
4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.5.1 
Arbitration 
8.3.1, 11.3.10, 13.1, 15.3.2, 15.4 
ARCHITECT 
4 
Architect, Definition of 
4.1.1 
Architect, Extent of Authority 
2.4, 3.12.7, 4.1, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.7, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.5.1, 13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1 
Architect, Limitations of Authority and Responsibility 
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 9.4.2, 
9.5.3, 9.6.4, 15.1.3, 15.2 
Architect's Additional Services and Expenses 
2.4, 11.3.1.1, 12.2.1, 13.5.2, 13.5.3, 14.2.4 
Architect's Administration of the Contract 
3.1.3, 4.2, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5 

Architect's Approvals 
2.4, 3.1.3, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7 
Architect's Authority to Reject Work 
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1 
Architect's Copyright 
1.1.7, 1.5 
Architect's Decisions l I 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.D, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 

I ! 7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2 1 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 15.2, 15.3 I 
Architect's Inspections 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8J, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Architect's Instructions I 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13,$-2 
Architect's Interpretations j 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Architect's Project Representative 
4.2.10 l I 
Architect's Relationship with Contractor 1 

1· 

I I l 
1.1.2, 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3; 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 

j j t 1 
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.19, 3.:11, 3.12, ll6,, 3.18, 
4.1.2, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7,, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.,3, 9.4, 9.5, 
9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 11)3.7,' 12, 13.4.2, 13

1

.5, 15.2 
Architect's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3.7 
Architect's Representations 
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1 
Architect's Site Visits 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Asbestos 
10.3.1 
Attorneys' Fees 
3.18.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.3 
Award of Separate Contracts 
6.1.1, 6.1.2 
Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for 
Portions of the Work 
5.2 
Basic Definitions 
1.1 
Bidding Requirements 
1.1.1, 5.2.1, 11.4.1 
Binding Dispute Resolution 
9.7, 11.3.9, 11.3.10, 13.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 
15.3.2, 15.4.1 
Boiler and Machinery Insurance 
11.3.2 
Bonds, Lien 
7.3.7.4, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Bonds, Performance, and Payment 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.3.9, 11.4 
Building Permit 
3.7.1 
Capitalization 
1.3 
Certificate of Substantial Coinpletion 
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5 . 

AIADocwnentA20lnt- 2007. Copyright-:, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AL.;,,,.' Docwnent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or di.str1but1on of this A.IA" Docwnent, or any portion of it, may result 1.n severe c1..vil and cr.1.minal penalties, and 2 
will be prosecuted to the max.1.rnum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order ~Jo, 9463538253 ,,,rhich e:•:pires on 04/2()/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



Certificates for Payment 
4,2.1, 4,2,5, 4,2,9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9,5, 9,6,1, 9,6,6, 9,7, 
9.10.1, 9,10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.3 
Certificates ofinspection, Testing or Approval 
13.5.4 
Certificates of Insurance 
9.10.2, 11.1.3 
Change Orders 
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3,8,2.3, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 
5.2,3, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.6, 7.3.9,, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 
9.3.1.1, 9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.3.1.2, 11.3.4, l 1.3.9, 12.1.2, 
15.1.3 
Change Orders, Definition of 
7.2.1 
CHANGES IN THE WORK 
2,2,1, 3.11, 4.2.8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3,1, 7.4, 8.3,1, 9.3,1.1, 
11.3.9 
Claims, Definition of 
15.1.1 
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
3.2.4, 6.1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9,3,3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4 
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims 
15.4.1 
Claims for Additional Cost 
3,2.4, 3.7.4, 6,1.1, 7.3,9, 10.3,2, 15.1.4 
Claims for Additional Time 
3.2.4, 3,7.4, 6.1.1, 8.3.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.5 
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for 
3.7.4 
Claims for Damages 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6,7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15,1.6 
Claims Subject to Arbitration 
15.3.1, 15.4.1 
Cleaning Up 
3.15, 6,3 
Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to 
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2,2, 8.3,1, 11.1, 11.3.1, 11,3,6, 11.4.1, 
15.1.4 
Commencement of the Work, Definition of 
8.1.2 
Communications Facilitating Contract 
Administration 
3.9.1, 4.2.4 
Completion, Conditions Relating to 
3.4, I, 3.11, 3, 15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4,2, 9,8, 9.9.1, 
9.10, 12.2, 13.7, 14,1.2 
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND 
9 
Completion, Substantial 
4,2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8,2.3, 9.4.2, 9,8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7 
Compliance with Laws 
1.6, 3,2,3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 10,2.2, 
11.1, 11.3, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14.1.1, 
14.2.1.3, 15,2.8, 15.4.2, 15.4.3 

Concealed or Unknown Conditions 
3.7.4, 4,2,8, 8.3.1, 10.3 
Conditions of the Contract 
1. 1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4 
Consent, Written 
3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12,8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8,5, 9,9.1, 
9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.3,1, 13,2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2 

' : 
Consolidation or Joinder 
15.4.4 i . 
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY I Y•.~•S· ••••• 

SEPARATE CONTRACTpRS 
1.1.4, 6 ! (' 
Construction Change Direttiv~, Definition of 
7.3.l i I 
Construction Change Direhives 
I. 1.1, 3.4,2, 3.12,8, 4.2.8, 7.1.i,'7.l,2, 7.1.3, 7.3, 
9,3, l.1 

I 

Construction Schedules, Contractor's 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3,12,2, 6.1.3, 15,1..5.2 

i I 

Contingent Assignment of ~ub;contracts 
5.4, 14.2.2.2 
Continuing Contract Perform~nce 
15.1.3 
Contract, Definition of 
1.1.2 
CONTRACT, n:RMINATION OR 
SUSPENSION OF THE 
5.4.1.1, 11.3,9, 14 
Contract Administration 
3, 1.3, 4, 9 .4, 9 .5 
Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating 
to 
3.7.1, 3.10, 5,2, 6.1, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 11.4.1 
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of 
1.5.2, 2.2.5, 5,3 
Contract Documents, Definition of 
1.1.1 
Contract Sum 
3.7.4, 3.8, 5.2.3, 7.2, 7,3, 7.4, 9.1, 9.4.2, 9,5,1.4, 9.6,7, 
9.7, 10.3.2, 11.3.1, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4, 15.2.5 
Contract Sum, Definition of 
9.1 
Contract Time 
3.7.4, 3,7,5, 3,10,2, 5.2.3, 7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7,3,5, 7.4, 
8,1.1, 8,2.1, 8.3.1, 9.5,1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 14.3.2, 
15.1.5.1, 15,2.5 
Contract Time, Definition of 
8.1.1 
CONTRACTOR 
3 
Contractor, Definition of 
3.1, 6.1.2 
Contractor's Construction Schedules 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12,2, 6,1.3, 15.1.5.2 
Contractor's Employees , 
3.3.2, 3.4,3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18,2, 4,2,3, 4,2,6, 10.2, 10.3, 
l 1.1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2,1.1 

AIAOocumentA201m 2007. Copyright 1911, 1915, l!:.118, 1925, 1937, 1951, 19SB, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1910, 1976, 198-}, 1997dnd2007by'I'h•Aaerican 
In.stitut• of Architects. All :eights reserved. WAlUUNG: This A.IA' Document i.11, protected by U.S. copyright. Law and Int~rrH1.tiona.l Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction o:r: distr:1.but.1. • n of this: AIA~ Document, or any port.ion of it, may result. 1-n severe civil and criminal p1mal.t.iae, and 3 
will be prosecuted to th~ rr.aximu.'Tt e:-ttant pou:1bl• under the la:,;, 7!-.is draft was ptodUc1':d h'/ >.IA scftware at 15:U8:'.:.'5 ET on 0':1/16/2.01~ under 
0!:"dl'!.= He:,. ~Hf:3518253 '.,th:'._ch e:q:::'._.res on :::4/2~/2020 1 a--id is c,:'.lt for resale. 
User Notes: (32-18038:::'.2) 



Contractor's Liability Insurance 
11.1 
Contractor's Relationship with Separate Contractors 
and Owner's Forces 
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3.7, 12.1.2, 12.2.4 
Contractor's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, 5, 9.6.2, 9.6.7, 9.10.2, 
11.3.1.2, 11.3.7, 11.3.8 
Contractor's Relationship with the Architect 
1.1.2, 1.5, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 3.5, 
3.7.4, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.1.3, 4.2, 5 .2, 6.2.2, 
7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 
11.3.7, 12, 13.5, 15.1.2, 15.2.1 
Contractor's Representations 
3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.8.2 
Contractor's Responsibility for Those Performing the 
Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8 
Contractor's Revie,v of Contract Documents 
3.2 
Contractor's Right to Stop the Work 
9.7 
Contractor's Right to Terminate the Contract 
14.1, 15.1.6 
Contractor's Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.4, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 
9.8.3, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3, 11.4.2 
Contractor's Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Contractor's Supervision and Construction 
Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.5, 7.3.7, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3 
Contractual Liability Insurance 
11.1.1.8, 11.2 
Coordination and Correlation 
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1 
Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications 
1.5, 2.2.5, 3.11 
Copyrights 
1.5, 3.17 
Correction of Work 
2.3, 2.4, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, 12.2 
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2 
Cost, Definition of 
7.3.7 
Costs 
2.4, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.1, 6.2.3, 
7.3.3.3, 7.3.7, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6, 11.3, 
12.1.2, 12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.5, 14 
Cutting and Patching 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Damage to Constrnction of Owner or Separate 
Contractors 
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 11.1.1, 11.3, 
12.2.4 

Damage to the Work 
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 11.3.1, 12.2.4 
Damages, Claims for 
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1, 
11.3.5, 11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Damages for Delay 
6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.p l 
Date of Commencement ofj the

1 
Work, Definition of 

8.1.2 I j 
Date of Substantial Complr

1 
tioµ, Definition of 

8.1.3 
Day, Definition of 
8.1.4 
Decisions of the Architect 
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 15.2, 6.3, 
7.3.7, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2: 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.5.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2; 
Decisions to Withhold Certification I 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3 I I i 1 

Defective or N onconformin~ W •rk, Acceptande, 
Rejection and Correction of! J I i 
2.3, 2.4, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.5, 9.~.l, ?,5.2, 9.6.~, 9.8.2, 
9.9.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.1 : 
Definitions 
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 
15.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1 
Delays and Extensions of Time 
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Disputes 
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2 
Documents and Samples at the Site 
3.11 
Drawings, Definition of 
1.1.5 
Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of 
3.11 
Effective Date oflnsurance 
8.2.2, 11.1.2 
Emergencies 
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.4 
Employees, Contractor's 
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3.3, 11.1.1, 11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1 
Equipment, Labor, Materials or 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Execution and Progress of the Work 
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.2.3, 2.2.5, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 
3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.5, 8.2, 
9.5.1, 9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.3 
Extensions of Time 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4, 14.3, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 i 
Failure of Payment 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2 

AIA Document A2QllM - 2007. Copyright~' 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937 1 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNING: This Ar.;-.,.' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties I and 4 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible. under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538.'.?.53 which e:,:pires on .J'i/29/2020 1 and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



Faulty Work 
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work) 
Final Completion and Final Payment 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.1, 11.3.5, 
12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Financial Arrangements, Owner's 
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance 
11.3.1.1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1 
Governing Law 
13.1 
Guarantees (See Wmrnnty) 
Hazardous Materials 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers 
5.2.1 
Indemnification 
3.17, 3.18, 9.10.2, 10.3.3, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 11.3.1.2, 
11.3.7 
Information and Services Required of the Owner 
2.1.2, 2.2, 3.2.2, 3.12.4, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.4, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 
Initial Decision 
15.2 
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of 
1.1.8 
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions 
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5 
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority 
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 
15.2.5 
Injury or Damage to Person or Property 
10.2.8, 10.4 
Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.5 
Instructions to Bidders 
1.1.1 
Instructions to the Contractor 
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.5.2 
Instruments of Service, Definition of 
1.1.7 
Insurance 
3.18.1, 6.1.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 11 
Insurance, Boiler and Machinery 
11.3.2 
Insurance, Contractor's Liability 
11.1 
Insurance, Effective Date of 
8.2.2, 11.1.2 
Insurance, Loss of Use 
11.3.3 
Insurance, Owner's Liability 
11.2 

Insurance, Property 
10.2.5, 11.3 
Insurance, Stored Materials 
9.3.2 
INSURANCE AND BONDS 
11 
Insurance Companies, Cons<,nt to Pmiial Occupancy 
9.9.1 I : 
Intent of the Contract Documents 
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 7,.4 
Interest 
13.6 
Interpretation i 
1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 1.5.1.11 
Interpretations, Written I 1 

4.2.11, 4.2.12, 15.1.4 
Judgment on Final Award 
15.4,2 I I 

Labor and Materials, Equipm~nt I 
1.u, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3,.3j, 3.12, 3.13, 3:15.1, 

l , l i 

4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3!7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14,2.~.1, 14,2.1.2 i I 

Labor Disputes 
8.3.1 
Laws and Regulations 
1.5, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1.1, 11.3, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 
14, 15.2.8, 15.4 
Liens 
2.1.2, 9.3.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8 
Limitations, Statutes of 
12.2.5, 13.7, 15.4.1.1 
Limitations of Liability 
2.3, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 
4.2.12, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.1.2, 
11.2, 11.3.7, 12.2.5, 13.4.2 
Limitations of Time 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 11.3.1.5, 
11.3.6, 11.3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15 
Loss of Use Insurance 
11.3.3 
Material Suppliers 
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.6, 9.10.5 
Materials, Hazardous 
10.2.4, 10.3 
Materials, Labor, Equipment and 
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 1.5.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 
3.15.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.7, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 
9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2 
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and 
Procedures of Construction 
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9,4.2 
Mechanic's Lien 
2.1.2, 15.2.8 

AIA Document A201Df - 2007. Copyright~' 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA') Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La•,J and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 5 
will be prosecuted to the ma::nmum extent possibl.;,, under the law. This draft was p.toduccd by AIA soft 1.1arc at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. Q~63538253 •.,;hich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



Mediation 
8.3.1, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 
15.4.1 
Minor Changes in the Work 
1.1.1, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
13 
Modifications, Definition of 
1.1.l 
Modifications to the Contract 
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 11.3.1 
Mutual Responsibility 
6.2 
Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of 
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3 
Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of 
2.3, 2.4, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 
12.2.1 
Notice 
2.2.1, 2.3, 2.4, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.2, 3.12.9, 5.2.1, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 11.1.3, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 
14.1, 14.2, 15.2.8, 15.4.1 
Notice, Written 
2.3, 2.4, 3.3.1, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 9.7, 9.10, 
10.2.2, 10.3, 11.1.3, 11.3.6, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 14, 15.2.8, 
15.4.1 
Notice of Claims 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.4 
Notice of Testing and Inspections 
13.5.1, 13.5.2 
Observations, Contractor's 
3.2, 3.7.4 
Occupancy 
2.2.2, 9.6.6, 9.8, 11.3.1.5 
Orders, Written 
1.1.1,2.3,3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.3.9, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.5.2, 
14.3.1 
OWNER 
2 
Owner, Definition of 
2.1.1 
Owner, Information and Services Required of the 
2.1.2, 2.2, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 
9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1, 
13.5.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 
Owner's Authority 
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3, 2.4, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 
4.1.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 7.2.1, 
7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
9.10.2, 10.3.2, 11.1.3, 11.3.3, 11.3.10, 12.2.2, 12.3, 
13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 15.2.7 
Owner's Financial Capability 
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4 
Owner's Liability Insurance 
11.2 
Owner's Relationship with Subcontractors 
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2 

Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work 
2.4, 14.2.2 
Owner's Right to Clean Up 
6.3 
Owner's Right to Perform Construction and to 
Award Separate Contracts 

6.1 I l 
Owner's Right to Stop the

1
work 

23 I I 
Owner's Right to Suspend tile Work 
14.3 
Owner's Right to Terminate thejContract 
14.2 · 
Ownership and Use of Dra vings, Specifications 

l I 
and Other Instruments of ~eryice 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.2.5, 3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12, 
5.3 
Partial Occupancy or Use 
9.6.6, 9.9, 11.3.1.5 
Patching, Cutting and 
3.14, 6.2.5 
Patents 
3.17 
Payment, Applications for 
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment, Certificates for 
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 13.7, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4 
Payment, Failure of 
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.6, 14.Ll.3, 14.2.1.2 
Payment, Final 
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.4.1, 12.3, 
13.7, 14.2.4, 14.4.3 
Payment Bond, Performance Bond and 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4 
Payments, Progress 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3 
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
9 
Payments to Subcontractors 
5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2 
PCB . 

10.3.1 
Performance Bond and Payment Bond 
7.3.7.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.4 
Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
2.2.2, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.7.4, 10.2.2 
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF 
10 
Polychlorinated Biphenyl 
10.3.1 
Product Data, Definition of 
3.12.2 
Product Data and Samples? S~op Drawings 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 i 
Progress and Completion · 
4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.3 

AIA Document A201'['1,l - 2007. Copyright ·;', 1911 1 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA

01 
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 

Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 6 
·.nll be prosecuted to the maxirnwn extent possible under the law. This d1:aft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.9463538253 •;thich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: (811808822) 



Progress Payments 
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3 
Project, Definition of 
1.1.4 
Project Representatives 
4.2.10 
Property Insurance 
10.2.5, 11.3 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
10 
Regulations and Laws 
1.5, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 4.1.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 11.1, 11.4, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14, 
15.2.8, 15.4 
Rejection of Work 
3,5, 4.2.6, 12.2.1 
Releases and Waivers of Liens 
9.10.2 
Representations 
3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 
9.10.1 
Representatives 
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.10, 5.1.1, 5.1.2, 
13.2.1 
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work 
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10 
Retain age 
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Review of Contract Documents and Field 
Conditions by Contractor 
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3 
Review of Contractor's Submittals by Owner and 
Architect 
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2 
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples 
by Contractor 
3.12 
Rights and Remedies 
1.1.2, 2.3, 2.4, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 
6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 
13.4, 14, 15.4 
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
3.17 
Rules and Notices for Arbitration 
15.4.1 
Safety of Persons and Property 
10.2, 10.4 
Safety Precautions and Programs 
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4 
Samples, Definition of 
3.12.3 
Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and 
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7 
Samples at the Site, Documents and 
3.11 
Schedule of Values 
9.2, 9.3.1 

Schedules, Construction 
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.5.2 
Separate Contracts and Contractors 
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2 
Shop Drawings, Definition of 
3.12.1 
Shop Drawings, Product Data;and Samples 

I , 
3.11,3.12,4.2.7 f i 
Site, Use of i 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Site Inspections 
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2 9.4,.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Site Visits, Architect's I 
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.5 
Special Inspections and Tes~~g] 
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.5 
Specifications, Definition of 

I 
1.1.6 ! 
Specifications , 1 i i 

' ' , I 
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.11,;3.12.10, 3.17,!4.2!14 
Statute of Limitations · ! I 
13.7, 15.4.1.1 
Stopping the Work 
2.3, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1 
Stored Materials 
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4 
Subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.1 
SUBCONTRACTORS 
5 
Subcontractors, Work by 
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6.7 
Subcontractual Relations 
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1 
Submittals 
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.7, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.3 
Submittal Schedule 
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7 
Subrogation, Waivers of 
6.1.1, 11.3.7 
Substantial Completion 
4.2.9, 8,1.1, 8.1.3, 8,2,3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 
13.7 
Substantial Completion, Definition of 
9.8.1 
Substitution of Subcontractors 
5.2.3, 5.2.4 
Substitution of Architect 
4.1.3 
Substitutions of Materials 
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8 
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of 
5.1.2 
Subsurface Conditions 
3.7.4 
Successors and Assigns 
13.2 

AIA Document A2orrw: - 2007. Copyright •';', 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Arc hi tee ts, All rights reserved. WA.RNIHG: This AL\<J Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La•A and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or d.1.str.1.but.1.on of th.is AIA"' Document, or any portion of it, may result .1.n se,1ere civil and criminal penalties I and 7 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible! under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 which e:.:pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



Superintendent 
3.9, 10.2.6 
Supervision and Construction Procedures 
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 
7.3.7, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3 
Surety 
5.4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 14.2.2, 15.2.7 
Surety, Consent of 
9.10.2, 9.10.3 
Surveys 
2.2.3 
Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
14.3 
Suspension of the Work 
5.4.2, 14.3 
Suspension or Termination of the Contract 
5.4.1.1, 14 
Taxes 
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.7.4 
Termination by the Contractor 
14.1, 15.1.6 
Termination by the Owner for Cause 
5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.6 
Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
14.4 
Termination of the Architect 
4.1.3 
Termination of the Contractor 
14.2.2 
TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 
CONTRACT 
14 
Tests and Inspections 
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 
9.10.1, 10.3.2, 11.4.1, 12.2.1, 13.5 
TIME 
8 
Time, Delays and Extensions of 
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5 
Time Limits 
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.4, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 
9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 11.1.3, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 
15.1.2, 15.4 
Time Limits on Claims 
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 13.7, 15.1.2 

Title to Work 
9.3.2, 9.3.3 
Transmission of Data in Digital Form 
1.6 
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
12 
Uncovering of Work 

1

. ! 
12.1 I 

Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown 
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3 I j 
Unit Prices 
7.3.3.2, 7.3.4 
Use of Documents 
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.2.5, 3.12.6, 5.3 
Use of Site 
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1 
Values, Schedule of 
9.2, 9.3.1 , 
Waiver of Claims by the Architect 
13.4.2 i I 
Waiver of Claims by the Contractor 

I ' 9.10.5, 13.4.2, 15.1.6 : l 
Waiver of Claims by the O~ner 
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Waiver of Consequential Damages 
14.2.4, 15.1.6 
Waiver of Liens 
9.10.2, 9.10.4 
Waivers of Subrogation 
6.1.1, 11.3.7 
Warranty 
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 13.7 
Weather Delays 
15.1.5.2 
Work, Definition of 
1.1.3 
Written Consent 
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.5, 
9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.4.1, 13.2, 13.4.2, 15.4.4.2 
Written Interpretations 
4.2.11, 4.2.12 
Written Notice 
2.3, 2.4, 3.3.1, 3.9, 3.12.9, 3:12.10, 5.2.1, 8.2.2, 9.7, 
9.10, 10.2.2, 10.3, 11.1.3, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 
15.4.1 
Written Orders 
1.1.1, 2.3, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.5.2, 14.3.1, 
15.1.2 

AIA Document A201~ - 2007. Copyright ~' 1911, 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AL\_' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized repraductJ.on or distribution of this A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and cri..rninal penalties, and 
·,all be prosecuted to the rnaximwn extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order tfo, 9463538253 which e:.:pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (311808822) 

8 



ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS 
§ 1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), 
Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement 
and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is ( 1) a written anien<l,ment to the Contract 
signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive or (4) a w1jtterl order for a minor 
change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreemcint, ~he Contract 
Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sa~pl~ fm;JTis, o.ther 
information furnished by the Owner in anticipation ofreceiving bids or proposals, the Contr

1
rctor's bid or proposal, or 

po1iions of Addenda relating to bidding requirements. j 
§ 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT 
The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entir and integrated 

l, ,- ___ J 

agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written 
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Dpcurents shaU,n9! be 
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind ( 1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the 11 

, l I 

Architect's consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor\ (3); between the Owner 
and the Architect or the Architect's consultants or (4) between any persons or entities otherltha~ the Owntr and the 
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations unde~· th~ 
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect's duties. I I I 1 

l 

§ 1.1.3 THE WORK 
The term "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or 
paiiially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by the 
Contractor to fulfill the Contractor's obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a paii of the Project. 

§ 1.1.4 THE PROJECT 
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or 
a paii and which may include construction by the Owner and by separate contractors. 

§ 1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS 
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial po1iions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and 
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and diagrams. 

§ 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS 
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, 
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services. 

§ 1.1.7 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE . . 
Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the t~ngible 
and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect's consultants under their respective 
professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys; models, 
sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials. 

§ 1.1.8 INITIAL DECISION MAKER 
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in 
accordance with Section 15.2 and certify termination of the Agreement under Section 14.2.2. 

§ 1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion 
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as 
binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent 'consistent with the 
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the;indicated results. 

AIADocumentA20l!IX - 2007, Copyrigh.t ~- 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963 1 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2001 by The American 
Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA1 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distr1..but.1.an a£ th.is AIA' Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 9 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.9463538253 which expires on 0.J./29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not 
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be 
performed by any tr·ade. 

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction 
industry meanings are used in the Conh·act Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. 

I 1 
§ 1.3 CAPITALIZATION j I 
Te1ms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined,1 (2) _the titles ofnumbered 
articles or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects. I 

I 

§ 1.4 INTERPRETATION I ' 
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" ~nd "any" and articles 
such as "the" and ''an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is 
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement. ] j 

§ 1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUME~TS 
1
OF SERVI~!: 

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their resJ:iecti~e 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and will retain all comm6n 1Jw, statutm/y arid other 
reserved rights, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subconh·actors, Sub-subcontractors, !nd ~aterial o~ eq4ipment 
suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instr·uments of Service. Submittal or disti·ibution to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be cohstr~ed as pub/ication in 
derogation of the Architect's or Architect's consultants' reserved rights. i 

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized to use 
and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. All 
copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The 
Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the Instruments of 
Service on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written 
consent of the Owner, Architect and the Architect's consultants. 

§ 1.6 TRANSMISSION OF DATA IN DIGITAL FORM 
If the paiiies intend to tr·ansmit Instrnments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they 
shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already provided in the 
Agreement or the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 2 OWNER 
§ 2.1 GENERAL 
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is refen-ed to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who' shall have express 
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner's approval or autho\-ization. E~cept as 
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means 'the Owner 
or the Owner's authorized representative. 

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor within fifteen days after receipt of a writt6n request, information 
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic's 1ien rights. Such 
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the prope1iy on which the Project is located, 
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner's interest therein. 

§ 2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER 
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing that the Owner provide reasonable 
evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner's obligations under the Contract. 
Thereafter, the Contractor may only request such evidence if ( 1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor 
as the Contract Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contrabt shm; or (3) the 
Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner's ability to make' pa)lment when due. The I ,, __ 

Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the 
pmiion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, 1the Owner shall not 
materially vary such financial an-angements without prior notice to the Contractor. 

AIA Document A201£Y - 2007. Copyright _;:, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNIHG: This AIA"l Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 10 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent poss.1.ble under the la·H. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.9463538253 ' . .;hich e:.:pires on Cl.J/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (8118088'.22) 



§ 2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, 
including those required under Section 3. 7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, 
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent strnctures or for permanent 
changes in existing facilities. 

§ 2,2.3 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations ari:d utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to ~elY: on the accuracy of 
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe pJrformance of the 
Work. I ! 

i ' 
§ 2.2.4 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the ContJact Documents with 
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services undcir th6 0,vner's control and 
relevant to the Contractor's performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after recJivirig the Contractor's 
written request for such information or services. j I 

<-,- ss,,') 

§ 2.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to th.e Contractor one copy of 
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2. ! i I ] 

I : I 

§ 2.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK j : ] l 
If the Contractor fails to coJTect Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of th~ Cohtract Doc'uments as 
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to cany out Work in accordance with the Contdct Documents] the; Owner 
may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any po1iion thereof, until th~ ca~se for such oider has 
been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner 
to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by 
Section 6.1.3. 

§ 2.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK 
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to ca1Ty out the Work in accordance with tbe Contract Documents and fails 
within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue co11'ection of,such 
default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to othei remedies the Owner may 
have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from payrnents 
then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including O,vner's expenses 
and compensation for the Architect's additional services made necessary by such default, neglect or failure. Such 
action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the Architect. If 
payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor shall pay the 
difference to the Owner. 

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.1 GENERAL 
§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is refeITed to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, ifrequired in the jurisdiction 
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who

1
shall have exp\·ess 

authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term ''Conti·actor" means the 
Contractor or the Contractor's authorized representative. 

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect's administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor. 

§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become 
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be perfonned and con-elated personal observations 
with requirements of the Contract Documents. -·- - · -

A.IA Document >.201:u 2007. Copyright'::, 1911, 1915 1 1918, 1925 1 1.937, 1951 1 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987 1 1997 and 2007 by Tha American 
Institute of Architect~. A.l!. rights reserved. WARNING~ This AI.A~ Document is: protsct•d by 0. S. Copyright Law ai.nd '.Cntu:n.1tt.iona1 Treaties. 
Unauthorized rep:roducticn er distributl-on of this AIA' Docum~t, or ..i.ny portion of it, 1,a_y result in severe c.:.vi..1 and cri.mi.na! p•n•lt.1.e4, and 11 
will be pro••cut«d to the maximu.'1l extent po••ibl• L1oder the la:,;. This cii;-~ft was producl!ld by AI.A software ::i::: 15:08:15 ET on 05/lfi2019 ur.d<"!r 
Orde,::- ~lc.94635JS253 'i.:h:ch e::.:p:.r-es on J • /l~/202::J, .in.cl i~ :-;ot for r~sale, 
User Notes: (&1180582:2:) 



§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the 
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the 
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing 
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These 
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and constrnction by the Contractor and are not for the 
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall 
promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or mad1 known to the 
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recogqize? that the Contractor's 
review is made in the Contractor's capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professi?·n· al, unless otherwise 
specifically provided in the Contract Documents. I I 

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordanc9 with applicable laws, 
statutes, ordinances, codes, mies and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, butJthe fontractor shall 
promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for 
information in such form as the Architect may require. J I 

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the 
Architect issues in response to the Contractor's notices or requests for information pursuant;to s:ections 3.2.2 ~r 3.2.3, 
the Contractor shall make Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perfotjn the obligations 9f 
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner as w6uldihave beeri avoided if 
the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligationt th6 Contract6r shall not 
be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or orriissi~ns in the tontract 
Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract Dotuments, or foi· 
nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, ~ules and regulations, and 
lawful orders of public authorities. 

§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES 
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor's best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences 
and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract Documents give 
other specific instructions concerning these matters. If the Contract Doct1ments give specific instructions concerning 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety 
thereof and, except as stated below, shall be fully and solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to the Owner and Architect and shall not 
proceed with that portion of the Work without further written instrnctions from the Architect. If the Contractor is then 
instr·ucted to proceed with the required means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures without acceptance of 
changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shall be solely responsible for any loss or damage arising solely from 
those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. 

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the O,vner for acts and omissions of the Contractor's employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or 
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already perfo1med to determine that 
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work. 

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS 
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or pe1manent 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. 

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accqrdance with Sections 
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the 

I 

Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive. ! 

AIA DocumentA20lnr: - 2007. Copyright:. 1911 1 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963 1 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AIA' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 0£ this AIA ~ Document, or any portion of .1.t, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 
•;.all be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the la•.>J. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.946]538253 •.11hich e:,:pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: ( 811808822) 

12 



§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor's employees and other 
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not pe1mit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly 
skilled in tasks assigned to them. 

§ 3.5 WARRANTY 
The Contractor wanants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be 
of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or pe1mit otherwise. The Contr:actor further wmrnnts 
that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be freejfro~ defects, except for 
those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or equipment not 
conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor's warranty ~xcl~g~s i:emedy for 
damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, jmproper or insufficient 
maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required b~ the(Architect, the 
Contractor shall furnish satisfact01y evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. 

l I § 3.6 TAXES I 1 

The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are 
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to 

,_.. I I · I 
go into efiect. i j I ! 

! l 
§ 3.7 PERMITS, FEES, NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS t j j I 
§ 3. 7 .1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the 

1
building 

permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies hec9ssary for woppr 
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Cohtract and legally required 
at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded. 

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work. 

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrmy to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules 
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such 
Work and shall bear the costs attributable to conection. 

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unlmown Conditions. If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface 
or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or 
(2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and 
generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the 
Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no 
event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such 
conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase 9r drcrease in th~ 
Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an equitable 
adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that th~ ccinditions at1the site are 
not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in tlie terms of the Contract 
is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor in writing, stating the reasons. If ~ithdr party 

I 

disputes the Architect's determination or recommendation, that party may proceed as provided in Article 15. 

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial 
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately 
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice, 
the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the 
operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall 
continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15. 

§ 3.8 ALLOWANCES 
' I 

§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Qocuments. Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but 
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor hks reasonable objection. 

AIA Document A201~ - 2007, Copyright:, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AL'!:..." Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or d.1.str.1.but.1.on of this .A.IA" Docwnent, or any portion of 1.t, may result 1.n severe civil and cruninal penalties, and 13 
will be prosecuted to the maxunwn extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order No.9-163538253 ,_,,hich expires on 04/2~/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, 
.1 Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and 

all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts, and of labor costs for unloading and handling at the 
site and installation costs; 

.2 Contractor's costs for overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts 
shall be included in the Contract Sum but not in the allowances; and 

.3 Whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shap be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the differ~ncb between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor's co{ts uhder Section 3.8.2.2. 

i I C•• ' 

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness. 
I 

§ 3.9 SUPERINTENDENT i I 
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants wllo sHall be in attendance at 
the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Co1~tradtor, and 
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractoi: · 

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in +·itiJg to the Own6r 
through the Architect the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. The Architpct inay reply Within 14 
days to the Contractor in writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable ¢bjection to the 
proposed superintendent or (2) that the Architect requires additional time to review. Failure1 of~e Archit~ct t6 reply 
within the 14 day period shall constitute notice ofno reasonable objection. ! : · 

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner's consent, 
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed. 

§ 3.10 CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES 
§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's and 
Architect's information a Contractor's construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits 
current under the Contract Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the 
Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall 
provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. 

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter 
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule(s) for the Architect's approval. 
The Architect's approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall ( 1) be 
coordinated with the Contractor's construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review 
submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in 
Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of subnrittals. 

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the 
Owner and Architect. · 

§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE 
The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change 
Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made 
during construction, and one copy of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required 
submittals. These shall be available to the Architect and shall be delivered to tl1e Architect for submittal to the Owner 
upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed. 

§ 3.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES 
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of 
~w~ . 

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions; brochures, diagrams and 
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrnte materials or equipment for some portion of the Work. 

AIADocumentA2011'1! - 2007, Copyright~' 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AIA., Document is prot.ected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .i\IA" Document, or any portion a£ it, may result .1.n severe civil and criminal penalties, and 14 
,all be prosecuted to the maximum extent possiblo= under the la·H. This draft was produced by AIA sofb1are at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 1.vhich expires on U4/29/2020, and is not far resale. 
User Notes: {811808822) 



§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged. 

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is 
to demonstrate the way by which the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the ContractDocuments require 
submittals. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2. 7. Informatio!al :fubmittals upon which 
the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Dbcuinents. Submittals that 
are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without actiok l .. 

I 
§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approv9 anq submit to the 
Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Coftra'.ct Documents in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an appr6ved submittal . ' schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the WorJ<.~rJin the activities of the 
Owner or of separate contractors. In all cases, the Architect's review process shall be completed within a maximum of 
ten working days. , j I I I l 

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the Cbntrkctor reprdsen~s to the 
Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determin6d ahd verified materials, 
field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (3) checked!and coordinat~d the 
information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the !codtract Doctlmehts. I . , , 

I 

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no p01iion of the Work for which the Contract Docum
1
ents require submittal and 

review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been 
approved by the Architect. 

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect's approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect 
in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific 
deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Constrnction Change Directive has been issued 
authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for e1rors or omissions in Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect's approval thereof 

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of such written notice, the Architect's approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions: 

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of 
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a :portion of 
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contrcictor's responsibilities 
for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall ~ot be requi~ed to 
provide professional services in violation of applicable law. If professional design services or ce1tificationk by a 
design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design ~riteria that such services 
must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or ce1tifications to be provided by a properly licensed design 
professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, ce1iifications, Shop 
Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work 
designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when 
submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and 
completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, 
provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review, approve or take other appropriate 
action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with inf01mdtion given and the design 
concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the 
performance and design criteria specified in the Contract Documents. 

1 

AIA Document A2Qfil! - 2007. Copyright=,, 1911 1 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institur.e of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA:i Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La•,1 and International Treaties. 
Onauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IA.~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 15 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extenc possi.bl<:! under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.9463533253 ,.,.1hich e:-:pires on 04/2q/2020, and is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: (811808822) 



§ 3.13 USE OF SITE 
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably 
encumber the site with materials or equipment. 

§ 3.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make 
its paiis fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patching shall be restorea to

1
the condition existing 

• I 

prior to the cutting, fitting and patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documeµts. ! 
l i I I ... , 

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or paiiially completed 
construction of the Owner or separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise alteringisuch construction, or by 
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner pr alseparate contractor 
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate coritracitor the Contractor's 
consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work. ' 

! 

§ 3.15 CLEANING UP i i , . 
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and sUJTOunding area free from accumulati~m of waste materikls or 
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor sh~ll remove; waste 
materials, rubbish, the Contractor's tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from and about 
the Project. ' ' ' 1 

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner 
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor. 

§ 3.16 ACCESS TO WORK 
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever 
located. 

§ 3.17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS 
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of 
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall 
not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, 
Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if the Contractor has reason to 
believe that the required design, process or product is an infringement of a copyright or a patent, the Contractor shall 
be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the Architect. 

§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION 
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, 
Architect's consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, 'damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, 
provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, dis~ase or death, or to 
injury to or destrnction of tangible prope1iy (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent 
acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for 
whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in paii by a 
paiiy indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 
obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18. 

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor, 
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts. 

AIA Document A201.l.'.Y - 2007. Copyright•~, 1911 1 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of ),_rchitects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA'.l Document i.s protected by U.S. Copyright La•;,1 and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in se,1ere civil and criminal penalties, and 16 
·,;,ill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft l\las produced by AIA software at 15:US:15 ET on US/16/21)19 under 
Order No.9463538:253 which e:-:pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (8118088~2) 



ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1 GENERAL 
§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully practicing 
architecture in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents shall 
not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor anti A11chitect. Consent shall 
not be umeasonably withheld. j I 
§ 4.1.3 If the employment of the Architect is terminated, the Owner shall employ a successof· architect as to whom-the 
Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect. 

§ 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT I 1 
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract D,ocuments and will be 
an Owner's representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certifi~ate for Payment. The 
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the "Contract Documents. 

l l !- -1 
I l I I 

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as ~therwise ~gre;ed with 
the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the N--/

1
, ork complet'ed, and to 

I • ' 
determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that tlie Work, whed fully 
completed, will be in accordance with the Contr·act Documents. However, the Architect will not be requir~d tb make 

h 1.. - .I , 

exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. T e Architecffwill not have 
control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, s~quences or procedures, or 
for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor's rights and 
responsibilities under the Contract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1. 

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and 
quality of the p01iion of the Work completed, and rep01i to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract, 
Documents and from the most recent constr·uction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and 
deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contr·actor's failure to perform the 
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have contr·ol ovei· or 
charge of and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontr·actors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially 
authorized, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about 
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect's consultant~ shall be 
through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the 
Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner. ' 

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect's evaluations of the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Architect will review 
and certify the amounts due the Contr·actor and will issue Ce1iificates for Payment in such amounts. 

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the 
Work in accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. 
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not_to exercise 
such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and 
equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor's submittals such 
as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking' for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Archi~ect'~ action wm be _taken 
in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to 
permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and 

AIA Document A201m - 2007. Copyright".', 1911, 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA' Document is protected by D.S. Copyright La•,1 and International Treaties. 
• nauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AI.A" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 1 7 
•,.rill be prosecuted to the. maximum extent possibl~ under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538~53 ',!hich e:-:pires on U~/29/2020 1 and is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: (811808822.) 



completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or 
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the 
Contract Documents. The Architect's review of the Contractor's submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the 
obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5 and 3 .12. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions 
or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is 
a component. , 

! 
i I 

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, an~ may authorize minor 
changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations a11d 
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7} · · ·· 

i ! ' 
§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial gomrletion and the date of 
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive ~nd forward to the 
Owner, for the Owner's review and records, ,vritten waITanties and related documents requlred:by the Contract and 
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment'pursuant to Section 
9.10. 

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project re•re~entatives io as.sist in 
carrying out the Architect's responsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority '.of such 
project representatives shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract J?ocuments. 

I , 
i , : i 

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect's 1:esponse to such requests 
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and 
decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show 
partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. 

§ 4.2.13 The Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent 
expressed in the Contract Documents. 

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The 
Architect's response to such requests will be made in writing immediately or within a maximum of three (3) days or 
otherwise with reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to the requests for information. 

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS 
§ 5.1 DEFINITIONS 
§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the 
Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number 
and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor" does not 
include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor. 

§ 5.1,2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perfmm 
a portion of the Work at the site. The term ·'Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor. 

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or the bidding requirements, the Contractor, as soon as 
practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner through the Architect the names of 
persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed 
for each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within 14 days to the Contr~ctoi in writing stating (1) 
whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity or (2) that the 
Architect requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to reply within the 14-day period shall 
constitute notice ofno reasonable objection. 

AIA Document A20l!Cll: - 2007. Copyright ~' 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The. American 
Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNIHG: This AI.A." Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law- and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IA"" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 18 
·..;ill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibla under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 undeI 
Order No. 94EJSJ82S3 1.vhir::h e:s.pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (311808822) 



§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor 
has made reasonable objection. 

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. Jfthe proposed but 
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum ahd dontract Time shall be 
increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an approprikte Change Order shall be 
issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor's Work. However, no increas! in the Coritract Sum or 
Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly ahd r~spo~~iv"e!yin · · 
submitting names as required. I 
§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously sele~ted if the Owner or 
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution. i 

§ 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS , . 
By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall r~quiie each Subco*ractor, 
to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor b~terms of the c:;ontract 
Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, inf luding the respon\iibility 
for safety of the Subcontractor's Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents, assumes to}ard the o;wn~r and 
Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner a~d A[chitect underthe 
Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that slibcontracting thereof will 
not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the 
subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the 
Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to 
enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed 
Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the 
Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and 
conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. 
Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable p01iions of such documents available to their respective 
proposed Sub-subcontractors. 

§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS 
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that 

.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to 
Secti9n 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the 
Subcontractor and Contractor in writing; and 

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract. 

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor's rights and 
obligations under the subcontract. · 

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor's 
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 

§ 5.4.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the 
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor's obligations under the 
subcontract. 

ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
§ 6.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS 
§ 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Pro}ect }Vith the Owner's own 
forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other constrnction or 
operations on the site under Conditions of the Contract identical or substantially similar to these including those 

AIA Document A201.m - 2007. Copyright ~- 1911, 1915 1 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA.' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or d1.str J.bution of this .A.IA" Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possiblo= under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.94E3538~53 •.vhich expires on 04/2~/2020 1 and is not for resalo:. 
User Notes: (8118088~2) 

19 



portions related to insurance and waiver of subrogation. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost is 
involved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15. 

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on 
the site, the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each 
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement. 

I t 

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner's own forcJs arid of each separate 
contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shalllparticipate with other 
separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their constrnction schedules. The Contractol· shall .make an):' reyisim1;s 
to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The c;~;~;ti;n ;d{~d~I~t·· · 
shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and thePwµeruntil subsequently 
revised. i I 
§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs cJnstLction or operations 
related to the Project with the Ovvner's own forces, the Owner shall be deemed to be subjeet.to..,the same obligations 
and to have the same rights that apply to the Contractor under the Conditions of the Contract; iiicluding, without 
excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6 and Articles 10, 11 and 12. ! : r· I 

I . 

§ 6,2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY . j I . 
§ 6.2,1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduhtioti and 
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall conn~ct and coorditiate\he 
Contractor's construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documenti. · · ' · 

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the 
Owner or a separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that po1tion of the Work, promptly repo1t 
to the Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in such other construction that would render it unsuitable for such 
proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to rep01t shall constitute an acknowledgment that the 
Owner's or separate contractor's completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the 
Contractor's Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable. 

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor 
because of the Contractor's delays, improperly timed activities or defective constrnction. The Owner shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a separate contractor's delays. improperly 
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. 

§ 6.2.4 The Conh·actor shall promptly remedy damage the Conh·actor wrongfully causes to completed or partially 
completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate conh·actors as provided in Section 10.2.5. 

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14. 

§ 6.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP 
If a dispute arises among the Conh·actor, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and su!1'ounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible, 

ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 7.1 GENERAL 
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the 
limitations stated in this A1ticle 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor and Architect; a Construction 
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor; 
an order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone, 

Ju.ADocumentA201S\t 2007. Copyright': 1911, 1915, 1918, 19-~5, 1937, 1951, 1958 1 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 198:7, 18-';n <Jnd 2007 by't'he.Americ,rn 
In."ltitute of Architects. All. rights reserved. WA!UHNG: 1'fus .AIAi DocumE"nt is px:c.tact•d by U.S. Copyright Law and ::i:nt•rnat1.onal T:r:eatias. 
Ur.authorized reproducticn or distribution of this A.IA' Document 1 or any portion of it, 11:1.ay result tn se•;ere c.1.vil and cr:im:Lnal p,~halties, and 20 
•,;1ill be prosecuted ta tha rrtax.1.mum extent po&•ihl• under the. la';.1, ?his draft. \f<!!-1!! ptoducad by AIA sofe1ar'2" at 1:i:•)S:15 '?;'.j o!l OS/16/2:}2._':? i.;nder 
8rCer ~o.9•Hi3.5:i225J. '-Vhich e:q:::.res on :'.l.;./21?/2'.)2:), •:-id is no::, fer :::esa.=_e, 
User Notes: (31:'.:_808821) 



§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents, and the 
Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive or 
order for a minor change in the Work. 

§ 7.2 CHANGE ORDERS 
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor and 
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following: 

.1 The change in the Work; 

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and 

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 

§ 7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES ! 
§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Cpntr~ct Sum or Contract 
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in 
the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or othe~ re~isions, the Contract 
Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. · 

! ! l : 
1 ! ! ! 

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on
1
the ;terms of a!Ch~nge 

Order. i · I · 
1 ! 

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Suril, the adjustm~nt ~hall be 
based on one of the following methods: : '· ·· · 

1 
• ·• 

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; 

.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or 

.4 As provided in Section 7.3.7. 

§ 7.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change Directive so that 
application of such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or 
Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 7.3.5 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the 
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor's agreement or disagreement with th~ method, if any, 
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time. 

§ 7.3.6 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor',s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining th~m. Such agreemer{t shall 
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. ' · 

§ 7,3,7 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, 
the Architect shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditui·es and savings of 
those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount 
for overhead and profit as set fo1ih in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable 
amount. In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the 
Architect may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate suppo1iing data. Unless otherwise provided 
in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.7 shall be limited to the following: 

.1 Costs oflabor, including social security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required 
by agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance; 

.2 Costs of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost oftranspmiation, ,wh~ther incorporated or 
consumed; 

.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor 
or others; 

AIADocumentA201Zl,! 2007. Copyright':, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 19'10, 1976, 1987, 199'! and 2007 by The American 
Tnsti tuta o! Architects. All rights reserved. 91A.R.NIHG: This A.IA,., Document. Ls prot•ct•d by- U, S. Cot:,y:right Law and Int•rn.ational Treaties. 
Unauthor1.zed reproduction er distribution of ::.hi.11 .AI.A., Document, or any poi:tion o!: i~, ••Y re.sult in severe civil and criminal p•n:al.ti~a, a.nd 21 
Wl.l.:.. be prosecuted tc the rr,a.::-:.1-mu.-u. extent poa•l.bl<! u;;der the la;.,. This dra!t was prvdt:.ced by AIA software at 15;08;1~ ET on 05/1.6/~Q:;.g. uncier 
Order tlo.<t-10538'.!SJ whictl. e~q:;_:_.res on '.':~/2~/2·~20, and ie; not :'or :cesQle. 
Usa:t Notes: 



.4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to the 
Work; and 

.5 Additional costs of supervision and field or office personnel directly attributable to the change. 

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net 
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits 
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead pndprofit shall be figured 
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change. I j 

I I 

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Constrnction Change Directive to ihe 6\Vner, ,the Contractor 
may request payment for Work completed under the Constrnction Change Directive in Application; for Payment. The 
Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly cetiification for payriient for those costs and 
certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect's profession~! judgment, to be 
reasonably justified. The Architect's interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract 

1
s uJ on the same basis as 

a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accord-:inc~ with Article 15. 
,'~-'°'-"-" i 

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect:'concerning the 
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon th~ adjustments, 1s~c~ 
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders rhay:be 
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive. j l I I 

! \ i 
§ 7.4 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK : I i 1 

The Architect has authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving adjustment iri the Contract Sum or 
extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documehts. Such changes will be 
effected by written order signed by the Architect and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor. 

ARTICLE 8 TIME 
§ 8.1 DEFINITIONS 
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in 
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement. 

§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date cetiified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8. 

§ 8.1.4 The term "day'' as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined. 

§ 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION 
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement 
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for perfonning the Work. 

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, prematurely 
commence operations on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be 
furnished by the Contractor and Owner. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective 
date of such insurance. 

§ 8,2,3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion 
within the Contract Time. 

§ 8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME 
§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of 
the Owner or Architect, or of an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes 
ordered in the Work; or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casha!ties or other causes 
beyond the Contractor's control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation a~d arbitration; or by other 
causes that the Architect determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be exterided by Change Order for 
such reasonable time as the Architect may determine. ' 

AIADocument.A201~ - 2007. Copyright::, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963 1 1966 1 1970, 1976 1 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Ins ti tu te of Arc hi tee ts. All rights reserved. WARNIHG: This AIA. ~ Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La•,1 and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 22 
•,1ill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by A.IA software at 15: US: 15 ET on 05/l6/2019 under 
Order No. 94E3538253 which expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Aliicle 15. 

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
§ 9.1 CONTRACT SUM ! j 
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the tcital amount payable by the 
Owner to the Conh·actor for performance of the Work under the Conh·act Documents. I 

I 
§ 9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
Whe1:e the Contract is based on_ a s~ipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Pric~, the Con~~ct01i shall submitto the · 
Ai·ch1tect, before the first Apphcat10n for Payment, a schedule of values allocatmg the entire Contract Sum to the 
various portions of the Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to subsfanti~te its accuracy as the 
Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a1 basis for reviewing the 

\ •• j 

Contractor's Applications for Payment. 

! J . ' 

§ 9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT I I j ; 

§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor ~hall submit to:the 
Ai·chitect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule 01valµes, ifreq~ired under 
Section 9.2, for completed po1iions of the Work. Such application shall be notarized, ifrequired, and support6d by 
such data substantiating the Contractor's right to payment as the Owner or Architect may r~quiie, such as 1cop

1

ies of 
d ' ' ' requisitions from Subcontractors and material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage ifprovi ed foi' in the Contract 

Documents. · 

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in 
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders. 

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for p01iions of the Work for which the 
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless such Work has been perfonned by others 
whom the Contractor intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance 
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location 
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon 
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner's title to such materials 
and equipment 01· otherwise protect the Owner's interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage 
and h·ansportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored offthe site. 

' ' ! I ( 

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no 
later than the time of payment. The Contractor further wan-ants that upon submittal of an Appli6ation for Pay~ent all 
Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owrier shall, to 
the best of the Contractor's knowle<,lge, information and beliet: be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or 
encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material suppliers, or other perso~s or entities making a 
claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work. 

§ 9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT 
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, either issue to 
the Owner a Certificate for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Architect determines is 
properly due, or notify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect's reasons for withholding certification in 
whole or in part as provided in Section 9.5.1. 

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based 
on the Architect's evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the best~fthe 
Architect's knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of 
the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of 

AIA Document A2Ql!Dil - 2007. Copyright ,;, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNHTG: This AIA? Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduct.1.on or distribution of this A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in se~1ere civil and criminal penalties I and 23 
·,nll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibl~ under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on tJS/16/2019 under 
Order No.CJH3538253 •.vhich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests 
and inspections, to conection of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion and to specific 
qualifications expressed by the Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will further constitute a 
representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance of a Certificate 
for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has ( 1) made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to 
check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures, (3) reviewed copies ofrequisitions received from Subcontractors and material ~lippliers and other data 
requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor's right to payment, or ( 4) made exarnihati?n to ascertain how or 
for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contrac{ Suin. 

§ 9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION j I 
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner, if in the Architect's opinion the representations to the Owner required b} Sebtion 9.4.2 cannot be 
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Arthitbct will notify the 
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot a1gre~ on a revised amount, 
the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such 
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently 
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previouslt iss\.ied, to su¢h eitent as 
may be necessary in the Architect's opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the dmtiJactor is re~porlsible, 
including loss resulti~g from acts and o~ssions described in Section 3.3.2, because of I j J i 

.1 defective Work not remedied; I l i l 

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor; ! · 1 

' 

.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or f01' labor, materials or 
equipment; 

.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor; 

.6 repeated failure to cany out the Work in accordance with the Conti·act Documents. 

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding ce1iification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld. 

§ 9.5.3 If the Architect withholds ce1iification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, 
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or material or equipment suppliers to whom the 
Contractor failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the 
Owner makes payments by joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Architect will reflect such 
payment on the next Certificate for Payment. 

§ 9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and 
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect. 

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the .Owner 
the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the 
Contractor on account of the Subcontractor's portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, b)'appropriate agreement 
with each Subconti·actor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of 
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account 
of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor. 

§ 9,6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
Subcontractors and material and equipment suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Conti·actor for subcontracted 
Work. If the Contractor fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact 

' I 

Subcontractors to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an 
obligation to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may othe{wise be required by law. 

AIA Document A.201n1 - 2007. Copyright :. 1911, 1915 1 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA.·1 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized r-=production or distribution of this .A.IA~ Document, or any portion of 1.t, may result in se'Jere civil and criminal penalties, and 2 4 
·,all be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the la'N. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 '.oJhich e;,:pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: ( 8118088'.22) 



§ 9.6.5 Contractor payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided 
in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4. 

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of,the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors and shpp\iers shall be held by 
the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished mat~ria\s, or both, under 
contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing containe~ hel:~tri.§,h~]tf~CL1fif1;; ... , 
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor) shall create any fiduciary 
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust or shall entitle any ptjrsonorentityto an award · 
of punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.l I 

I i 

§ 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT I ! 
If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor,'within seven days after 
receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days 

l I ,,_,_,,,,,,, 

after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect dr a'Yarded by pin(\ing 
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days' written notice to t*e qwner and ~rcritect, 
stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall qe extende~ 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor's reilsoriable costs:of 
shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents. I i 

§ 9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereofis 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for 
its intended use. 

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of 
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list docs not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor's list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or 
designated portion thereof is substantially complete, If the Architect's inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Contractor's list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so 
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall, 
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the 
Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine 
Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architeci will prepare a Certificate 
of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall estab,lishresponsibilities of the 
Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and shall fix the 
time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by 
the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated po1tion 
thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate. Upon such acceptance and consent of surety, if any, 
the Owner shall make payment of retain age applying to such Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall 
be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.9 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE . 
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any st~ge when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupa~cy or use" is consented to 
by the insurer as required under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided 

AIADocumentA.201™ 2007. Copyright 1·1911, 1915, 1Sll8, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970 1 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 byThe.iwerica.n 
Institute o! Architects. All rights reserved. WAR.WI.WO: This J..IA"' Document ia; protactad by tJ. S. Copyright La·.,; and Int~:cna.tional Treatia.s. 
Unauthorized t'e.pr:cductlon or distribution of this A.IA.., Document, or any portion of 1.,:., ••Y result in severe. c1.v1l and criminal pena.lti•s. and 25 
will be pi::o••cut•d to '!:h./l. maximtL-n. e;<tent poa:sibl,11i under- the law. This dr,1ft •Ht:s: p:i.::.::iduc8d by AL\ sofc:'1!al:::e at 15: :)8:15 E'r on :.)':,/16/2019 J!1de~ 
'}rj~r !!o.9-15353~253 ,,.;n::_r.h e:q::i.re~ on :-;~;2q;202J 1 a~d i.e not fci:- i:-es,;;.:e, 
User Notes: (Sl18G88.22) 



the Owner and Contractor have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, 
retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing 
concerning the period for c01Tection of the Work and commencement of watTanties required by the Contract 
Documents. When the Contractor considers a p01iion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit 
a list to the Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to patiial occupancy or use shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between 
the Owner and Contractor or, if no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect. i I 

I i 

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor and Arcltec
1
t shall jointly inspect 

the area to be occupied or p01iion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record t~e cbndition of the Work. 

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions ofth~ Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents. I 
§ 9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT I 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor's written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and 
upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such insJ5eCtion and, when the 
Architect finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully ~erfclrmed, the !Architect 
will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect's~no~vledge, in'.rort11ation 
and belief, and on the basis of the Architect's on-site visits and inspections, the Work has b~en pomplete~ in I 
accordance with terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the 
Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and payable. The Architect's final Certi11cat~ for Pay~ent ~vill 
constitute a futiher representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to th6 Contractor's being · 
entitled to final payment have been fulfilled. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to 
the Architect ( 1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with 
the Work for which the Owner or the Owner's property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld 
by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a cetiificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract 
Documents to remain in force after final payment is cmTently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed to expire 
until at least 30 days' prior written notice has been given to the o,.vner, (3) a written statement that the Contractor 
knows ofno substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract 
Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (5), ifrequired by the Owner, other data establishing 
payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests or 
encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a 
Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond 
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien. If such lien remains unsatisfied after payments are 
made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging such 
lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architec~ so confirms, the 
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without'terminating the 
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that potiion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining 
balance for Work not fully completed or cotTected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if 
bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that potiion of the Work 
fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to certification of such 
payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not 
constitute a waiver of claims. 

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from 
.1 liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled; 
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or 
.3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor or material supplier shall constitute a waiver 
of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee

1

as unsettled at the time of 
final Application for Payment. 

AIADocumentA201™ - 2007. Copyright CCC, 1911, 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AL\.' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La•;1 and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or d.1.str.1.but.1.on of this A.IA" Document, or any portion of 1.t 1 may result 1.n severe civil and criminal penalties I and 2 6 
·,nll be prosecuted to the maxlinum extent poss.1.bl~ under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 1S:L)8:1S ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 <,ihich e:-:pires on n4/29/202D, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS 
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the performance of the Contract. 

§ 10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY I J 

§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide re~soriable protection to 
prevent damage, injury or loss to I I 

l . 

. 1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; I I, 

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether 1 storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor's Subcontractors or 
Sub-subcontractors; and I I 

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacementJin t~e course of 
construction. · 

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statute~, ordinances, ~odes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons o{ prciperty or their 

' I , 
protection from damage, injury or loss. i I ' 

i ) I 

i i I 
§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract, 
reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other wkrnings against hazards, 
promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methods are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and caITy on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel. 

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property 
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property refeITed to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in 
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under Sections 
10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not 
attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to 
the Contractor's obligations under Section 3.18. 

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor's organization at the site whose duty 
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless· otherwise designated 
by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect. 

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition. 

§ 10.2.8 INJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY 
If either paiiy suffers injury or damage to person or prope1iy because of an act or omission of the other party, or of 
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, written notice of such injmy or damage, whether or not insured, 
shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall 
provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter. 

§ 10.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents 
regarding hazardous materials. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance riot addressed in the 
Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeabl6 bodily injury or death to 
persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl 
(PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing thb condition, immediately 
stop Work in the affected area and repo1i the condition to the Owner and Architect in writing. 

AIADocumentA20ln<- 2007. Copyright~' 1911, 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The .American 
Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA:i Doct.Unent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IA'• Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 
·,nll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft•,1are at 15:08:lS ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.9463538.'.:'53 ·,.rhich expires on 04/29/2020 1 and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 

27 



§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor's written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to 
verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or 
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons 
or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or who are to 
perform the task of removal or safe containment of such material or substance. The Contractor rnd the Architect will 
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objectioh to the persons or entities 
proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person ml entlty proposed by the 
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have noj1reaJ£i,u.1~l('! objection. 
When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shal resume upon written 
agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be exteiided1appropriatelyand the 
Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Contractor's reasonable additional costs ofil•shut-down, delay and 
start-up. i 

l 
I • I 

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Architect, Arc~itect'~ consultants_ a~d agents and employees?~ any of the111 fror,1_ and against, claims, 
damages, losses and expenses, mcludmg but not hmtted to attorneys' fees, ansmg out of or:resultmg from, . I 
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents thk risk of bodily injury or 
death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered hai:mless, provided that such claim, damage, 16ss or 
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injmy to or destruc~ion ;of tangib!J pr~perty 
( other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to; the jfault or ndg!igence of 
the party seeking indemnity. j ' 

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Contractor brings 
to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall be responsible 
for materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of the Contractor's fault or 
negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances, 

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of a 
material or substance the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Contractor fails to 
perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due to the Owner's fault 
or negligence, 

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for 
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred, 

§ 10.4 EMERGENCIES 
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contrac.tor's discretion, to 
prevent threatened damage, injury or loss, Additional compensation or extension of time claimecl by the Contractor on 
account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7, ' 

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS 
§ 11.1 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do 
business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims set 
forth below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor's operations and completed operations under the 
Contract and for which the Contractor may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by a 
Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them 
may be liable: 

.1 Claims under workers' compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts that are 
applicable to the Work to be performed; 

.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the 
Contractor's employees; · 

.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than the 
Contractor's employees; 

.4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage; 

AIA Document A201ru. - 2007. Copyriqht ~- 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937 1 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976 1 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AL'\' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IAv Document 1 or any portion of it, may result in se,1ere civil and criminal penalties, and 28 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order no.94E3538253 which e:~pires on Cl~/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



.5 Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injmy to or destruction of tangible 
property, including loss of use resulting therefrom; 

.6 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or prope1iy damage arising out of 
ownership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle; 

.7 Claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and 

.8 Claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor's obligations under 
Section 3.18. 

I . 
§ 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits of lia!Jility specified in the 

f I 

Contract Documents or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whethe~ wr~t1e112J1.i1)1 oc~urre,nce 
or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without inte1rnption from the date of commenceqient of the Work until the 
date offmal payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final ~ayment; and, with respect 
to the Contractor's completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for corrJcti<ln of Work or for such 
other period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the ContractjDo~uments. 

j ! 
§ 11.1.3 Certificates of insurance acceptable to the Owner shall be filed with the Owner prior to ~ommencement of the 
Work and thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each required policy of insurance. Thes·e·certificates and the 
insurance policies required by this Section 11. 1 shall contain a provision that coverages aff9rde

1

d under thf p~licies 
will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days' prior written notice has bee~ gi'ten to the 0wner. An 
additional ce1iificate evidencing continuation ofliability coverage, including coverage for completed opedtiotis, shall 
be submitted with the final Application for Payment as required by Section 9 .10.2 and therciafttir upon reriewa'.l or 
replacement of such coverage until the expiration of the time required by Section 11.1.2. In:forrriation concerning 
reduction of coverage on account of revised limits or claims paid under the General Aggregate,· or both, shall be 
furnished by the Contractor with reasonable promptness. 

§ 11.1.4 The Contractor shall cause the commercial liability coverage required by the Contract Documents to include 
(I) the Owner, the Architect and the Architect's consultants as additional insureds for claims caused in whole or in part 
by the Contractor's negligent acts or omissions during the Contractor's operations; and (2) the o,.vner as an additional 
insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor's negligent acts or omissions during the Contractor's 
completed operations. 

§ 11.1.5 Notwithstanding anything that may appear contrary in this Section 11. 1, it is understood and agreed that 
Contractor shall provide insurance as stated in AUCH Construction's Certificate oflnsurance which is attached at 
Exhibit --- to the Agreement between Owner and Contractor (AIA Al34-2009, as amended), and said Certificate of 
Insurance (and the insurance policies and coverages stated therein) are acceptable and agreed to by Owner. 

§ 11.2 OWNER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner's usual liability insurance. 

§ 11.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE 
§ 11.3.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Owner shall purchase and maintain, in a company or companies lawfully 
authorized to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance )Vritten on a builder's 
risk .. all-risk" or equivalent policy form in the amount of the initial Contract Sum, plus value of subsequent Contract 
Modifications and cost of materials supplied or installed by others, comprising total value for the entire Project at the 
site on a replacement cost basis without optional deductibles. Such property insurance shall be maintained, unless 
otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by all person~ and entities who are 
beneficiaries of such insurance, until final payment has been made as provided in Section 9.10 or until no person or 
entity other than the Owner has an insurable interest in the prope1iy required by this Section 11.3 to be covered, 
whichever is later. This insurance shall include interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors and 
Sub-subcontractors in the Project. 

§ 11.3.1.1 Property insurance shall be on an "all-risk" or equivalent policy form and shall include, without limitation, 
insurance against the perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or damage induding, without 
duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, ea1ihquake, flood, vyindstorm, falsework, 
testing and startup, temporary buildings and debris removal including demolition occasione'd by enforcement of any 
applicable legal requirements, and shall cover reasonable compensation for Architect's ana'Contracto?s services and 
expenses required as a result of such insured loss. 1 

AIADocumentA201m - 2007, Copyright·~, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937 1 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. Al1- rights reserved. WARNING: This AL\_ 1 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthor.1zed reproduction or distribution of th.1s .A.IA.., Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 29 
•,nll be prosecuted to the maximum e-..ctent possibl-=! under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft•.-1are at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No,9463538253 whir.h expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale, 
User Notes: (811808822) 



§ 11.3.1.2 If the Owner does not intend to purchase such property insurance required by the Conh·act and with all of the 
coverages in the amount described above, the Owner shall so inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement 
of the Work. The Contractor may then effect insurance that will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors 
and Sub-subcontractors in the Work, and by appropriate Change Order the cost thereof shall be charged to the Owner. 
If the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or maintain insurance as described 
above, without so notifying the Conh·actor in writing, then the Owner shall bear all reasonable costs properly 
attributable thereto. l j 

l i 

§ 11.3.1.3 If the property insurance requires deductibles, the Owner shall pay costs not covJred ;because of such 
deductibles. I I 

I 
§ 11.3.1.4 This property insurance shall cover portions of the Work stored off the site, and al1o portions of the Work in 

~m~ I 
§ 11.3.1.5 Partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 shall not commence until ,the psurance company or 
companies providing property insurance have consented to such partial occupancy or use by endorsement or 
otherwise. The Owner and the Contractor shall take reasonable steps to obtain consent ofth;e iiisurance company or 
companies and shall, without mutual written consent, take no action with respect to partial bcc4pancy or use that 
would cause cancellation, lapse or reduction of insurance. j j '. 

§ 11.3.2 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE J I i 
The Owner shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance required by the Cohh·act Documents pr by 
law, which shall specifically cover such insured objects during installation and until final adceptance by ilie Ownel'; 
this insurance shall include interests of the Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-subbontractors in the Work, 
and the Owner and Contractor shall be named insureds. 

§ 11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE 
The Owner, at the Owner's option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure the Owner against loss of 
use of the Owner's property due to fire or other hazards, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action 
against the Contractor for loss of use of the O,vner's property, including consequential losses due to fire or other 
hazards however caused. 

§ 11.3.4 If the Contractor requests in writing that insurance for risks other than those described herein or other special 
causes ofloss be included in the property insurance policy, the Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and 
the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor by appropriate Change Order. 

§ 11.3.5 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent 
to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payiµent 
property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project tlu·ough a policy or policies other than those insuring the 
Project during the constrnction period, the Owner shall waive all rights in accordance with the terms of Section 11.3. 7 
for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insura1ice. All separate policies 
shall provide this waiver of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. · 1 

§ 11.3.6 Before an exposure to loss may occur, the Owner shall file with the Contractor a copy of each policy that 
includes insurance coverages required by this Section 11.3. Each policy shall contain all geherally applicable 
conditions, definitions, exclusions and endorsements related to this Project. Each policy sh~ll contain a provision that 
the policy will not be canceled or allowed to expire, and that its limits will not be reduced, until at least 30 days' prior 
written notice has been given to the Contractor. 

§ 11.3.7 WAIVERS OF SUBROGATION 
The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against ( 1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, 
agents and employees, each of the other, and (2) the Architect, Architect's consultants, separate contractors described 
in Article 6, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, for damages caused by 
fire or other causes of loss to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to ;this: Section 11.3 or other 
property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance held by the 
Owner as fiduciary. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require of the Architect: Architect's consultants, 
separate contractors described in Article 6, if any, and the subcontractors, sub-subcontractob, agents and employees 
of any of them, by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, similar waivers each in favor of 

AIA Document A20l!llf - 2007. Coi,yright ~. 1911 1 1915, 1918 1 1925, 1937, 1951 1 1958, 1961, 1963 1 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of .Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA'•l Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of thi.s AIA~ Document, ar any portion a£ it, may result in severe civil and criminal pen3.lties I and 30 
will be prosecuted ta the ma::nmurn extent possible. under the law. This draft \•Jas produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on 05/1€/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 •,,1hich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



other parties enumerated herein. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. 
A waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even though that person or entity would otherwise 
have a duty ofindemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and 
whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the property damaged. 

§ 11.3.8 A loss insured under the Owner's property insurance shall be a(\justed by the Owner as fiduciaiy and made 
payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any 
applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.3.10. The Contractor shall pay Subcontracto~s ttjeir just shares of 
insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where !~gaily required for 
validity, shall require Subcontractors to make payments to their Sub-subcontractors in simijar man11,~1: .. 

§ 11.3.9 Ifrequired in writing by a party in interest, the Owner as fiduciary shall, upon occtlrreqce of an insured loss, 
give bond for proper perfomiance of the Owner's duties. The cost of required bonds shall bd ch~rged against proceeds 
received as fiduciary. The Owner shall deposit in a separate account proceeds so received, !ihidh the Owner shall 
distribute in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as detei,minbd in accordance with 
the method of binding dispute resolution selected in the Agreement between the Owner andCoi:itractor. If after such 
loss no other special agreement is made and unless the Owner terminates the Contract for convenience, replacement of 

; ; ""''"1 
damaged property shall be performed by the Contractor after notification of a Change in the; W drk in accotdan,ce with 
Article 7. ! ' 1 

' 

! i j 
§ 11.3.10 The Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle a loss with insurers unless one of the parties in 
interest shall object in writing within five days after occurrence of loss to the Owner's exer6ise ;of this po~'er; jf such 
objection is made, the dispute shall be resolved in the manner selected by the Owner and C6ntractcii- as' the method of 
binding dispute resolution in the Agreement. If the Owner and Contractor have selected arbitration as the method of 
binding dispute resolution, the Owner as fiduciary shall make settlement with insurers or, in the case of a dispute over 
distribution of insurance proceeds, in accordance with the directions of the arbitrators. 

§ 11.4 PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND 
§ 11.4.1 The Owner shall have the right to require the Contractor to furnish bonds covering faithful performance of the 
Contract and payment of obligations arising thereunder as stipulated in bidding requirements or specifically required 
in the Contract Documents on the date of execution of the Contract. 

§ 11.4.2 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of 
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a 
copy to be furnished. 

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK 
§ 12.1.1 Ifa portion of the Work is covered contrary w the Architect's request or to requirements specifically 
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, ifrequested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect's 
examination and be replaced at the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Time. 

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to 
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by .the Contractor; If such 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and replacement ~hall, by appropriate 
Change Order, be at the Owner's expense. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, such costs 
and the cost of correction shall be at the Contractor's expense unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a 
separate contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs. 

§ 12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 12.2.1 BEFORE OR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
The Contractor shall promptly conect Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, 
installed or completed. Costs of conecting such rejected Work, including additional testing a~d inspections, the cost of 
uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect's services and expenses ~ade'necessary thereby, 
shall be at the Contractor's expense. · · · 

AIA Document A201,u 2007. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1913, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1910, 1976, 1'.?67, 1997 .!Ind 200'? by Tbtl'I American 
Institute: ot Architect~. All rights reserved. WARNING: Th:is >...IA' Document.. is px:ot•ct•d by U.S. Copyright Law and lnt•rna.t1.onal. '?re:at..ie.s. 
Unauthorized r.epr:cduct.ion or distribution of this A-I.A" Document, ar any portion of it., may result in severe civil and criJoin•l p•n~lt.ia.-;i;, a::-i.d 31 
will be pro••cut•d to the maximum ,:,xtenr. poca1bl• under the law. This d~aft we.$ p:c:odUc1't-ci Cy AIA software a:. lS: J8: 15 ;:.1 on 0~/16/2019 i.:r,dc:r 
'Jr.:iftr Uc. 94fJ.S3E253 ·.,.ihich e:.:pi!"e~ o:, 0~/29/2020, a.nd :_,, no: for re.s.3.l2, 
User Notes: \ 311802.8~2 i 



§ 12.2.2 AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
§ 12.2.2.1 Tn addition to the Contractor's obligations under Section 3 .5, if, within one year after the date of Substantial 
Completion of the Work or designated p01iion thereof or after the date for commencement of wainnties established 
under Section 9 .9 .1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the 
Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall con-ect it 
promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor 
a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. 
During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contract6r add give the Contractor 
an opportunity to make the conection, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the dontractor and to make 
a claim for breach ofwainnty. If the Contractor fails to c01i-ect nonconfonning Work withirl a r6asonable till'le during 
;~:~ period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may COITect it in iacc~;:d;n~~ ~ith S~ction 

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for co!Tection of Work shall be extended with respect to po• ion! of Work first 
perfo1med after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion ~nd the actual 

. J 

completion of that portion of the Work. 

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for c01i-ection of Work shall not be extended by corrective WorJ performecl b; the 
Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2. I I I j 

I I I . 
§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site p01iions of the Work that are not in acc9rda~ce with t4e j 

requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither COITected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner. 
l 1 i : 

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of co1Tecting destroyed or damaged constructiod, whether completed or 
partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor's correction or removal of Work 
that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to 
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation ofth~ Contractor to c01i-ect the 
Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be 
sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's 
liability with respect to the Contractor's obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. 

§ 12.3 ACCEPTANCE OF NONCONFORMING WORK 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as 
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made. 

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 13.1 GOVERNING LAW , 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the paiiies have 
selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act khall govern Section 15.4. 

§ 13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their paiiners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in 
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contr·act as a whole without written consent of the other. 
If either paiiy attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally 
responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction 
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner's rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment. 

§ 13.3 WRITTEN NOTICE 
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or 

AIADacumentA201~ - 2007. Copyright~- 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925 1 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961 1 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of .rl.rchi tects. All r.igh ts reserved. WARNING: This AL:\. 1 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .A.IA' Document, or any portion of it, may result 1..n severe civil and criminal penalties, and 32 
·,nll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft'.-Jare at 15:08:15 ET on 05/lE/2019 under 
Order No.94f3538253 •,1hich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resa.1-:. 
User Notes: ( 811808822) 



certified mail or by courier service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 

§ 13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES 
§ 13.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by 
law. 

I , 
§ 13.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect or Contractor shall constitute a waiyer of a right or duty 
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or fail me to act constitute approval 1of 0,1: acquiescence in a 
breach there under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

§ 13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS I 
§ 13.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rnles and regulations or la'Alful brders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, i~spections and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with.the ~appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Contracto~ sh~ll give the:Arqhitect 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may!be presen~ for:such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not beciom~ requirements; until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals wh~re building cddes: or 
applicable laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Contract[x. i ' , 

i 
§ 13.5.2 If the Architect, Owner or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require 
additional testing, inspection or approval not included under Section 13.5.1, the Architect will, upon written 
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make an-angements for such additional testing, inspection or 
approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when and 
where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs, except 
as provided in Section 13.5.3, shall be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 13.5.3 If such procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 13.5.1 and 13.5.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by 
such failure including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect's services and expenses shall 
be at the Contractor's expense. 

§ 13.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect. 

§ 13.5.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the Architect 
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing. 

§ 13.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work. 

§ 13.6 INTEREST 
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at such rate 
as the parties may agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the 
place where the Project is located. 

§ 13.7 TIME LIMITS ON CLAIMS 
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, breach of 
warranty or otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements of 
the final dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement within the time period specified by applicable law, but in 
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Contractor 
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 13.7. 

AIADocumentA201~ - 2007, Copyright~. 1911, 1915 1 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958 1 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA.1 Document is protected by U.S. Copyright. Law and International Treaties. 
Onauthor.1.2ed reproduction or distribution of this AIA ~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penal ties, and 
·,nll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the la•,1. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:lS ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No. 9463538253 ',Jhich expires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
Oser Notes: (811808822) 

33 



ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 
§ 14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR 
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of30 consecutive days through 
no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other 
persons or entities performing p01iions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor, for any of the 
following reasons: 

.1 Issuance of an order of a comi or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped; I ii 

.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requirb a I Work to be stopped; 

.3 Because the Architect has not issued a Ce1iificate for Payment and has not notifie~ the C<;mtr.actor of the 
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because ihe Owner has not made 

I 
payment on a Ce1iificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract .Documents; or 

.4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor promptly, upon the Contrabtorls request, reasonable 
evidence as required by Section 2.2.1. j I 

l I 
§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor, 
Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing poiiions of the Work under 
direct or indirect contract with the Contractor, repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions!ofilie entire \}'or( by the 
Owner as described in Section 14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of th~ tot~! number 'of dkys 
scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less. I ! j 1 

I I I i 

§ 14.1.3 Ifone of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor m~y, Jpon seven; daxs' 
written notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owrter payment for Work 
executed, including reasonable overhead and profit, costs incurred by reason of such termination, and damages. 

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a 
Subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract with 
the Contractor because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner's obligations under the Contract 
Documents with respect to matters impo1iant to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional 
days' written notice to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in 
Section 14.1.3. 

§ 14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE 
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor 

.1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; 

.2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 
agreements between the Contractor and the Subcontractors; 

.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or 

.4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 

§ 14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner, upon ce1iification by the Initial Decision Maker
1
that 

sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and 
after giving the Contractor and the Contractor's surety, if any, seven days' written notice, terminate employment of the 
Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 

.1 Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor; 

.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and 

.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred 
by the Owner in finishing the Work. 

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. 

' § 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for 
the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not 
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, 

AIA Document A.20lni: - 2007. Copyright :::_, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963 1 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Ins ti tu te of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AI.A.' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treati2s. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft'.•Ja.te at 15:08:15 ET on OS/16/2019 under 
Order No.94(:3538253 'Nhich. expires on U4/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 

34 



the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or O,vner, as the case 
may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall survive 
termination of the Contract. 

§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or inte1rnpt the Work in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 1 I 

I I 
§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost anA tiJe caused by 
suspension, delay or inte1rnption as described in Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contrac~ SuiB,st~Jlgi~J~E~f/f,Ofih 
No adjustment shall be made to the extent 11 

.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or in terr pted by another cause for · 
which the Contractor is responsible; or I 

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of thy Cqntract. 
I ! 

§ 14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
L l 

§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner's convenience and ;without cause. 
, j I ' 

( j : 
§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner's coJivenience,:the 
Contractor shall l I ! 

.1 

.2 

.3 

cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; , , ! 
take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 

d ' '·· " 'j an 
except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and 
purchase orders. 

§ 14.4.3 f n case of such termination for the Owner's convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to re.ceive payment 
for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on the 
Work not executed, 

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 15.1 CLAIMS 
§ 15.1.1 DEFINITION 
A Claim is a demand or asse1tion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter ofright, payment of money, or other relief 
with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and matters in question 
between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract The responsibility to substantiate Claims 
shall rest with the party making the Claim. 

§ 15.1.2 NOTICE OF CLAIMS 
Claims by either the Owner or Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the other party and to the Initial 
Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker, Claims 
by either party must be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or ,vithin 21 
days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 

§ 15.1.3 CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 
Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9. 7 and Article 14, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make 
payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect will prepare Change Orders and issue 
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decisions of the Initia I Decision Maker, 

§ 15.1.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST 
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein shall 
be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Prior notice is not required for Claims rel~ting to an emergency 
endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4. · 

AlA Document A.201m - 2007. Copyright '.:, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1.9-25, 1937, 1951, 1953, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by 1'he American 
Jn~titute: ot Archit~ct~. All rlghts reserved. WARNIHG: This A.IA• Document is prot•at•d by O. 8, Co}:)yright La:,, and Int•rn&tion.lll Treat1es. 
'Jnautho.r:1:::ed reproduction or distribution of this ATA" Document, or any portion of l.tt m•v result i:t s£:vere civJ.l and crim::..naJ. penalti•!!, and 35 
:,;ill be proaecoted to the max2-mum extent po.1;.-ibl• mtde . .= the law. Th.is dr!tft 'Aas produced by .~IA. software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/l.E/2()1? '.Jed.er 
Crd~r Ho. 9-163531,:25.3. >Jb.'.'._ch exp::_re5 on :'l'i/2?/202:}, and is no-: for res;:11~. 
Oser Notes: (811808822\ 



§ 15.1.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME 
§ 15.1.5.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided 
herein shall be given. The Contractor's Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on 
progress of the Work. In the case ofa continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 

§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented 

by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could lot have b. een re•a. sona .. b. ly 
anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction. 

§ 15.1.6 CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this 
Contract. This mutual waiver includes I 

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, incomb, p}ofit, financing, 

.2 

business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivit~ or bf the services of such 
persons; and j I 
damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, an,dJqr loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. I J I j 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to ei~1er ~arty's terh1in~tion in 
accordance with A1iicle 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.6 shall be deemed to pr~clude an awarll of; 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Dociiments. i I I I 

§ 15.2 INITIAL DECISION ! 
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, 11.3.9, and 11.3.10, shall be referred to the Initial 
Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless otherwise indicated 
in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision shall be required as a 
condition precedent to mediation of any Claim arising prior to the date final payment is due, unless 30 days have 
passed after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker with no decision having been rendered. Unless 
the Initial Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between 
the Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner. · 

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more 
of the following actions: ( 1) request additional suppmiing data from the claimant or a response with supporting data 
from the other paiiy, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in paii, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, or (5) 
advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker lacks 
sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial 
Decision Maker's sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim. 

§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or se~k 
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expe1iise who may assist the Initial Decision 
Maker irI rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to autho}ize:retention o'fsuch 
persons at the Owner's expense. 

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a pa1iy to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional 
suppmiing data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either ( 1) provide a 
response on the requested supp01iing data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data 
will be furnished or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no suppo1iing data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the 
response or supp01iing data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in 
part. 

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approvirlg or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that 
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in w1iting; (2) state the 
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision 

I ' 
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and birlding on 
the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute 
resolution. ' 

AIA Document A20lni. - 2007. Copy.1:ight _;, 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA.") Document is protected by U.S. Copyright La'll and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this .A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe c1.v1.l and criminal penalties, and 
•;,1ill be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 15:08:15 ET on OS/lE/2019 under 
Order No. 94E3538253 ,,,..hich e:{pires on 04/29/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 

36 



§ 15.2.6 Either pa11y may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.L 

§ 15.2.6.1 Either pai1y may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other pai1y 
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand 
fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. ,, 

§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated tb, nJtify the surety, if any, 
of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor'sl de~ault, the Owner may, 
but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety's assistance in resolving the fOnt1:oy<?1:~X,: 

I 
§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic's lien, the party asserting such f:laimmayproceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. I I 

l I 

§ 15.3 MEDIATION Li 
§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.6 shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. j ! , • 

I I : • 
§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve thefr Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance witli its Constructibn Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall :be iµade in w1;ting, 

1 '' - -- - -' , 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request 
may be made concwi-ently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in silch event, mediation shall 
proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 
60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an 
arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the pai1ies may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the 
arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 15.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any cow1 having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4ARBITRATlON 
§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any 
Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in \1/riting, delivered 
to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitr·ation. The party filing a 
notice of demand for arbitr·ation must asse11 in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is 
permitted to be demanded. 

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be ban-ed by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute oflimitations purposes, receipt of a 
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of 
legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim. 

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly 
consented to by pai1ies to the Agreement shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 15.4.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER 
§ 15.4.4.1 Either pa11y, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted unde1; this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that ( 1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 

AIADocumantA201!:!i! 2007. Copyright:, 1911, 1915, 19l8t 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 15163, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 n:1d 2001 by The Arnerican 
In.stitut• of Archit_~ct~. All rights :r-eserved. WARNING: This A!A"'.I Document i• ~t:ot•ct•d by U.S. Copyright Law and Int•rnat1on:al Treaties. 
Unautho:t12ed reproduction or dis::.r.1-hut:1-cm c£ this AIA .. Document, er any portion 0£ ::.t, may result in severe civil and r.:riminal p•n.alt1•11, and 37 
will b• prosecuted to th.a ma.xi.mum extent po• u.hl• tm~ier the- l;;.';l. Th_i_s d.::<l!!'t ~e :s pr0dt,;.cead by AL\ soft•,.;are at 15: 08: 15 ET O!l l)S/1E/20.'.:.. 9 unde.:: 
'}rder Ho.9 • 63538~53 •~h.:'._ch exp.::_res o:i J4/2<;'l/2C2C, and is no:: for- res:,.le. 
User Notes: {,Hl30Be:~) 



permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions oflaw or fact, 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 15.4.4.2 Either patiy, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question oflaw or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided 
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent. I I 

J 
' I 

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitr~tiori conductedtmder this 
Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Contractor under this Agreement. 

AIADocumentA201:Ill-2007. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963 1 1966 1 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American 
Institute of drchitects. All rights reserved. WARHING: This AIA' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A.IA~ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and 38 
will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA soft•...iare at 15:08:15 ET on 05/16/2019 under 
Order No.q4E3538253 1.vhich expires on Cl4/2CJ/2020, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (811808822) 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDD/YYYY) 

~ 10/4/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~i~?CT Gayle Botner 

VTC Insurance Group ;l)gNJn Pxll• ( 2 4 8 ) 8 2 8 - 3 3 7 7 I rti~ No\; (248) 828-3741 

Troy Office ioMlJ~ss: gbotner@vtcins.com 

1175 w. Long Lake Ste. 200 INSURER/Sl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

Troy MI 48098-4960 INSURER A :Travelers l?rop. Cas.Co. Of Ame 125674 

INSURED INSURER B :Charter Oak Fire Insurance 25615 

George W. Auch Company INSURER C :Scottsdale Insurance Comoanv 41297 

65 University Dr INSURER D: 

INSURER E: 

Pontiac MI 48342 INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:18-19 Master inc All Cov REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR• 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL ~::i.~:; ,:g}-Jg1vWt1 ,~ghliYv~~\ LTR: '""n POLICY NUMBER LIMITS 

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,00 
~ i-, DAMAGE TO RENTED 

A LJ CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES /Ea occurreo.~.e \ $ 300,000 

2--- x,c, u included CO0334C348 10/1/2018 10/1/2019 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY !$ 1,000,000 
~ 

GEN'L ·~~DC~ i GENERAL AGGREGATE ' $ 2,000,000 PER: 

i·7 POLICY0 LOC i PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 
t7 

I$ : I OTHER: 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ~i~n81NGLE LIMIT i $ 1,000,000 -
A 

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) i $ 
·-

ALL OWNED ~ SCHEDULED 10/1/2019 i BODILY INJURY (Per accident) i AUTOS AUTOS BA0344C348 10/1/2018 $ 
- - NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE X HIRED AUTOS X AUTOS I Per accident\ $ 
-

$ 

X UMBRELLA L!AB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE is 15,000,000 ~-

A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 15,000,000 

DED I X I RETENTION$ 10,000 l CUP8J778265 10/1/2018 10/1/2019 $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION XI [;'f~TUT!c I I ERn· 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 0 NIA i E.L EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 

B (Mandatory In NH) UB0334C348 10/1/2018 10/1/2019 E.L. DISEASE· EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000 000 

A lEASED/RENTED EQUIPMENT 6308027B22A 10/1/2018 10/1/2019 $150,000 limit 

C EXCESS LIABILITY XLS0103344 10/1/2018 10/1/2019 $5,000,000 over $15,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

FOR EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE PURPOSE ONLY THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

**************************************** ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS, 

**************************************** 
****************************** AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

****************************** 
~ ******************* Alan Chandler/V45 ~r? 

@1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 

INS025 (201401) 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



COMMENT~REMARKS 

PROFESSIONAL/POLLUTION LIABILTY: 
Limits of Coverage: $2,000,000 Aggregate/$2,000,000 Occurrence 
Company: Allied World Assurrance Company 
Policy Number: 03092202 
Policy Dates: 10/1/2018 to 10/1/2019 
********************************************* 
CYBER LIABILITY: 
Limit of Coverage: $500,000 
Company: Continental Casualty Co. 
Policy Number: 596506992 
Policy Dates: 10/1/2018 to 10/1/2019 
********************************************** 

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS LIABILITY: 
$2,000,000 Limit of Liability 

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY: 
$2,000,000 Limit of Liability 

FIDUCIARY LIABILITY: 
$2,000,000 Limit of Liability 

EMPLOYEE THEFT: 
$500,000 Limit 
Company: Hanover Insurance Co. 
Policy Number: LHB9726078 
Effective Date: 10/1/2018 to 10/1/2019 

OFREMARK COPYRIGHT 2000, AMS SERVICES INC. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

FROM: John V. Balint, Director of Public Works/City Engineer, through the Office of 
the Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais DiSessa 

DATE: May 14, 2019 

RE: Owners Representative Services - Phoenix Center 

The Department of Public Works has prepared and advertised a request for 
qualifications for Owners Representative Services. Qualifications were accepted 
on at April 1, 2019 at 2:00 PM in the office of the City Clerk and publically opened 
at that time. 

There were six respondents to the RFQ. They were: 
• Auch 
ID Hubble, Roth and Clark, Inc. 
• JMK Consultants 
ID NTH Consultants 
ID Plante Moran CRESA 
ID Seit Group, LLC 

A three-member review panel individually reviewed the responses and awarded 
points based on the responses. A firm was able to obtain as many as 100 points 
from each evaluator in the following categories in the following categories: 

• Understanding of Service-20 points 
• Qualifications of Team-50 points 
• Past Performance-30 points 

Due to the specific need for this project, it was important to get a firm that has 
experience in a wide variety of construction management and oversight. Based in 
the scoring of the panel, that firm is Auch. The budget for this contract will be part 
of the overall bond request for the repairs and renovations to the Phoenix Center. 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works that the City accept 
the panels recommendations and authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to enter 
into an Owners Representative contract with Auch. 

At the May 7th , 2019 City Council Study Session, City Council requested a revised 
scope of services from the representatives of Auch. This proposal has been 
received and reviewed by the Department of Public Works and found to be 
acceptable. The revision in the scope is to begin the process of acquiring design 
professionals as well as hire an architect to prepare a Vision Plan for the Phoenix 



Center. This scope of work proposal is for a Not-To-Exceed amount of 
$283,482.37. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHERAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

JVB 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has adve1iised and received responses to a request 
for qualifications for Owners Representative Services on April 1, 2019 
and publically opened bids, and; 

a review panel has scored the responses, and; 

after scoring, the most qualified consultant was Auch. 

At the May 7th City Council Study Session, the request was made to 
revise the scope. This revised scope changes the cost to a Not-To
Exceed cost of $283,482.37 

The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to enter a one year 
contract with Auch for Owners Representative services for a Not-To
Exceed amount of $283,482.37. 





TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
Departmeut of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave" Pm1tia£, Michigan 4§:l-12 

T~tephoue: {Z48) 758-2800 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAfSSON-PlANNING MANAGER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DiSESSA 

VSA 19-01 SEWER EASEMENT VACATION -5 CARTER STREET, DOWNTOWN POI\JTIAC 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 14•29-408-020 

MAV14,2019 

1. APPLICANT: THE HAMILTON LP 

2. REQUEST: To vacate sewer easements that cross The Hamilton Limited Dividend Housing Association 

Limited Partnership property, which will be home to The Hamilton, a planned multiple family 

development in a four-story structure. At the Planning Commission meeting on May 1, 2019, the 

Commission recommended for approval to City Council. 

3. lEGAl DESCRIPTlON: Vacate the sewer easement on Parcel ID Number 14-29-408-020; Lot 10 Assessor 

Plat 42; Lot 35, Assessor Plat 119; Lot 8, Assessor Plat 42 [see attached Release of Easement, legal 
descriptions, support documents, and ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey]. 

4. RELATIONSHIP TO PONTIAC 2014 MASTER PLAN UPDATE: 
The City of Pontiac's 2014 Master Plan illustrates the property as Downtown future land use. Currently 

the site is underutilized and ls positioned in the northwest section of Downtown Pontiac. Once 

completed The Hamilton will bring must needed residential development into the Downtown, which is a 
top priority for the City. 

The Downtown is inherently mixed use, both vertically and by block. Must needed residential 

development helps to support the vibrancy and economics of the commercial, retail and entertainment 

uses and creates more energy in the Downtown. This development will reinvigorate this Downtown area 

and become a catalyst for other new investment and development. 

1 



5. ADMINSTRATIVE REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 
The Oakland County Water Resources Commission office has reviewed this request to release the 
sanitary sewer easement, found no indication of an existing sanitary sewer, and has no objection to 
releasing the sanitary easement [see attached email]. Also, City of Pontiac DPW did not have an 
objection to release the sewer easement. 

6. Pl.ANNING STAFF FINDINGS: 
a) The sewer easements are not necessary for the proposed development and adjacent properties. 
b) The vacation of sewer easements will not be a detriment to the utility of adjacent or nearby 

properties. 
c) All adjacent property owners have signed the sewer vacation petition. 

7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL: 
We suggest the City Council consider approval of the sewer easement vacation resolution as noted 
below. 

REQUEST FOR SEWER EASEMENT VACATION 

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL 

WHEREAS, The City is in receipt to release sewer easements vacation request submitted by The Hamilton LP 
on Parcel ID Number: 14-29-408-020; Lot 10, Assessor Plat 42; lot 35, Assessor Plat 119; lot 8, Assessor Plat 
42, and; 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, May 1, 2019 in regards to 
the sewer easement vacation request, and; 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the subject sewer easement is not required to 
remain on the subject property and the proposed sewer vacation will not have an adverse effect on the 
surrounding properties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the vacation of a sewer easement submitted by The Hamilton 

LP on Parcel ID Number: 14-29-408-020; Lot 10, Assessor Plat 42; Lot 35, Assessor Piat 119; Lot 81 

Assessor Plat 42, is hereby approved by the City Council on May 21, 2019. 

2 



City 
Office of land U1e and Strn'c-egic Planning 

47450 Woodv!iarcl Ave, P1,;,ntiac, Ml 4834~ 
T: 248.758,2800 fl: 248.1582827 

instrucH0~1s: ,\pplieatlou.:Z <.>f tik•:!~l 7 ,ilk)\ c:.as;.1HJe:ut 

Oftkc oJ' Limtl lJ5~ :1JH.i t' l~ilJtiug .ilrmg wi,h <1 $ l ,5mLOO fo~ ;i11d a 
i.lll.)'S hc;fo1r: 1he rc1;1;fo1ly Commls,io" lvkdin11. "!'l"''""""' 

Public rigbt,,,J:.w:iy shall be (1led willi ,h,: 
o ( ihc m't:ft rcqnetitd (nr ,rnr~H inn ;H k:.ist 30 
~hu H :.ignEd by propf;;J~' i)WlHr~ :ihnllfog. 

;;trt1'.! nt n!k:y I n)H•:>:lcd fur VilCll!fou whcrn p,,s.t<ihk )aec,mpkl,?. ,rpplicH!irni,; will deliy tit~ 

Rn.om111J.:mhtinn of 1l)c l'til!mbg Com,uis,1011 wlll be forwtrdd ,0 lh<: City for fin:,! a¢rim1. 

1:ir fi>m1tiar for va,',;ii1rn u f !he 
if' 11ecessc1ry): 



Re~tsnn for \11g:afion of ltight ::rf)Va:v nY ft}lt-;ernunt; 
lliti ~rte J)',)\ m,r:t:;;:;s-:;uy. '111~ fbtn1lh.m Urnll.:d Dl1A1JQ1'H! H,:;,u:~.\nQ fv,,:,.J)<Jdlw1 Lir'.1i! ... <l PrJflf1W~hip, lhu i>urd:,;.ry.::r d th~~ 

_p1npc1iy
1 

rt;qcil!ll'$ lhal 11-1~ (1rlk1,-fnt:1n!s b11 r(~:east:d ~i order lt)8{ Ttio l""f"grnillL'l"' t.Ot--11\ LP rn~y d,p\U.!\Dp tlx; p1bpet:1,i 

!Eill JdfnthHl is :i m;tp ltttlklitfog the :1rea fol' ·which. vacation is requested and the 1oc~niM e-f 
rh,i app!kant11 property. 

Lisa Ci Slephens 
Nnf;Hy Pub.lie. ~tatr:, of Oh.1o 

\~y C:ur:mi:?siDu Expimr: . .,·_ 

I 
I 
l 
i 
I 
t 



WHEi~f!.AS. tbe City of Pon,fa,, Oald:rnn Mid1ig:i11 (ihc "City") 
received certain eaS('()lenlS for sew,::r liiw purposes n:, i,> :'.(:nnin 1e:il proptr(y, wbic11 
em;ements ~rn d0scribed as follows: mi easement for :-:1'.wer /ill!'\Hlses daied Deci:mlJct 

.1956, n:t{lnl1;(! r)n A(1til 26, 1957 in 1f,ilrn1' %8!\ J';,gc 0 \79 :md an eiisenh:,lt for 
se·wer in1rpo:-;es d~1red ])(',Ct\tH{H~t 2t\ 1956~ n.;cta·dc:d on 26, t957 ln i.Jbet· Jt;ss, 
Pa~t 475 ;rnd ,rn (·iis,:ment for ;;ewer p,irposes dnted Dec:embet 7, 11>56, :-crnrdt:d 
April 16,. J9S7, in Ube!' 3685, 477, in lhe f·h:gist.::r of Deed., ofCli,ldamJ County, 
Mid1i,;:ar1 (tnpk:; or \Vhicb casement doctll\Ji:n\~ (\1(; at!'.idm.! lwre(D as ,:\ti_:1rltm~nu~, f_ 

indivichw.lly nnd to1;cthe1\ th,'l "E:,serrwats"): ;ind 

\VHER EAS. tlw City adrnGwledges that :.>:rtmn 1 e;d prr,qerty (k:,crilkd iri Ji?thilm 
.e, ,illiidied hcr1:lo nnd nwde- a part hereof (th,o ') ha:; dc1cm1ined th:ll !he 
F,1:,cnv.:11L3 i, not 1ieccsi,ary and bas tkcickd dwt the Pmp1crt y n1:iy he and sh0u!c iw 
re!ea;;ed frnl!l ihc opermion of the Easemrn!S, :J;; h:1s h:t•n rrHJ,1<sst~d by \11,:' pu,drnser of 
the Propuny. The rlnmiH{m Limited llividend ;\.rnicilltion Lirnit-erl 
Partnership, il Michigan limited panm:rship ("The l L:11nJ;c_,r1") wh,> is purch[1sing lhc 
pwpcrty Crom the current Property own,cr, 48 ~x Hrn-<w St,01:I, LL(. a Dd:-1w,1ti.:- liniii,-::d 
linbility company (lhe "Sdler"), who is the .,uccc,,:;or in 11ller,:sl to the Prnp,:rty. 

010W, fI--fEREFORE .. in coHsiderntion of 111e 1wed f{,i The l f:unihon Lo !rn'1e the 
Prnrcny r21e1,ed from ihe Easeincnis hxausc ,.,r Tile l larn1 Hon's pllinned 1knlopment 
of the Pr0prrly, tit~- City doe.s he1eby release ;\lid i'ur,:v,:r from th: opcrntion of 
the Ens::rne111,. 

:US :HHl Liber 516:tU, .Page '.f,12 :rnd Ubu 52520, 

Onkl;111d Cour,ty, tvlichig:m. 
oCDeeds of 



.) 

Saad LlP 
50() '3,:,u1h Fwnl 

Ohio ·ff! 15 
l'ltoc?: ,; i.:i. _:,w; .. J]'if 

i,1 Ltt;rir 
,n 1ht Ri.·gistet (if 

CITY 011 PONTIAC1 

OA1{LAND COUNTY, Jvt!CHJ(MN 

Name: 
Title: 

day of th,._; ahuve 
of 

h> rnt knowr, 1,1 b,: tlH': pi:-rt;()n who ,,x,.'nnr:d the 
the, :;a,,,c: 



[Attnthcdj 



" y)'.',\ 
I'} \ , i t,;j 

~"tfie• l.1t0'..1:n'tfFUZ,, Un&~ th~ __ ... ,t,,:;1.,,l.·4 -_:,-•¥'·•«-..-it,>-, vf /i~~t,\kfa~1t1:1-0.,,..~""'-w 
&l\- tho v" <u' M' nil,;, L;,;•.J_,_ o, ,i; t,,,,·n,ij and n in@ t,i'' ~-;;-:;;-;{ 1f.!'S.r . .:5,;., • ;: ¢l'nu,,.,ne J-,dn.,, c '" ~-.,.,,.....-=-~ 

'$~--::tin fxci,ar·~ l~i~d 11$¼ ,I~ !~1wil~c/lJtb~ c:~~mr.u 
· · Pnr.tfo.c· P&'Jctt::l S.~Vlrl.SM tit l-finUl .r\nl-'~~hitk;oi l,lfJD.a:g;..,~w i:· "'" 

of tr;~ Cit)" i:,t j'llt{eU,c, (lol.i;llll>ll Cu,ml:t, .i'!.'!ohigo.u, \:l"l"i; i/t:tJi:I' tho ~ 

I 

'J 

.'---;---------------l------r[.b;ll".3'.•Sj;_}!.",!.i1-•,1~ t):i? City of' f1Jn~i1w, n l',,niolµnl. Cr,pp_ot-~fa<o;,; "' \1t,,i,. Sl5· 
:i.~ntl \l('1~tr,.'f...1, J.ft;"Et~ ITT7fNTi~B1i1n;-yr;rr-ty1:rf-th1T'7fdJ;C!::md-p~,,0,-,,-------?<l-:wt------------------

I, 

I 

I 

!1l"rHE:.S:SBTff,, ~t:tud.{ t!lti a~i.d pa1 ... t;l~_ ilf Ch& fli".ttt pa'.l::~i- :f-or J111d Jp: JJ41-.~~ .. -. 
td.Qor;./1:i.rm '1.t '\:.F\$ !.t\.\W, tit on{z 65IT¾~ HtU c.t'b1;,·1:- y~1,.\'i~\lu 4t.it.';'.,J.'iQ~).'t/!.!l.C~t. 

to --•· ..J).$J&. .. . ·- !.11 f.;n,l 10.f.tl bJ tM ,,,.1;d p=tr ol' th;;, ff"i!itr(d 
'p~""'ta th\1.1 l'~H:1'il.J>t trhti~~o:r iu 1N.i'1JP-y ·~0{1tv~tj~d anU )t,.tlt/1'-)VlU-dg'E'-tJ~ ~½7.0 
rm~ t;w erJ»,ilJ,.tit11t~ :otld ~sr-.::.11•tHttJl h\'lt❖lnntte-r- nr.r·rtc..$.nhtl to t,">",; r,-41-1,.,~ 
t,n-:ond. by 11<,l>i per,~y er 'Cha; ni;;oot,d p,,,,t, ul:,loh tho- 1nia 1,a:;-!l:r {'t' .t;lw 
r,l:$,tC!f)-0 O~Pi~ 1rt tl\':.~pt, ... ne-n h.ti;-lrril';i. R~_t!;'~Dft t.:i ~?ft:Ot'\11 ffl<l e.--~~1:~.f·\11:\;.J}}' 
dt¼ h.ls44.i bf thc,.tiu -rr;~1h~nts .r,; ..... ;!.-11t r.n;i c(:;.nvs.)" \'A~to' ±.ha nrttl~ :y ort-:f qt , 
Lh•"-;;;vnd ,va1~i .}pd to !t;., {,Oob~~1JJJ(.tf-;.1 Ut:d u.;.:qrlgnU rorUYtil'i th,6 i1Z,bt.' 
to -n.;nf.it1"tlet 1tn:d rn~:!,:irttB.i'fl r:nrr1a110ntl1 }1 1;,niRH"B ty-r, d:r-aJ~fli on fir,-t-at ua:r--,• 
t.a!.-0 p.t•~!,)~ 01." ;;it-111?1~'.l. f,t lt:1),} ~1ih1~~ ... ~ ~;J'.H:l h;dtiq ix1 th.ts OttY t)J!' 

.Po11t,-itu-) C(',Uff~.f of OeklhIHl, t'.,.."H) tlrt !Ji;,.;::t,:;, oJ' t~rt'}l.15-t>.,,.,i> l! .. WJ~'.n ('H¼ c1., ..... 
·q--q-p-·n.,¼,'l t'\o: t~J.J .. o,l.e . .r t-10-\:1\1.-

· 'Thi;t ;,ait 'It Lal Hl, 
Mlt'.blg,,n, i)ci,;,,)}1,:,.rl Pi 





l /-/ ,,, ~ ~ ., 

~rJH?', 11;uS;,f!;m.;,_; ;1.u.0's} t.1~1) ,,_,,_~ ..J 'f<-7-,- __ y_d<f)" ~jf -- .~,s"1~·•-n•6•·Lc: 
lH th:i y11!U"" td -mJ):- r .. a-i·.i GU?~'ll'.$.!..Qd nlrnl hnn,h-td ?1ffy w::-l/:,.-:;;. .. y,,.__._, 

-,,,,~·-<:t;i ({ob': P., Lacy n,:d pur.l 2:. u,cy, hlu wlf" 
"-, , -- 19 Ctent:d,cw,~, . 

. for,lJac, M>t:h!gan ,. _ , . 
-------------------l.-----~"r t!:• 1:u-r ;,f r,rnti~c, o~l!lM<l. :Gou.Hy, don\ 0..:n, r"rtiBH or tb n•1;v-µuTt"',---n.rnrt,fo,·-C+tcr·•-Ot-F¢4.t;.iae.;--!L..t!u.r.l:al:p.al_,Q11tRQ%~,,'C:,_r<,em··~~"--·'--r--'o'-',::Cjko.::~C_c~;--+----------------

l!,Htl cr1~ipty1 f.it1:rt~ pf r.t~higiln-.,. fJh.!"t.Y ut Hw -,J~,e-ond i}£r---t,. \' 0 
~a 1JT1tsr;t1~H11. 'f}ia t t-!1t> ~titd pm•,ttes o.f tiw rit-&t por'l~ fm' Dncl :in i10.;)-.. 
~tc(;'fr-f..tllin' or thu :t1\1P ot one dofl'nr; i;H~I~ o01r.ir- vtilue.b1i or;r,.$i.(tO-t-/:1t.ir..-r:. 
(• _ • ct,,m, _ l.n h•nd I' std 'o-r th> iid a 1>tirt;1 of tM t"oni,11 
pilt;'"lh9 ·ra~ctT"ipt_ \Jp~r-i:n)! 1P !lti>c-lfb;t ~::mft.n";t16d -GcOt! ~-G.ltr'1•~~).q14t~U.!i and. 
OH ·t:1t C-t1ndit1-.n1~ .u:nO !':.-l!J"Q~'"'-~tttn h~1•·tJin~ft1,r- cer1-t.c:J.rn_;.d ti} b:t> pi)1:'., 
tpi~tr.C!t\ by e.i,rd.<1 plU"'l.Y .of tho acict>,10 pti.:ri:<t vhi.ch t:-lo t;;Al.d f""'t"t:Y ?1~ i,b~ 
t~t1cptft Pur-t1 "r,i\' ;;,,;.,r,op:r;~.ni!-a llf.J-t"E'.lPt,. ttt,t)'"ht:--?, to pt)rtoi"'Tf4. t::i\d t:1,"'m",P-l.y vlth,
Gn :.~-~":, h-y th~-~11 p;r-s,.o-t111tz grctqf i\hb i!on\fO!{ ,h1io -tho t:i·aid pm;::-'ty of 
t3'N M,'1Ql'l{l ]Hirt ~nd to lt~ :::i,Uo~v.soo.rJ ;n~il ~tttd-&Yd.1 f~JrGi"lrti'.V~ t.)1v a.~lgh:t 
b~ pnn.:;ilr"Ui=t 4_t)d r.lu.lr,tf;..i('.i p~i'L'lilB~fltly ::it-1,.Jol~n c;::, 1h•;.)lh-;l on tbtt ct-~
t.id:n JJ1oce or )1P.~·..;o1. c,$ l.r.nl:l ~i.trn:1.t.:""d Ml6. \•~tn.:-~ lo th1l Olt":f n:f 
Jiont:bl'.;.; Cn,.hlt:7 Qf Ooklti.n6.t ~nd t;l~ Stfltr.1 ol.' f~lcil.igu~~,; b\0~1 :Pnd. d?
:;i.~Fi'c.i-1 e,..::i, ftil'.i,o';{->.:.;; f;,o:::;-vlt.~ 

'll'ittt p1irl t.•t l-1~~l. !}5, AB.f.f~Mfil-1"~~ ¥int l.19, -0!1};°JP.nd C.t01.r.aty, (Hty o! ?<.4rt_b•;:;:, 
J\.tlcbl,n:\n

1 
r!.i.Jfi~-:.d.lltii tm {-Oll<iwti: 



'f'li~ p1.r.;. ... t,:r ,.,.-t l.1)r; riou~:1/2 ~\at-t J.J b1 hr1~r~ tht r-1.;;:h~ to .e:o upty\ ,~j,-
1 

~r~n
i,tt.¢1l !:!i.ti D;r\~V t..1, .. t.1 nft:::-r ::1,~110~•.!.~.s 1.!t,:d~,.1,. or tr.:,.1~..:t.!~ H;·V t:"·.::~-~ .... i";t')rl 
t}H-,i•{~t)n~ f;o ,!'"Op~il'" .u:t.::r--6".; }}h•1-li tn .tt:: jVt1£l1:,'ltr~ the.~~. n.~titl r·.~-r.%! r:; t\lV1r.t 
~l•' !)'..!•-&:1t~nG unto .-~11~6 nuroty ,of tii-o .t1¢co1J~l r,:,n.i;-t-1 ti~ ;'f'l~t:t-~1··trc-va ,m• o:--
t1,le,n~, ti1t r·igJ\~ to ut><'> tlPt-::1 J1X-"t1mlu0::: pn-rnfrt-:~n t::l:· f''{)f' l::;!!t )1.111 
bM1irftt.o nf u~td pt(rtr Ol tb•'.l or:HJF!(d J=l~I"t..t, ii;ti ~•J.t:.l;!{i$.!Cdr'.':I .r.. n:f" L')":~ 

f"f.li~&vfil"'4-

Xh~ J.Hlr"tlt~t.1 ~f ~he fi:rst trnr<t 1:ran.t ,;}}Io =-TEi''F...:-(,Iwfl!l\'.J t'C.;-, ;1i!~ii:f-Fr-,-:----------------------' 
n1:~P,irnl1- 'i9~ >itHher· )'ill:i!l\t 1.rn t:.~ ;f\111'trihlf; ~Pn'Ht,:!fJtHH \Jht-..,~1,~.1n;• rtt,,111.S-.$ 

LtQ ;m:a14 oa,•~,r~1"'.~;1; a~ .. o.tns., o~" .:t;::;zflt:ftJC:::.rs.k'JJJf,J. ru:'tt_ fnmrl 1:oqO.!I;tHt'".\<"';,, ~{:t;;,.IJ ;j---
•·\Utt:t'b~ci nhh':l.l b~ ❖tttd,n{t~ oru.tEidn- o!' ~uid pi"(,...-;,lHn~ 1.f pott~~.¾lbi 1-S it 
t" ·i:v:it' J><,t,ri.ibl<:> to i;,\,tc,i,n MOMn ltlltii>B~ of "" Id rromt~M, i~.-011 """""" 
~ 1-ii:;r 'ti!l ~in.on thN"'&to on .n n.i 1l ·µ_ri<t:.iJ;r10:<Jt r-... n:i t·Lo v::rb-.t or tht~ enr.=.i"if)d 

i.· .. :-.'_ -'.plft•-?ji&l~. l'°ti¾~!'ltp011Gi1 ::1r.i.1Jf pai-..qt'137 ut t:ho- r:,r-at. pu'rt ft•~ tH'.r'.
1 

~r~w12...i_:u r~•: 
,. \111[f,1;.~-.1t1 _t';,,:~~arJ~t'Rli .. 

/,--·) r:';Ji~~-;1:J~;ft:r~~ f.lf, 'tl.tf1 r! r-ot 1):\t"t ;e,1~e2.>-o~ , t-.~w Pi ~\d: l:.n <.t•'.:.t1b-n ct: 11:0,.i r.~ch1..-
.::~ .~-\~~:·~m.]'.- i;!l.rti.~l. lit.ml oS bll1.1·\l:n~~~. or Nfif'4'l"Vtt~·-unt~ U??:!) o:r ¢•> 'r tJ1~ u11ov~ 
;.:·:; .... :-O'ti!iilPJ.~d. x~iri})l{li~H1,? (}1''!>1·ii{l4\i1' t,:·,&t ti10 ~o:nutt,~ci:.\nn c-r H.1-.'T.il will not 

,+_:L~· ~ ''" h_'ti'.;_¢·l:f1}J1r-~ t!i? tti.'¢;:;"u1-1<$,:i.1.tiorH)~ t1,•.;.:i,1tet•~ fU"~inl' t::1:r- tTJtt..il.t~ ,altt,, 
· • ".J.t1';.ff1" ~id'.t\,fr~[1 .noJ.;1oil or trogh a.n_tlutp:1.-.t<1d ~-ymr.:tr1-1..;tion uhtd1 be 

td pit,-·;t,,n~c:, °/ -tho 0'4urm4 ;,a,:•t, 

-:--+-=:q {n"7!.----J.. i!ti;/ 9;?: ___ .1~\d,~c,,"""''""'"'"--·--



111 

:{;: t\ 

'.t'll:~ :/i'.l'.:.lt /l/8.!'., UM;;: t))i --- '7$(,t ,hy <ff -.it:l;f1,11i:tfl _;!/:/;~~)[\': 
!n t:hZ} ;T:}:t:~ «.:if- q1,1;~l',u~rr.i•}-·m& {<};MDS!t:r~d nlnl':f hUntl)·,~ .:;ti~~/ 

U:':1'' :E.'EN !)r,n•ey~·$ii~1JB~9h.ir"i Fc1cwfor, hfo wti;, :_..,, ,::,:~, ;~il[ 
rd· t!:o C,it,/ 9}4 tl91:1~;~0~.::0~(ltlJl.11 P~uf.i.ty.ts" ¥.a~hiE~!l '.ffl)l~i>4;i:1 ~,:v.-., 
til"~t µhi'¾, an,\' t.ho' ,(;it~; nt \l,mtJ.<11>, ~ l¾lnti:i~pa.1.· C,6:qrn;,~c,:, l 

---------------------"-l5u,.."',u~·_,c;;.•'.:1.t"-"1~\~Yt St:i.ot,~ ;gl !,:~~:!!¥~!;!:~ ·tn-u~t:, ot thcl :104t~h~~~~:t~).:J.b 
f ,, .;,-,..•:...,· 

liIJ'JiB~SE'.L'il, :n1£t t:><1 sl:ll-~ pzydea ot -th~ :r.b•t!t '.i)t,'t, riit 'ii.if& 
aiovrutlnn _•i: tM bl)l!; i:if ,;no ooff~r ~nil ot:tii,1~ 1,1,ulF,';)bi\, _-¢01'1'';1: 
to tli;;:m - · ih tnn4 p,:;id l:q t:l11; "l",iti 
i,,1rt, ih~ r~rt'fl'!';,r~~t 1..1' l,(1l;'nb;r Cl)tife&~<l,l', ~'(\ 
Of\ ~!10 C(H1¢i ttoni ~pa _l\~;-i1 tH?''¢r:kt1 h6~W1.bM.f·tpt' 01.)~ 
t•i•mad b;t ~4l>l ·p,i>:\Y: ,-o(J;i-.n JH>cori<l. pn,:t·1 1-ih',uf! tli<(,)! 
ijppoilo w•~·t, tu ,.c~~pi~f" )1i!r®of• ,4,J'l:-,~~ !,•·1/9;":\',~~ 
01'.C\JJltL<'".l' tllo~>J pr,:,o.,,nt;:J ~"lli,t ,md Mr.yo:, w;iio, /;,lJ.,P. 
t,he, .-,'t1.cotni p-~·wt. n rJ\H;QJJ!l.-tli'J-Pn on,Q. ~;,rn1{w=t" ;t,~1i,j_ 

tp {;on,;l~1ruct nn f.l"'l'r-:iP1!'l3n\:i?,y ~Clt•t¾f~ -q~ -i)~~;if.ti#' 
h>in pi~cs\\ Ol' F . _ tm4 al tu,;'t,;u a,\(! ~.&£li!'J tii,,.t,h~: 
l'<>ntho, i::01m,t;t or -0, jfi?, nnil th!} M"'t" oi' ·itto-M:i;dri,,;:)i;t'i, 
oc1--tbf;,1 ea fo}Jt.H~~,, 't,.f>-1;r.1 .. :~;1:\·tr:.:: 

~:,:~j:t;: :() . :d:t:-~'f 
~r-rot p.nAt 01 Lot B, }.0t~H£,P:t"ii }?Ja.t 4~r o~kJ,!;)t~l C,n-u:iirJ1 t;mitfih~+ 
iltw:,idbed 0i1 r«l10wil: ' ' ' ' ')}f' 

!).-'.;g:itu1in;:i;_ !l_'t;: the _{nOfH. n·orlh:tlt-f.:1.H.Ol"'"iy O)J1\E•.lr L\.t 
' • j .. 

/ 

,_ 
0 



]~~ p~1tl=4 c•f_ ,!iv ~1,~:;i:1d ]1t\~} .f; tu hwl~: ;c.,~1;:t r~~1!~t, t,11·.~? t)!-:.On ~-(1~t t/•·J?l-' 
{ff:~~ tit ~21:'l it•"o 111 ~~11 3~hl~tD~- <~r-~-L•~, c~r :;,J:tt.~ .. r~~~itttii ·n.c~1 C"~:t:ib .. ~r.t'.'>•t; 

· ~{~;&-0n.J to ,~apt1.!t> ?q1;~~·i ~y~f?_t~f~n it~ Jv::t:r.;jr1't_ ~ho)' Y!s;ed·-\~-:ixinJ 1ci. t\\·L:,1:, • 
·-t!!~ g;t:a,"1t.£r,C \}1"'!tn m~itj "DtpJJ,.:tt.f t):~ ti-Oijrm 1J, pinrt~ J.t:i' ~}\<;¢~~at~L~t _fuli n~,.,. 
\~:~:t~~~ t:1a rdg!~,:t ~~ ~H'.J:r o~;~ prM,,J~~':i$ t1?mri?lf~&r1 tl;:- i'~.r· E:16 1 :i~:!i ~-/H,l ·,. 
· ~~~.flt? -~t" t1S\J,d p.:cp/f+'i.' ('\V~ t}'l_.:s/'tJ.ft1~·1nt1 pt'irt,, fta ~t'i.:ctt;t;1JJt'a n;,rl. u.~t ~~:trn 
:ttf~~\fnl"..- · 

:•;11 

.)t 

k~ jHt~~;.! o"f tho, /tr~:t ~!4-'b /tiU1t2,,._ thi:j ~\lJ;1':t~-o/ ..... )1a~1 f(tt t.iJ~.'e~~~J/ . 

--~--------------.',"-·" , · b:tJ~~ 0,o'"':\~·5zj~~-·•t,(«ts•_.mlL~~;.~.,L.OlJ,iJ~d'1.;~c~111tlJ;j_JJ1u1~l1\Qr1.QY.~!'.-·l~i'.'._:2i:~.-----·~1,Hll,~---------------~ 
r1.q·w~l:'1J, -d1~ir!nlp. i.iP(ilirl~.t~~ ur1;1 fo~i~ ricit:otp.~i.y; ut,ca:;u ·· · \ 
~},i>U Qt1 ,:,bti\f,'jJ,r oli:t~l r)!, ol' ~n'1d ry\'6'-'1flcn J {' p'u".'!rrJ. ,,J h, tr j t 1 ;' 

~hi<?; \n• ~b ~ itc~!l~ out,r;J~e o~ ~<•id •IH;~p-~t:~~-:- 11 t.!"~t~n.~,.0•H!\):\~ :. · 
❖d ~ft~?~to, ~~f,~c,FP.\rt'll!~ca, u11'); j::h~ ;.mri!{ •Pf thu ,r,t)cnnd ~ 

•. _:t•?~m~p'or.il?.(.!. i, :pn_rt!e.,3 n.t t)ic l.',tl•rd; p~t'.'fGi- 'riny <~r:1~:Ll rr:-.~ · 
tih-t~,f"!,H,~l.Jfjj~ i! ·,':,, ~·~:' ' 

P~'t.trfBSP~. tti.t:1 ri'if~t .'~;n't:ffi~u;m:..,~·\)cp,., tho J"ltfL~ lt!' t,t'1_i>h'b:ri.\ t?i tiwl ,1 rd/:.:. 
Of,i:(;t,..~ify1, kh14-1?.f :u\1tlt'in\~. 01• i'1tTfr-oiJ•:v~(!ut;s '-:i!~)\1 Qf i;>v~;~ :t-11ct o'qo-Jq 

i 1ti11.j,JjtJ:::J$· pr9v-i{\tdl,<, ~~~rn~ t;,11 tQnnt~t;~.t-3.hn•.Pt . .i:,,1.w1t; .-J:111 not i· 

iujui:~· t1~u.~:'fl.t~h~~~ti;,.jit.io~1~d n~-~[jt\~ rttitd:n., bl"'· ·i·1~·t~¥· t/fr~hf1-
ttt<'i-'t~on:.riti,'il~i~\0.('.' ihtt.h $rrtlrit;:)~%ltif".;TJhi ~i~\,fit:tmi n.iJ~l1 .\u~ 

·r.~l,:~:,:~~i;:,~'thtt::.'.;,.:;. :,,p,wt. , 
,;,·::· 



(Prop1·ny of48 W Huron Stri:e1, L.LC) 

-------------------------1"-N}t,Bi",J--h'.Jl{nll)esffif,tim1---------------------------

Situated in Oakkmd County, i'v1ichigan, rnor12 spE'cHic;llv d-~scribed "": 

P21t of Ltit 2.3; A%,;•!,;,or's Pbt No. ll9, ,l:; 1t,co1d,21~ in Uber 53, Page: 3'.:l of f-'lats, Onkland C<JUn\1 

r,ecords, beninning at the Norih~asterly wrnnr ,_,r Lm D, i\:;sEs,ior's Pl8t N,J. J:.9, and 1uM1ng 
thence South 38 dE•f!ft'es '.34 1-riinmes 20 seconds [,1st 7G.07 fem along the Easterly end of lh,, 
~;1Jd Jot tq· lhO: Sr1ut·h~a~•tnrly con1r1r then-:ot 1 Lh~rct! South 7S .degrt~es 43 rninute-:) 30 si:::r:onds 
West 39.02 feet olonr,i:h<2 South<erly line of the s~id ICJt, tli1;1\c<, Nor\.h 18 <k;,r,·'"s 19 minure.s ,10 
seconds West r;6.G.3 fe,c:t to a point on :.hr: Nnn:hferl'/ fine or s;;id lot, th,,nce 11/onh Gl tlegr<".es ss 
mirwt.2,, ,10 second., l'n,t 17.31 ftlU to the pnlr11 ofbei;inning. 

/.\lso, Part of Lot 24, Ass,2s::-.or1s PL:r;. Ho. J.19~ as rs(:orc::2c:l in Uber S:1, Pag<~ ]9 of Hctts, 0;:;kh;:t1 

C,Jt~ntv Rr:t:onh, brJeinnfng ~t th0 J\k::li hcn:J.t~rh; ct'tl rwr of !.iJt ?·4., rut1nfng the-r,<(~ jc;i!t.h ]3 
def.;H?0:- 54 mintn~~!S 20 f.,f:Ct,nds Ea~'l ilf~.00 feet ;lifH1i~ tht:t h:~lt;•t\y t~nd nf ~.aid lot lo t!Kt 

Southe85terly c1..1r'ner tl1_ert1of, lhEnce South Cl di:'f~tei:.:s.SS rnin1Jh1~";_ 110 ~:,~conds \/1/J:} 1;t t:<,]1 nlnne 
the Southerlv lin0 of saJd !ot, thence North 23 Jeru,:~es :.~r; in,nuu~s uo secondz V~J'(1~.t ;15.13 (c,pt 

to rho 1x,in1 01 b"Jgir.ning . 

. ~t~-o, Lot 7.6, ~:xi:.;_~pr the ~.f..1Uthv11::;1.t;rlV 1t? h·t~t ,3ntl p:3rl tolu-:n fo< ro<Jd, J\.s~;t~~~~or\ Pl;ir Nr:L lJJ, 
(15 n~•(r)!'d12d it) Uber' 53. Paf.t-: ·r; (}f Ph:n, 0·;1klancl Cuuntv H1~<:(1rds. 

,i.\L:-0
1 

l c.1ts ;'}O, 3-1 1 32., '.52\ J4~ 31
1 

33 .~ 39, al:.o Vi Gf Vnr.:rted !)me Srr-::·et ;;bJtting Let 31 iJf!d tot 

38, /\;;~-J2<-~~sor1s Phit ;\Jz~ . .1 J ;\ w; rr:n;r·dt;d in Ubi-;-r S:=!-, P2g~ 39 cf Pl;.1tii, Or1kland (£.HlltlV ~ecJrds, 

/\ii,L\ ! t)t 7, ai•;(:i J~ of V;H:8k!d Pin~~ St fh:'.lt, A.s:,f•~sor1s Pint M~>- ti) 1 D::,; (:'(Or-dGd H} Ubrit 11\ pi1fiC 

4 2 of P!~Jt;1, Oi1kkind Cnuntv Retords. 

lJ;t 9, ,7LO Yi of v2citftd Pip{~ ~tr,~f~t, /-:.::st:!;~;i::,r':; Piar No, 42, J5 reL(trd(:d fn Liti,;~r ll\, F'<lE?: lj- 2 of 

PfBts 1 o,~ld~1nd CtHi.,!f.y !{ecord~ .. 

Paro:d_3: 

Lot '10
1 

0fs0 /} of ·JJ(i:iteC P!tu? S~r,;r;;
1 

/;::.-:;r-;;•;;Jr'~~ Pb! 1\!n ,t?., ti::; rccord<:d in !..~ht:>t -..,\ f.'ar.l7 :1? n! 

PhtJ, O~kh'o!d County RY(ord;s, 



i>0rcr~I 4: 

Situstod in tl1e Cll-y of l'un tiac, Countv of Oakk,nd ,,rid Stats; oi Tvlichigarr, tc-vvit: 

1.nt -35, "i\sses~or's Plat No. 119, a Replat of Cirt0r Addition; and h:irts of Cornstodi and 
Paddock's Addilfon, As$w;wr';; Plat No. 35, u11d Sanders,m and Johm;ton's Subdivision'', Citv c,,f 
Pontfac, 0;,kland Courrtv, Mi.::higc1n, rn;cordlng \o the Pl,,t th2{12td at recorded ln Uber S3 of 
Plats, Page 39, OaJdand County Records. 

Lot 8, :ll$o ½ of V,lrnt,,d Pine Street, Assessor'5 Plst No_ '12, a,; n',wrcfr"d In Uber 1A, Par;e /42 of 

rh1t,, O,,kl0nd C:ountv flecord,, 

END OF LEG.A.I. DE:'CHIP110N 





., 
I, 
r. 

.l .. •·w·-· • !,,-mf- , ~. · 1· ;: ' , :L l , ,. . .. \ ., 

-·---·'''···--



r 
1 

I 

I: 



Donovan Smith ____________ ,, ____ ,,..,,,.., .. _____________ _ 
Fmm: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Sttbjet:t: 

Davis, Mark W <davlsma@oakgov,com> 
Wednesday, April 24, 2019 ·i-i:12 AM 
Parrott, Jeffrey S; Dc:movan Smith; Jack Cady 
Vernon Gustafsson; John Balint; D<Nisch, Ricky A; Coburn, Brian; Appel, Glenn R 
RE: Release o'f sewer e;:1sernEmt 

Attachments: 25 Carter· Map,docx; The Hamilton ALTA 031319 (easments rnarked),pdf; Release, 
------------"Eacc;s""e=-rnc:;:e:ccnr.ctsc-c, sr:e""w:-:::e:c;;,r ('TfieFlarnfffon ancP!SWHuron Street, LLC).with .... pdf,---------~ 

from: Donovan Smith [mailto:DSmith@pontiac.rn!.us] 
~ir,t: Wednesday, April 24, 2019 10:58 AM 
To: Jack Cady; Appel, Glenn R; Davis, Mark 1/11; Parrott, Jeffrey S 
Cc: Vernon Gustafsson; John Balint 
Subject~ RE; Release of sewer easement 

Good Morning, 

Att<1checl in this email are the digital files of the request for sewer easement vacation at 5 Carter Street In preparation 
of this request before the Planning Commission, can you respond to this ernaii or in v,irit!ng support or contest of the 
sewer vacation request. 

Thank You, 

Donovan Smith 
City of Pontiae 
City Planner 
DSmlth@Pontiac.Mi,Us 
248.758.2815 

Fror,i: Fugate, Frank <FFugate@wodagroup.com> 
Sent: Friday, March 15, 2019 4:28 PM 
To: Donovan Smith <DSmith@pontiac.mJ.us>; Rachel J. Lough,in <RLoughrln@pontiac.mi.us> 
Cr;: Vernon Gustafsson <vgustafsson@pontiac.mLus>; Donovan Srnith <DSm!th@ptmtiac.rni.us>; Miriam Co.)( 



<MCOX@pontiac.mi.us>; Patters,m, Craig <CPattc~rson@wod;,igroup.com> 
Subj$ct: Rel<:iase of sewl~f ,:asement 

l This 1::mnil originated from of City t)f Pontinc. • ··· · .... ,. ......... ·· ......... .,.,_,:·:·~ .. .. 

i. unless you recognize the st~nder and arc expecting !he: tT\t.:s:mgc:. 
l>, ... H ....................... •--• >·I ·s, ·»••" .,,,o.,•v••'•" •«>l'fl o;u••" ,n.,,, , .. ., "O .,.,,,.,,..,,,.,,., .,,_.,,.,..,, ,.,,,_., ~""'"' ,..,,,., <•h<,_,.,..,,..,,., """"'' ,.,,.., • ., ,., ",,.,._ un<••••• -• •••• »H ••", ••• •••• ., .. ., • 1 I•, f<••••" O ><~> H """" • ,;,-H•,,<• 

Donovan, 

We aro preparing to close with lho seller late next week. We have found two imnitary sl;lwer casements. We will 
would like these easements released slnce they nl'l:: umlemeath our proposed building, 

l have attached !ht> rel1.:::isc of casement prepm·cd by our title attorney and it is ready for execution by the city. 
Also attached ls tbe ALTA survey showing in the red circle the two doted lines indicating the sewer easements. 
Note: the reference 25 and 26 on the survey are explained in Schedule B exceptions (sewer easemenls). 

Please li;:1 m<;; know what we will need to do to get this completed with the city. 

Frank 

614-406-293 l Cell 

fif\ ((HJNR 
(Ol,\fAWL~, 

Fr~•fik Fuga!c 
\\· ::,d;! '., -\\q;,,T C,'Hir~r 1.·, 

!,:f.-h1J, Fl )!:;, __ ' 1 l 

2 







ii 

I 

I 

'· 

- . , ,.~ J' ...... -
,. ,_ .. "t' I 

I _,1 .._, 

,. .. 

I ' j 

.-jr ,1>l 
,;-,, . ' 

•f" " . r_ -. :: 
':, .. ,. , . 
,. i ' t't -~' . ,.! 

._, 

. .,. .. 

.. 

I ' 

• J 

\~•\ 

• 

.. 

... 
"'- I I 

, I 

,.._ I 

J f ' ) 

I, 
I 

! ] 

--,.... , 
I , 
\ 

.. 
ij '· 

• 1 

,,. 
- • I 

~ I I• I 

- .~ 

' 
' ' I 
' I 

I 

~ ' ', Cl 

I .... 
~ ' r= \ .. I -..... 0 

0.. 

;: 
,· •• 
L. I ·.• . -. 

< 

• C 

' ' \ 

, 

\ I 

(\ •. 

' 
\ 

• 

I ,, 

\ 
( ;:-. ~ --~ ,. ~ i.------ '/ -~ ~ • .• I~ 

·1 

. 
<' 

\ 
~ 

\ ,, ,, 'I 

' \ l 

l .,. .,,. 

I '), 
~ I I 

.,-y-·· 
\ 

.. ,._ I 
I ' . 

( j 
' I 

-~ ~-r 
_.,. ~ 

l 
.. , ~ " I 

... . . .,. .,,.tr 

.. 
I ..,. 

, ' -1 . ,, -
, ... • 1, ,; 

'· 

., 
; 

,,. ,, , ., 
; ,,, 

,; , 
,,. ., ,,. ,, 

, 
,,, 

,, , ,,, ,, , ,, , 
, , ., , 

\ , 

' 
; 

, 
, 

,, ~ 
,, . 

, 
., 

., 
,; 

E 

,,., rh ,, ' 
I 

t 





G GIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor Waterman, and Honorable Council President and City Council 

Paul A. Thursam, Esq. 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

RE: 825 Golf D1ive - Option to Purchase; Resolution 

In June of 2018, Council approved a Lease (with option to purchase) for the property located 

at 825 Golf Drive. The property is currently operated by the City as a youth center. The term of the 

Lease is 3 years, ending on June 30, 2021. The Lease contains 2 options to purchase. The first 

option must be exercised by the City, if at all, p1ior to June 10, 2019. The second option becomes 

available on January 1, 2021. 

The 2019 option must be exercised by June 10, 2019 or it will expire. After exercise of the 

2019 option, a closing will take place on or before July 31, 2019. Council previously set aside funds 

($3 .2M) for the purpose of purchasing the property. Council can authorize the purchase of 825 Golf 

Drive by Resolution. 

If Council does not exercise the 2019 option, then the Lease would remain in effect, and the 

City would continue paying rent ($26,000 per month) until the end of the Lease term in 2021. If 

Council elects to proceed in this way, then it would be required to approve a budget for fiscal year 

2019 which allocated funds for the payment ofrent (and all other sums due under the Lease). 

Attached to this Memorandum are the following documents for your review: 

1. Resolution to Exercise Option, and Purchase Property. 

2. Purchase Agreement. 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and entered into as of the date of the last 
signature shown on the signature page hereof, by and between the CITY OF PONTIAC, located at 47450 
Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Ml 48342 ("Purchaser"), and CREATIVE SCHOOLS MANAGEMENT, LLC, a 
Michigan limited liability company, located at 4759 Owasco Court, Clarkston, Ml 48348 ("Seller"). 

RECITALS: 

A. On July 1, 2018, Purchaser and Seller executed that certain Lease Agreement (with Option 
to Purchase) ("Lease Agreement"), which granted to Purchaser the option to purchase certain Real Estate 
(as defined herein). 

B. Seller is the owner of that certain real property located at 825 Golf Drive, Pontiac, Ml 48341, 
the legal description of which is attached as Exhibit "A" and incorporated into this Agreement by this 
reference (the "Real Estate"). 

C. Purchaser has exercised its option to purchase the Real Estate, and now Seller desires to 
sell and Purchaser desires to purchase the Real Estate in accordance with and subject to the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby accepted and acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as follows: 

1. Offer. Purchaser hereby offers and agrees to purchase the Real Estate, together with all 
improvements and appurtenances, leasehold interests, and all personal property owned by Seller, located 
upon the Real Estate, and used in its operations by Seller, including, without limitation, the items of personal 
property described in Exhibit "B", attached hereto and incorporated by reference. Included in this sale are, 
by way of illustration only, and not in limitation, and to the extent presently located on the Real Estate and 
owned by Seller, all plumbing, heating, lighting, air conditioning fixtures and units, hot water heaters and 
equipment, appliances, fire detection and/or extinguishing equipment, awnings, screens, window 
treatments, carpeting, mirrors, plumbing fixtures, mailboxes, pumps, cleaning and other supplies, office and 
other furniture, supplies and equipment, carpeting, window coverings and other like items, furniture, fixtures 
and equipment, if any, and all legally transferable licenses and permits; together with all right, title and 
interest in any street, road or avenue, open or proposed, in front of or adjoining the Real Estate, or any part 
thereof, to the centerline thereof; together with all right, title and interest of the Seller in or to the use of any 
easements or rights-of-way abutting or adjoining the Real Estate, all air, mineral, water and riparian rights, 
all tenements, hereditaments, privileges and appurtenances belonging or in any way pertaining to the Real 
Estate, any property adjacent to the Real Estate, if any, all options and other rights to acquire any property 
adjacent to the Real Estate, all unexpired claims and warranties received by Seller in connection with the 
construction, improvement or personal property on the Real Estate, if any, all leases of space in the building 
situated on the Real Estate, and Seller's rights under all service contracts which Purchaser desires to 
assume. All the foregoing may sometimes collectively be referred to in this Agreement as the "Subject 
Premises". 

2. [INTENTIONALLY DELETED] 

3. Acceptance. Seller, by signature and delivery of a fully executed counterpart of this 
Agreement, accepts the said Offer of the Purchaser. Such Offer and Acceptance are subject to and in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

4. Purchase Price. The Purchase Price for the Subject Premises shall be Three Million 
One Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,150,000.00). The Purchase Price, plus or minus 
Closing adjustments, as the case may be, shall be paid in certified, cashiers or wire transferred funds to 
Seller at Closing in exchange for a Warranty Deed conveying fee simple, marketable title to the Real Estate 
to Purchaser, free and clear of any and all liens or encumbrances except as specifically set forth herein and 



subject only to those easements and restrictions of record as are agreeable to Purchaser in its sole and 
absolute discretion (the "Permitted Encumbrances"), a Bill of Sale conveying all personal property in its as
is condition which is part of the Subject Premises free and clear of all liens, security interests and 
encumbrances, and an assignment of all leases covering any portion of the Subject Premises free and clear 
of all liens and other assignments (if any). Seller shall execute and deliver such documents as are required 
to document this transaction, including any document required by the Title Company (as defined below). 
Seller shall cause any existing land contracts or mortgages pertaining to the Real Estate to be discharged 
at or before Closing. 

5. Evidence of Title. 

A Within ten (10) days of the date of Seller's delivery to Purchaser of a fully executed 
and originally signed copy of this Purchase Agreement, Seller shall furnish or cause to be furnished to 
Purchaser a Commitment for an AL.TA owner's policy of title insurance to be issued at Closing without 
standard exceptions, in the amount of the total Purchase Price, which Title Commitment shall be issued by 
Liberty Title (the "Title Company"), and same to bear a date later than the date of this Agreement, wherein 
the Title Company shall agree to insure the title to the Real Estate in the condition required hereunder as 
marketable title (the "Title Commitment"). Together with the Title Commitment, Seller shall deliver to 
Purchaser legible copies of all documents recorded in the chain of title which are disclosed by the Title 
Company as exceptions to title. Seller shall, at the time of Closing, order a Policy of Title Insurance from 
the Title Company pursuant to the Title Commitment for delivery to Purchaser as soon thereafter as 
possible. The cost of the Title Commitment and Title Insurance Policy shall be paid by Seller. Purchaser, 
at its option, may initiate the order with the Title Company and provide copies of the Title Commitment and 
all items of record to Seller. 

B. Within ten (10) days of the date of Seller's delivery to Purchaser of a fully executed 
and originally signed copy of this Purchase Agreement, Seller shall furnish or cause to be furnished to 
Purchaser a copy of its existing survey of the Real Estate, if any, and Purchaser, at its option, may cause 
to have the survey updated, or in lieu thereof, obtain a new survey at it cost and expense (in either case, 
the "New Survey"). 

C. If objection to the condition of title and/or survey is made the later of: (i) within 
twenty (20) days after delivery of the Title Commitment to Purchaser indicating that title is not satisfactory 
to Purchaser; or (ii) the expiration of the Due Diligence Period (as defined herein), Seller shall have thirty 
(30) days from the date it is notified in writing of the particular defects claimed, at Seller's election, either 
(1) to remedy the title, or (2) to obtain title insurance as required above. If Seller is unable to remedy the 
title or obtain title insurance after using best efforts to do so within such thirty (30) day period, Purchaser 
may elect to waive such defects and proceed with the transaction or terminate this Agreement, and become 
entitled to a return of the deposit. If the Seller remedies the title and/or survey defects or shall obtain such 
title insurance within the time specified, the Purchaser shall complete the transaction in accordance with 
terms of this Agreement. 

6. Possession. Tenant is currently in exclusive possession of the Subject Premises pursuant 
to the Lease Agreement. 

7. Representations and Warranties of Seller. Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser 
as of the date hereof, and as of the date of Closing, as follows: 

A Seller is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing as an entity under 
the laws of the State of Michigan and has, as of the date hereof, and will have on the Closing Date the 
power to sell the Subject Premises to Purchaser and to perform its obligations in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and each person who executes this Agreement and all other instruments 
and documents in connection herewith has, as of the date hereof, and will have on the Closing Date, the 
power and authority to so act. 

B. Seller is the fee simple owner of and has good and marketable title to the Subject 
Premises, and full right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement. 

Page 2 of 11 



C. With respect to any personal property included in this sale, Seller has and will 
transfer to Purchaser, at Closing, marketable title free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, subject only 
to the Permitted Exceptions. 

D. Seller is not a "foreign person" as defined in §1445(f)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and regulations promulgated thereunder, which Seller shall so certify at Closing. 

E. Except as set forth in the Title Commitment or on the tax bills for the Real Estate, 
there are no assessments, charges, paybacks, utility tax or connection fees or obligations for improvements 
or services affecting the Subject Premises. 

F. There are no service contracts or other agreements of any kind or nature 
whatsoever, written or oral, express or implied, with respect to the Subject Premises, except as identified 
and, in the event of oral agreements, described in Exhibit "C", to be attached hereto by Seller. Exhibit "C" 
shall also contain a brief description of all such service contracts. 

G. There are no lawsuits, tax appeals, condemnation proceedings, or environmental 
investigations of any kind, pending or, to Seller's best knowledge, threatened, affecting the Subject 
Premises or Seller's ability to convey same. 

H. Except as may have been otherwise disclosed in any environmental site 
assessment delivered by Seller to Purchaser, there is no known no chemical, radioactive, toxic or otherwise 
hazardous material, substance or waste, whether liquid, solid, gaseous or otherwise, stored or disposed of 
in, upon, under or adjacent to the Subject Premises (including buildings thereon), and the Subject Premises 
are not now nor were they previously used by Seller, for storage, disposal, manufacture, generation, 
whether as a by-product or otherwise, of any hazardous or toxic substance. Seller has no knowledge of 
the current or prior existence on the Subject Premises of any underground storage tank of any kind or size. 

I. No bankruptcy, insolvency, rearrangement or similar action or proceeding 
involving the Subject Premises or Seller is pending or threatened against. 

J. Seller has not received any written notice from any governmental authority or 
regulatory body, nor does Seller have any actual knowledge of, any violations of the law concerning the 
Subject Premises; provided, however, that Seller makes no representation or warranty with respect to ADA 
compliance. 

K. Seller has not granted to any person or entity any option or other right to purchase 
the Real Estate or the Subject Premises, or to acquire any other right with respect to same, other than the 
Easement and Parking Agreement referenced in the Lease Agreement. 

L. Seller has not received any written notice from any governmental authority or 
regulatory body indicating that the Subject Premises is in need of material repair, or that the Subject 
Premises is unsafe. 

8. Representations and Warranties of Purchaser. Purchaser represents and warrants to 
Seller, to the best of its knowledge, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing date, as follows 

a. Purchaser (or if assigned by Purchaser to an entity to be formed, the assignee) 
shall have duly and validly authorized and executed this Agreement or ratified its earlier execution and that 
Purchaser has full power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

b. The execution, delivery, performance or compliance with this Agreement by 
Purchaser and the transfer of Seller's right, title and interest in the Subject Premises to Purchaser pursuant 
to this Agreement shall not: (1) violate or conflict with Purchaser's governing documents; or (2) result in a 
breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any mortgage, indenture, contract or agreement, lease, 
instrument, judgment, decree, order or award binding on Purchaser or to which Purchaser is a party. 

c. Purchaser is not involved in any litigation or other proceedings that could prevent 
or delay it from purchasing the Subject Premises pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

Page 3 of 11 



d. Purchaser has been in exclusive possession of the Real Estate since July 1, 2018 
under the Lease Agreement. 

9. Conditions Precedent. The obligation of Purchaser to proceed on this Offer, if accepted, 
shall be conditioned upon each of the following conditions precedent: 

A Satisfaction of the title and survey conditions in accordance with Section 5. 

B. Purchaser and its agents shall have thirty (30) days following the acceptance of 
this Purchase Agreement (the "Due Diligence Period") to: (i) inspect and review the environmental condition 
of the Subject Premises; (ii) conduct a physical inspection of the Subject Premises; and (iii) to confer with 
Seller regarding any information Purchaser may need to evaluate the suitability of the Subject Premises. 
Access to the Subject Premises and such other information pertinent to the Subject Premises as Purchaser 
may request, shall be freely granted to Purchaser and/or Purchaser's agents and representatives, at all 
reasonable times, and Seller shall cooperate with Purchaser in connection therewith. If Purchaser is not 
satisfied, in its sole and exclusive discretion, with the results of such inspections and reviews contemplated 
by this Paragraph 9, or for any other reason whatsoever, Purchaser may rescind this transaction by sending 
written notice to Seller prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period, and Purchaser shall be relieved 
of any and all liability hereunder except those obligations which survive termination of this Agreement, and 
the deposit tendered pursuant to Section 15 hereof shall be immediately returned to Purchaser without 
setoff or deduction. Purchaser shall have no obligation to state any reason for its election to rescind this 
transaction. 

Purchaser shall, at its sole cost and expense, restore the Subject Premises to the condition 
thereof existing prior to entry by Purchaser, its agents or representatives, if Purchaser elects not to close 
the transaction. 

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Subject Premises is being sold, 
and the Purchaser hereby agrees to accept the Subject Premises, in "AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAUL TS" condition as of the Closing. 

C. There shall be no material changes in the physical condition of the Subject 
Premises from the date hereof to the Closing Date. 

D. All of Seller's representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall 
be true and correct as of the date hereof and on the date of Closing, which Seller shall certify to at Closing, 
and Seller shall not have, on the date of Closing, failed to meet, comply with, or perform, any condition or 
agreement on its part to be performed under the terms and conditions contained herein. 

E. The Title Company shall be ready, willing, and able to issue its policy of title 
insurance in the form required herein, and shall otherwise have been provided with any and all 
documentation required in connection with same. 

10. Closing. Purchaser and Seller shall close this transaction ("Closing") no earlier than ten 
(10) days following expiration of the Due Diligence Period ("Closing Date"); but in no event shall Closing 
occur prior to the satisfaction of all conditions precedent unless Purchaser elects to waive any such 
condition precedent. The Closing shall take place at the offices of Purchaser's counsel or other mutually 
convenient location. At Closing, the following documents, in such form and content as is reasonably 
satisfactory to Purchaser, shall be executed by Seller and/or delivered to Purchaser: 

A A Warranty Deed conveying marketable title to the Subject Premises to 
Purchaser, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions, with the consideration therefore stated only in a 
separate Real Estate Transfer Valuation Affidavit or similar document. If the Real Estate consists of 
unplatted land and is not a parent parcel, the deed shall contain a statement as follows: "The granter 
grants to the grantee the right to make all divisions under Section 108 of the Land Division Act, Act No. 
288 of the Public Acts of 1967." 

B. A Bill of Sale as to the property rights, other than the Real Estate, described in 
Section 1 hereof. 

C. Seller's Affidavit of No Liens on the Title Company's standard form, sufficient to 
permit the Title Company to delete standard Schedule B exceptions. 

Page 4 of 11 



D. Seller's Certificate of Accuracy and Affirmation of Covenant, as of Closing that 
the Representations and Warranties under Section 7 remain true and correct as of the Closing Date, and 
that Seller has faithfully kept and performed the covenants under Section 22 hereof. 

E. A Closing Statement. 

F. A Non-Foreign Person Affidavit. 

G. All available plans and specifications relating to the improvements located upon 
the Subject Premises including as built drawings and site plans (but only to the extent that the same are 
in Seller's possession). 

H. That certain Reciprocal Easement Agreement concerning the Subject Property, 
and the immediately adjacent property owned by Seller. 

I. Any other document or thing required by the Title Company in order to close the 
transaction as described herein. 

11. Closing Adjustments. The following shall be apportioned on the Closing Statement 
against sums due Seller at Closing: 

A All taxes and special assessments of whatever nature and kind which have 
become due and payable, regardless of whether such special assessments may be paid in installments 
over a term of years or are delinquent as of the date of Closing, shall be paid and discharged by Seller. 
Current real and personal property taxes shall be prorated on the due date basis of the taxing authority on 
the basis of a three hundred sixty-five (365) day year as though the taxes have been paid in advance; 
Seller shall be responsible for taxes up to but not including the day of Closing. 

B. All tenant security deposits if any, and other deposits of whatever nature and kind 
whatsoever, and whether or not refundable, shall be assumed by Purchaser with credit therefor against 
sums due at Closing. 

C. Seller shall pay for all realty transfer and similar taxes due upon Closing or required 
to be paid upon recording of the Warranty Deed. 

D. Any work fee charged by the Title Company shall be paid by the Purchaser 
pursuant to the Option Section of the Lease Agreement. 

E. Any other charges or fees shall be incurred by the party incurring the charge, or as 
otherwise is customary for real property transactions in southeast Michigan. 

12. [INTENTIONALLY DELETED] 

13. Destruction or Damage. Until the day of Closing and actual exchange of legal title for 
the consideration to be paid hereunder, all risk of loss with respect to the Subject Premises shall be borne 
by Seller. In the event of destruction or damage to the Subject Premises prior to the date of Closing, 
Purchaser shall, at its option, have the right to (a) take the proceeds of the insurance, including any loss 
of rents insurance, or a present assignment of Seller's rights therein, less any deductible required to be 
paid by Seller and proceed and go forward with the transaction; or (b) in the event damage exceeds Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) as determined by an independent insurance adjuster, declare the 
transaction to be void and of no further force or effect and Purchaser shall be relieved of any and all liability 
hereunder. If Purchaser selects option (a), if necessary the Closing Date shall be delayed until the loss is 
adjusted, the insurance company acknowledges Purchaser's rights therein by virtue of this Agreement, 
and the amount of insurance proceeds is determined. 

14. Condemnation. In the event that notice of any action, suit or proceeding shall be given 
prior to the Closing Date for the purpose of condemning any part of the Subject Premises, then Purchaser 
shall have the right to terminate its obligations hereunder within fifteen (15) days after receiving written 
notice of such condemnation proceeding from Seller, and upon such termination, the proceeds resulting 
from such condemnation shall be paid to Seller, and Purchaser shall thereupon be relieved of any and all 
liability hereunder. In the event Purchaser shall not elect to terminate its obligations hereunder, the 
proceeds of such condemnation shall be assigned and belong to Purchaser. 

Page 5 of 11 



15. Deposit; Deposit as Liquidated Damages. Within 3 days of execution of this Agreement, 
Purchaser shall deliver a deposit to Seller in the amount of $300,000.00. 

The deposit made in connection with this Agreement shall be held by the Title Company and applied 
against cash due at Closing when the transaction is consummated or otherwise disbursed in accordance 
with the terms hereof. In the event this Agreement is not accepted by Seller, or in the event of failure of 
any condition precedent, or in the case of any uncured default by Seller, the deposit, if any, shall be promptly 
returned to Purchaser. In the event of a default by Purchaser hereunder, which default remains uncured 
for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof is received by Purchaser, Seller shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement and the deposit, if any, shall be paid to the Seller as liquidated damages as its 
sole and exclusive remedy. In the event of a default by Seller hereunder, which default remains uncured 
for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof is received by Seller, Purchaser may terminate this 
Agreement and shall be entitled to a return of the deposit in this Agreement, if any, then held by the Title 
Company, or to maintain an action for specific performance of this Agreement. In addition to the above in 
the event of any dispute hereunder, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs 
including, by way of example and not limitation, such party's attorney fees. 

16. Indemnity. 

A Seller shall indemnify, defend and hold Purchaser harmless of and from and in 
respect to any claims asserted by tenants, creditors, vendors, visitors, or employees of or claimants against 
Seller or of the Subject Premises up to the Closing Date, including any claims for breach of any 
representation, warranty, or covenant made herein. In no event shall Purchaser assume any liability of 
Seller, except as expressly set forth herein. The parties acknowledge that this is not a sale of a business 
nor shall Purchaser be deemed a successor of Seller. 

B. Purchaser shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless of and from and in 
respect to any claims asserted by tenants, creditors, vendors, visitors, or employees of or claimants against 
Purchaser or of the Subject Premises arising on or after the date of Closing. 

17. Broker. At Closing, each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other from and 
against all claims, demands, causes of action, debts, liabilities, judgments and damages (including costs 
and reasonable attorneys' fees) which may be asserted by any real estate broker in connection with this 
transaction. 

18. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law. 

19. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall bind the parties hereto, their respective heirs and 
assigns. Purchaser may freely assign its interest hereunder. 

20. Notices. Any notices, demands or requests required or permitted to be given hereunder 
must be in writing and shall be deemed to be given (a) when hand delivered, or (b) one (1) business day 
after delivery to Federal Express or similar nationally recognized overnight service for next business day 
delivery, or (c) three (3) business days after deposit in the U.S. mail first class postage prepaid, or (d) on 
the day of transmission, when sent during regular business hours of the intended destination by facsimile 
or telecopier transmission, if such transmission is immediately followed by any of the other methods for 
giving notice. In all cases notices shall be addressed to the parties at their respective addresses as follows: 

If to Seller: If to Purchaser: 

Creative Schools Management, LLC 
Attention: Carl Byerly 
4759 Owasco Court, 
Clarkston, Ml 48348 

With a copy to: 
John L. Burket, Esq. 
DBS Attorneys 
10 S. Main Street, Suite 401 
Mt. Clemens, Ml 48043 
Email : jlburket@dbsattorneys.com 

City of Pontiac 
Attention: Mayor 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

With a copy to: 
Paul A Thursam, Esq. 
Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 
101 W. Big Beaver Road, Suite 1000 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
Email: """"-'='-'=="""-'-===""" 

Page 6 of 11 



21. Time for Performance. In the event the last date for performance of any obligation or for 
giving any notice hereunder falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday of the state wherein the Real 
Estate is located, then the time of such period shall be extended to the next day which is not a Saturday, 
Sunday or legal holiday in such state. Time shall be of the essence for purposes of this transaction. 

22. Seller's Additional Covenants. From the date of this Agreement until the Closing Date: 

A. Seller shall continue to be obligated under the terms and conditions of the Lease 
Agreement. 

B. Seller shall not transfer any of the Subject Premises, create any lien or 
encumbrance thereon, grant any easements or rights of way, or enter into any contract or other agreement 
affecting the Subject Premises which is not cancelable on and as of the Closing Date without Purchaser's 
prior written consent, in each such instance, other than the Easement and Parking Agreement referenced 
in the Option Clause of the Lease Agreement. 

E. Seller shall pay all its obligations in a timely fashion, including, but not limited to 
taxes, insurance, debt service payments, and suppliers of labor or materials to the Subject Premises. 

23. Number and Gender. Whenever required by the context or use in this Agreement, the 
singular word shall include the plural word and the masculine gender shall include the feminine and/or 
neuter gender, and vice versa. 

24. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which 
shall constitute and be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument binding on all the parties. This Agreement may be executed in telecopy (faxed) copies and 
facsimile signatures shall be binding upon the parties. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Page 7 of 11 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement shall be deemed entered and effective on the last date 
shown below. 

Seller: Purchaser: 

CREATIVE SCHOOLS MANAGEMENT, LLC, a CITY OF PONTIAC 
Michigan limited liability company 

By: By: 
Name: Carl Byerly Name: Deirdre Waterman 
Its: President Its: Mayor 

Dated: --------' 2019 Dated: 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Legal Description Exhibit "A" 

Exhibit "B" 

Exhibit "C" 

List of Included Items of Personal Property 

Service Contracts 

, 2019 

Page8of11 



See attached. 

EXHIBIT"A" 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Page 9 of 11 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION (to be confirmed by Title Company) 

PART OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 5, T.2N., R.10E, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND 
COUNTY MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID SECTION 5, SAID POINT BEING S02'00'42"E (RECORDED AS S01'59'37"E). 625.87 
FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE N88'09'37"E, 216.00 
FEET; THENCE N01'59'37"W, 261.76 FEET; THENCE N87'19'39"E, 142.70 FEET; THENCE 
N87'37'37"E,98.42 FEET; THENCE S01'33'04 "E, 1272.05 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE NORTH 
LINE OF "BLOOMFIELD PARK CONDOMINIUM" OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 
1718 AS RECORDED IN UBER 35092, PAGE 207 OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, AS 
AMENDED; THENCE S87'20'36"W ALONG THE NORTH OF SAID 11 BLOOMFIELD PARK 
CONDOMINIUM", 452.60 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING 5.61 FEET (RECORDED AS 
5.94 FEET) FROM THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE N01'34'38"W, 739.58 FEET 
{RECORDED AS N01'35'41"W, 738.08 FEET) TO A POINT OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 5; THENCE N02'00'42"W ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 274.17 FEET (RECORDED AS 
N01'59'37"W); TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 11.95 ACRES AND SUBJECT TO 
EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS OF WAY OF RECORD. 



EXHIBIT "B" 

LIST OF INCLUDED ITEMS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY 

See attached. 

Page 10 of 11 



EXHIBIT B 

1, Principal Office - Conference Table with 4 padded chairs and 4 wooden chairs 
2. Tech Room - 3 wood tables 
3, Front Office - Steel Desk with 2 wood chairs and file cabinet 
4. Gym - 2 Vending Machines and 2 glass display cases; sound system; 

scoreboard 
5. Front office - Wood desk and 3 chairs 
6. Front Office - 2 wood tables and 2 wood chairs 
7. Front Office - Wood Table, 4 wood chairs, moon table 7 tall cabinet 
8. Front East Classroom - 10 Rectangular Wood tables ( 4 belong to JIA) and 70 

small elementary plastic chairs 
9. Room 18 - 3 file cabinets, 2 teacher desks, & 5 student desks 
10. Room 106 -

A. 35 Elementary Desk/ Chair combo units 
B. 22 Elementary Blue plastic chairs 
C. 26 Elementary Gray small hard plastic chairs 
D. 10 Middle School Hard Plastic chairs 
E. 15 Upper Elem. Adjustable desks 
F. 2 science lab tables 
G. 3 Steel Office Desks 
H. 2 Middle School Desk/ Chair combo units 
I. 3 File Cabinets 
J. 2 Wooden Classroom Tables 

11. Choir Room - 2 Pianos, Choir risers ( 4 sections) 12 music stands 
12, Band Room - 1 Piano and Music storage cabinet 
13. Dance Room - Ballet Bars (4 sets) and Fie cabinet 
14. Fireplace Room - 4 large book shelves, 2 wooden office desks, 4 wood chairs 

& 1 wood table 
15, Room 210 - Wooden teacher desk and 4 moon shaped tables 
16. Room 208 - 17 Middle School desk/ chair combo units, teacher's desk & file 

cabinet 
17. Room 209 - 12 Middle School Chairs (peach color) & wooden teacher desk 
18. Room 206 - (25 Middle School desk/ chair combo units belong to JIA), Adult 

wood desks and file cabinet 
19. Room 207 - 5 wood science tables 
20. Room 205 - 11 Middle School desk/ chair combo units 
21. Room 203 - Wood Table 
22. Room 201- (computer lab) 7 computer tables (assorted) (2 belong to JIA) & 

20 chairs 
23. Teacher's lounge - refrigerator, 4 wood tables, microwave 7 20 chairs 
24. Kitchen - 2 commercial gas stoves, etc.? 



See attached. 

EXHIBIT "C" 

SERVICE CONTRACTS 

Page11of11 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 825 GOLF DRIVE; AUTHORITY TO EXERCISE 
OPTION TO PURCHASE; AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT AND TAKE ALL OTHER ACTION NECESSARY TO 

CONSUMMATE THE TRANSACTION 

AT A REGULAR meeting of the Pontiac City Council of the City of Pontiac, Michigan, 

held at Pontiac City Hall on __________ , 2019, the following resolution was 

offered by and supported by ---------- ----------

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council authorized the execution of a Lease Agreement 
(with Purchase Option) by and between the City of Pontiac (the "City") and Creative Schools 
Management, LLC dated July 1, 2018 (the "Lease"); and 

WHEREAS, the Lease concerns the property located at 825 Golf Drive (the "Property"), 
which is currently operated by the City as a youth recreation and education center; and 

WHEREAS, the Lease contains an option to purchase the Property, which option must be 
exercised on or before June 10, 2019 (the "Option"); and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council previously set aside $3 .2 million for the purchase 
of the Property. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. The attorneys for the City are hereby authorized to exercise the Option and take all 
other action reasonably necessary and prudent in connection therewith. 

2. The attorneys for the City are hereby authorized to fully and finally negotiate the 
attached Purchase Agreement for the Prope1iy (but in no event shall the purchase price 
for the Property exceed $3,150,000.00). 

3. The Mayor for the City of Pontiac is hereby authorized to execute the Purchase 
Agreement for the Property, and to take any and all other action reasonably necessary 



and prudent to consummate the purchase of the Property, including a due diligence 
investigation of the Property. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, Pontiac, Michigan, this __ day of 
, 2019. ---------

AYES: ------------

NAYS: ------------

I, Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above 
Resolution is a true copy and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the 
City of Pontiac on __________ , 2019. 

GARLAND DOYLE, Interim City Clerk 

Dated: , 2019 
----------

2 



Cm( OF PONTIAC 
Department of Finance 

4 7 450 Woodward A venue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 
Fax: (248) 758-3197 

TO: Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, City of Pontiac 

FROM: Hughey Newsome, Interim Finance Director 

CC: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Date: May 16, 2019 

Re: Fund Balance committed for Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center 

This memo is in regards to the purchase of_the Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center 
("PYREC"). The City of Pontiac currently has a lease agreement and a purchase option to buy the 
property at 825 Golf Drive. This property, referred to as PYREC, is currently under lease from Creative 
Schools Management, LLC. 

On June 8, 2018, the Pontiac City Council voted to both approve this lease agreement (with Purchase 
option) and to commit $3.2 million of General Fund's fund balance for the purposes of exercising this 
purchase option. The city entered into this lease agreement on July 1, 2018. This committed $3.2 
million of General Fund's fund balance remains as of the date of this memo. At the close of fiscal year 
2018, based on audited financial statements, the city had $17,359,201 of fund balance in the General 
Fund. The city is projecting that this figure will be $16,806,781 by the end of this fiscal yeaL 

Because the first $3.2 million of this fund balance has been committed, by aforementioned resolution, 
to the purchase of PYREC, I can confirm that there is adequate fund balance for exercising the purchase 
option for PYREC. 

Interim Finance Director 

Attachment 

i 

I 



City of Pontiac 

7450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

RE: Transaction for 825 Golf Drive. 

May 3, 2019 

Dear Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council: 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that, on behalf of The Cathedral of Valor and myself, we are 

withdrawing our previous offer regarding the property at 825 Golf Drive. 



0 

TI 



RESOLUTION OF THE PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
HONORING OUR YOUNG HEROES 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to endorse, recognize and support its young people 
for their academic, civic achievements, as well as those who contributed to their success; and, 

WHEREAS, the Delta Fortitude Foundation (OFF) is a 501( C )3 non-profit organization 
established in 2001 in Pontiac, Michigan, the mission of the organization is to enhance the 
quality of life of the citizens and youth in the Pontiac metropolitan area, with emphasis on 
African American males; and, 

WHEREAS, the Salute to Young Heroes is an eight-month prngram designed to address the 
crisis that our young African American males face today; and, 

WHEREAS, the members of the Pontiac City Council salute the Young Heroes of 2019; 
Parrish A. Bush, Ian J. Chambers, Christian L. Grant, Myles R. Harris, Raymond W. 
Johnson III and Quinton V. M. Keyes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on behalf of the citizens, members of the 
Pontiac City Council, we applaud and celebrate the achievements of these young men and give 
special thanks to the Delta Fortitude Foundation as they celebrate their Annual Gala Celebration 
honoring Our Young 1-Ieroes of 2019 at the Pontiac Marriott on Sunday,June 9, 2019. 

Kermit Williams, President 

Randy Ca1·ter, Pm-Tem Patiice Waterman, Councilwoman 

Don Woodward, Councilman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman 

Gloria Miller, Councilwoman Do1is Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman 





Pontiac City Council Resolution 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Municipal Code and Pontiac Ordinance No. 2288, sec 4, dated June 27, 2013 
provides that the budget shall be adopted on a functional basis for expenditures, rather than on a 
depm1mental or line item basis; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Pontiac to amend the current ordinance to allow the 

budget to be adopted on a line item basis for expenditures rather than on a functional basis; and, 

WHEREAS, money shall not be moved within departments without the Pontiac City Council's approval; 

and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Pontiac City Chatter more specifically, section 4.202, the City Attorney is 
hereby instructed to amend the ordinance pursuant to the resolution passed by the Pontiac City Council by 

May 28, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that no more than Ten Thousand ($10,000.00) Dollars shall 
be allocated and changed to a different function within a depm1ment without the Pontiac City Council's 

approval and the current 2019-2020 budget shall be adopted by line item for expenditures. 





ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 2288 AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FOR THE MAYOR TO SUBMIT A PROPOSED TWO YEAR BALANCED BUDGET TO 
THE CITY COUNCIL FOR CONSIDERATION, TO ESTABLISH MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PROPOSED BUDGET DOCUMENT, AND TO REQUIRE 
THE CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT A BUDGET BY JUNE 9 OF EACH YEAR. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendments 

Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 3, Sections 2-531 through 2-536 of the Code of Ordinances, 
concerning the Executive Balanced Budget Ordinance shall be deleted in its entirety. 

Section 2. Repealer 

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent 
necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 


	20190517170408881
	20190517170448595
	20190517170522309
	20190517170656572
	20190517170839209
	20190517170913287
	20190517170956548



